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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EFHESE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024
(the “Year”).

During the Year, economies have gone through challenges both globally and
in Hong Kong due to geopolitical tensions, military occupation, supply chain
disruptions, high interest and inflation rate, and other upheavals that were
rarely encountered in recent decades, the macroeconomic environment was
not optimistic. In view of the complicated external environment, the Group
has adopted a sound financial policy, and actively explored new development
opportunities.

For the construction machinery business, the Group recorded a decrease in the
(i) sales of construction machinery and spare parts which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in demand of brand new cranes manufactured in Japan, and
(ii) rental income generated from construction machinery which was mainly
attributable to some major construction sites (e.g. Hong Kong International
Airport 3 runway and Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel) having been
completed. The occupancy rate for the rental machineries was approximately
85%.

For the financial services business, we shall continue our busingss expansion
with a cautious and positive attitude. The Group is confident in the prospects of
the financial markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would like to
increase its presence in the financial markets by either organic growth or working
with reputable partners.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all the Shareholders for their full support, and appreciate the Directors, the
management and the staff for their valuable contributions to the Group. The
Group shall strive to streamline its existing businesses and to explore new
business opportunities in order to create returns for its shareholders.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the past few years, we have seen a period of intense crisis of survival for
many enterprises in Hong Kong and much of the rest of the world. Enterprises
had to improve, re-assess and re-position themselves to do business amidst
the challenges of geopolitical tensions, military occupation, high interest and
inflation rate, and other upheavals that were rarely encountered in recent history.
The Group remained resilient and focused on its existing businesses.

During the Year, the Group continued to pursue a long-term business strategy
of diversifying into financial services business, property development business,
and construction machinery business. The Group’s principal activities include: (i)
securities investment; (ii) provision of securities brokerage and financial services;
(iii) asset management; (iv) rental and trading of construction machinery; (v)
provision of repair and maintenance and transportation income; (vi) property
development; and (vii) money lending.

Construction machinery business

The Group offers crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial
platforms and foundation equipment in its construction machinery rental
fleet. The Group procures these construction machinery mainly through the
manufacturers of construction machinery located in Western Europe, Japan and
China as well as traders of used construction machinery around the world.

The Group has maintained approximately 171 units of construction machinery
in the rental fleet during the Year. In order to maintain a modern fleet of
construction machinery with a greater variety of models, the Group has been
replacing portions of its fleet of construction machinery from time to time. The
Board will continue to monitor the daily operations and review the expansion
plan of the rental fleet and the capital requirements of the Group at regular
intervals. The Group may reschedule such expansion plan according to the
operation and needs, the preference of the target customers and the prevailing
market conditions if necessary. To satisfy customers’ needs, the Group also sells
spare parts for maintenance purposes or upon request.

6 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Financial services business

The Group provides a wide range of financial services. The Group holds licenses
for conducting Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SF0").

The revenue of the financial services business (including provision of asset
management, securities brokerage, and other financial services) for the Year was
approximately HK$7 million (2023: approximately HK$10 million), representing
approximately 4% (2023: approximately 4%) of the total revenue of the Group
and a segment profit of approximately HK$5 million (2023: approximately HK$15
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to decrease in the value and
volume of transactions in securities brokerage.

In the course of preparing the financial statements for the Year, the Company had
reviewed the recoverable amount of the trading right of the business carrying
on the regulated activities of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) as defined under the SFO. During the
Year, no impairment loss (2023: nil) on the trading right was recognised.

Money lending business

The Group holds money lender licenses under the Money Lenders Ordinance
in Hong Kong and the money lending business was conducted through its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, which grant loans to individuals and
enterprises. The Group strived to adhere to a set of comprehensive policies and
procedural manuals in respect of loan approval, loan renewal, loan recovery, loan
compliance, monitoring and anti-money laundering.

a) The size and diversity and sources of its clients, and source of
funding of the money lending business

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had loans receivable with carrying
amount of approximately HK$20 million (2023: HK$45 million). The
Group recorded interest income from loans receivable of approximately
HK$3 million for the Year (2023: HK$3 million). During the Year, the
Group did not grant any new loan (2023: two) .
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DM

b)

8

As at 31 March 2024, there were a total number of 3 borrowers (comprising
1 individual and 2 corporations) under the Company’s Loan portfolio.
The Company provides its mortgage financing service to individual and
corporation clients of different backgrounds, including home owners and
investment holding company, who are referred to it by sales executives.
The money lending business was funded by the internal resources of the
Group.

As at 31 March 2024, three loans with aggregate amount of approximately
HK$20 million were overdue, all of which were supported by personal
guarantee and/or secured by collaterals, with interest rate ranging from
12% to 13% per annum. A total of 2 cases with aggregate amount of
approximately HK$3 million were under legal proceedings (including
assets under public auctions).

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of outstanding loans receivable
from the three largest borrowers of the Group was HK$20 million
(representing 100% to the total loans receivable of the Group) while
the carrying amount of outstanding loans receivable from the largest
borrower amounted to HK$17 million (representing 85% to the total loans
receivable of the Group).

Credit risk assessment policy

The Group has performed background and credit risk assessment on the
potential borrowers before granting the loans by (a) searching on their
identity and background; (b) reviewing and assessing their financial
information; and (c) performing an assessment on their creditability.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money lending
business which includes compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, credit assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets,
the credibility of the potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining
collaterals and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk
level of the provision of loan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

c)

The Company’s money lending business offers both secured and
unsecured loans to borrowers comprising individuals and corporations.
The Company has adopted a credit risk policy and put in place loan
approval procedures to manage its money lending business which
includes compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, credit
assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals, assessment of
the use of proceeds and the source of repayment. Details of such policy
and procedures are all consolidated in an Internal Control Manual which
governs the operations of our money lending business and relevant staff
are required to abide by in conducting their behaviours and delivering
their target performance. In granting loans to clients, documents such as
loan application, proof of identity, employer/income verification, proof
of address and any relevant credit reports of potential borrowers. The
scope of money lending services provided by the money lending business
generally includes personal loans, and business loans on general working
capital. The Company tries to diversify the loan portfolio by providing to
different borrowers to lower the concentration risk. The Company does not
have preference for specific types of borrowers for loan acceptance (e.g.
job/business nature of borrower). The credit risk assessment was made
in case-by-case basis and the Company generally looks at the 5 Cs in
assessment of credit risk of borrowers, i.e. credit history, capacity to repay,
capital, the loan’s condition and associated collaterals. These include
but not limited to reviewing the financials of borrowers, considering
the borrower’s repayment history and evaluating whether the borrowers
are in bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation. Within a loan category,
the interest rates, the duration of the loan and repayment terms of the
loan vary and is determined by various factors such as background and
credibility of borrowers, their business plans and present and projected
operation performance, the collaterals or security to be made available by
these borrowers, and their repayment track records (if the loan is sought
by existing borrowers or former borrowers). The determination of the loan
terms reflects the risk level of the provision of loan and ensure the risk is
ata controllable level.

Key internal controls

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the value of
security/collaterals for granting of each loan, whether to an individual or
enterprise, on a case by case basis considering various factors, including
but not limited to, the repayment history, results of public search towards
the borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the borrower
and the financial condition of the borrower.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

10

For credit approval before granting loans to potential borrowers, the
Company performs credit assessment to assess the potential borrowers’
credit quality individually, such as their identity and background,
assessment on their creditability, financial background of the borrowers
(again, factors such as background and credibility of borrowers, their
business plans and present and projected operation performance, the
collateral security to be made available by these borrowers, and their
repayment track records (if the loan is sought by existing clients) are
considered), as well as the value and characteristics of the collaterals to
be pledged. The loan proposals will be prepared by the designated loan
officer and reviewed by risk management department of money lending
business on case specific issues in relation to the factors described above
to determine if they have been thoroughly considered. Risk management
department of money lending business will discuss each case in details
with loan officer to fine tune its loan proposal and risk management
department will make official comments on the submission draft. The loan
proposal together with the comments from risk management department
will then be sent to the approver(s), who are Director(s) designated with
such role and function for approval through physical meetings or emails.
Approver(s) may also comment, add pre-conditions and improve the
terms and conditions during this process. The relevant department head(s)
and approver(s) will sign off the proposals once approval is obtained for
proper record.

The Company has designated loan officer to closely monitor its loan
portfolio, including regular communication with the borrowers on
their financial position together with other measures such as monthly
assessment of valuation of collaterals (if any), repayment track record
of borrower(s), change of profile of borrower(s) (such as change of
employment and if there is additional liabilities on the part of the
borrower(s)), through which the Company will be able to keep updated
with the latest credit profile and risk associated with each individual
borrower and could take appropriate actions for recovery of a loan at the
earliest time. Further, the risk management department, which comprised
of officers with background in finance, auditing and experience in money
lending business, will review the risk level of each of the loans on a daily
basis and report to the senior management which includes Chief Executive
Officer, Financial Controller and the Board in some cases regularly on their
recommendation. From time to time, the risk management department of
the money lending business will alert the senior management on certain
events (e.g. failed repayment) and advise the Company to take appropriate
actions. The accounts department of the money lending business will also
keep track of the repayment schedule constantly and make alerts to senior
management, the Financial Controller and Chief Executive Officer in case
of failed or late repayment.

ERBEERAR TERFNEERM -
ARRMITEERE - LNEBFEEER
RANEEEE  fIMESHMER - 4
HERENFNE  BRANRBEE R (B
R ERANBRRAEE - IR ES
SRR B RTAMTRET RS RAE - FLtE
KA ERIER - AR IR E K
LB BEFPFREFR)ERARIREE
B) - ARRE R e EE R o
EREBERRETNEEERE - I H
HEEBNERERIPFIRE - REXH
MR EEBFISFAN wm R LR RS
MARRE  URTHEESCH(ERSR
BEE BAMGE SR &% - RRE IR
W%%Txmﬁ%hﬁETﬁﬁ HiRE
§%$Hﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ
ETQ% BHREIGEIAER
AE?EEﬁ%@%@ﬂ%%%§$%
NETTELL - BHABAIELBEPRD
B~ EANATHR 6T 3 A 15K S AR o
MHEEFIE B ARER NSRS EY

HERRRBTESRE

$ RERTNEEERYERAEERA
C BIRTEHISRER A BB EG B -
M&Emhm Blane A HER RS
BENE) « BRARERLE  (ERAE
BREE (NS RERASETER
SNBRE)  BRUERERE  ARRBE
PR TRESEERABBNRIEE
AR R B - WA EREBUEE NI TBI AR SR
WEIER - thoh - AEBIE - Bt kB
WMEEBERO A B AR R R %ﬁ%
P BBRABEBEERNRARBNKE -
EREBERTEHRRBEEERITE J
BREREESENNSREEEREZ
FEZ MEEBHNREREEBPISTE
MELEH(PIaNREEER RESRER
B WEBRAARRIEETE WEHX
BHEFHBPIT SR EBEMERFRE
IE* ESEBERNBR T RERER
- MREREERITERHNTEE -

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

d)

e)

Recoverability and collection

At the end of each month, the designated loan officer will check if there is
any overdue balances or late payment and risk management department as
described above will perform an independent review on the loans portfolio
and closely monitor the status and report to the senior management.
Usually there would be internal discussions on a case-by-case basis on
what recovery actions to be taken so that the Company could recover
the most in a timely manner. Various potential means like phones calls,
seizure of collaterals, statutory demand and further legal actions would be
discussed. Reminder letter and statutory demand letter will be issued to
the borrower when considered appropriate if there is overdue repayment.
Where appropriate, legal action will be initiated against the borrower for
the recovery of the amount due and taking possession of the collaterals
pledged. Actions in seizure of collaterals and realization of underlying
collaterals would also be taken if necessary. Where appropriate, the
Company will also petition to the court for bankruptcy/winding-up of the
borrower and/or guarantor. Again, the recovery and collection decisions
and processes are included in the monthly risk management report to the
senior management.

The Director who operates and oversees the money lending business
have extensive experiences and knowledge in the industry. The risk
management department has a senior financial manager of the Company’s
money lending business and holds a bachelor’s degree in business and an
associated degree in psychology, and has more than 15 years’ experiences
in the money lending industry. The Company’s management team, which
includes the chief executive officer, chief financial officer of the Company
and the Company’s financial controller and the company secretary, also
possesses over 10 years of experiences in the corporate and banking
industry and the field of accounting and auditing. Further, most of
the Board members also possess extensive experiences in corporate
financing, investments and banking and financial advisory services.

Compliance with Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
and Money Lenders Ordinance

Our Group is required to, and has at all times, strictly comply with all
relevant laws and regulations. The Company has complied with those
requirements as set out in Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
when it granted or extended the loans to each of the respective borrower
whose loan was still outstanding as at 31 March 2024.

In addition to the Listing Rules, the Money Lenders Ordinance constituted
a major governance on our Group’s money lending business in Hong
Kong. During the Year, we did not receive any objection from and was not
investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders (currently performed by
the Registrar of Companies) nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the
renewal of the money lenders license.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN
f)  Amount of loan receivables secured by pledge of collaterals (f) REASZNERBSEFNHEKERESHE

9)

h)

12

and guarantees, and nature of the collaterals

DIREHRER

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

—E_E —E-=F
ZA=+-B =A=+—~
HK$’million HK$'million
HERET HBEBAT
Hong Kong money lending business BB E R
— Secured only by shares and properties —EARR NS E VEER 3 3
— Secured only by personal guarantees —EAEAERERER - 9
— Secured only by receivables and properties and ~ — {2 LA FE W R IB RN B4 2 I
personal guarantees EABRIEREA 17 32
— Unsecured and no guarantee — AR R EER - 1
20 45
Maturity profile of loan receivables (0) MEMSBRETIEAER
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
ZA=+-B =A=+—~
HK$’million HK$'million
HWEBRET HEBET
Hong Kong money lending business BRNEER
Due within 1 year 1EAEIH] 20 45
20 45
Mortgage loan and personal loan interest rate (h) HREHMEARRAE

The mortgage loan interest rate is 12% per annum (2023: 12% per
annum). The personal loan interest rate ranges from 12% to 13% per

annum (2023: 10% to 16% per annum).

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

MEERETNERN RS2 (T =
F 0 12%) o EAERFNEREL12%2/13%
(ZZFZ=%F : A10%ZX16%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Reasons for the movements in provision of impairment loss in
the year

The provision for expected credit loss of loans receivables recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for year ended 31 March
2024 are HK$25 million (2023: reversal of provision of HK$26 million).
The provision was due to the loans and interest of approximately HK$62
million being overdue during the Year.

The Company adopted the requirements in respect of ECL assessment set
forth in HKFRS 9 issued by the HKICPA in determining the impairment
loss allowance for its loan receivables. The details of the accounting
policies in respect of the impairment assessment of financial assets
are set out in the Annual Report. The Company has taken into account
the following factors on the impairment assessment for the outstanding
loans and unlisted debt securities due from the connected parties
and independent third parties in accordance with the HKFRS 9: (i) the
probability of default and the likelihood that the borrowers may fail to
pay back the loans. The Company will perform due diligence on the
financial statements and consider the macro-environment and the latest
announcements of the borrowers. The repayment history of the borrowers
will also be taken into account; (ii) the loss given default and the expected
cash shortfall between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The Gompany will consider the value of the collaterals pledged for the
loans, if any; and (iii) forward-looking market data such as gross domestic
product will also impact on the recoverability of the loans. The Company
regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

As at 31 March 2024, the management had engaged an independent
qualified valuer to determine the expected credit losses of the Group’s
loans receivable (the “loans receivable ECL"). In assessing the loans
receivable ECL of the Group, a credit rating analysis of the underlying
debtors was adopted by reviewing the historical accounting information
to estimate the default risk. The Group applied different expected loss
rates to different classes of receivables according to their respective risk
characteristics. In determining the default risk, factors including but not
limited to, the ageing analysis of the receivables, the Group’s internal
assessment of the debtors’ credit worthiness, historical and forecast
occurrence of event of default, existence and valuation of the collaterals,
the relevant regulatory framework and government policies in Hong
Kong and global economic outlook in general and the specific economic
condition of Hong Kong would be considered. The rate of loans receivable
ECL ranged from 34% to 100% (2023: 3% to 61%) depending on the
nature, probability of default and loss of the loans receivable.

TR =F/ZNEFR

(i)

F BER(E  R E B e IR
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TT(ZE_=F  BEEB2FELET)
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WE LR FEIWR T BRAECLFHHIRTE -
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HEERNESR - sl EES MIBUF
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BEFFER - EEATREE : ()2HOMRTEE
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ARRHEP B RRETERRS - A=
BLREREMERANRHAE ° BRA
YR S SL A E B ¢ (I)EHEBR
ARARREI R EER REEA R T RS
WEHEEREZFRERE - ARAKE
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RE B R 2T R E IR AR R B R
1% - WERHE R ARRZ IR ERE S B
TR ATHEAEE R REIEN

RZZTE-_WFE=A=+—H8 BBECZ
BB ERGHEMETAEBRAEK
EREPEEER(ERERBEHREES
B  FAEAEERKEREHEEEE
B BARMBASHERUETEYR
% HHBEBAETEETRSW - &
SERTRERNZ BUGREREESAZ
BB IRESREESELR - &
FEARRKEEZAZREETRILE
WERR Z BRER DT ~ NEBHEBAEA
RS2 REBTE  BEBNEHZELR
JER - MR FERGE  BEEHEE
EERRBFEE - 2B BLEENR
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EEBBEENFU%EI0%(ZE-=
F : 3% ZE61%) © BT EWEFRME - &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DM

Property development business

The Group has property development projects in Cambodia and Malaysia. In
Cambodia, the Council of Ministers approved the project company to establish
a special economic zone with a site area of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh
Kong Province, Cambodia. The project company of the Group shall have the sole
and exclusive right to develop the special economic zone with all the necessary
land use rights, including those for residential, industrial and commercial
development purposes. The project was still in its preliminary stage during the
Year.

The Group has another property development project in Malaysia. The project is
a residential and commercial mixed property development project located at Port
Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia with a site area of 267,500 square meters.
The property is held from the government for a lease term of 99 years expiring on
8 February 2097 for residential and commercial building uses. The project was
still in its preliminary stage during the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$512 million for the Year (2023:
profit at approximately HK$108 million).

Revenue

During the Year, the total revenue of approximately HK$173 million for the Year
(2023: approximately HK$246 million).

Sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental income
from construction machinery and repair and maintenance and
transportation service income

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental
income generated from construction machinery and repair and maintenance
and transportation service income were approximately HK$21 million
(2023: approximately HK$65 million), approximately HK$136 million (2023:
approximately HK$160 million) and approximately HK$6 million (2023:
approximately HK$8 million), respectively. The decrease in revenue for sales of
construction machinery and spare parts was mainly attributable to the decrease in
the demand of brand new cranes manufactured in Japan. The decrease in rental
income was mainly attributable to the decline in occupancy rate of 85% (2023:
90%) as some major construction sites (e.g. Hong Kong International Airport 31
runway and Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel) have been completed.

14  Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR TN

Money lending, asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial services

During the Year, the total revenue from money lending, asset management,
securities brokerage and other financial services were approximately HK$10
million (2023: approximately 13 million), which decreased by approximately
HK$3 million, or approximately 23%. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in loans receivables and decrease in the value and volume of
transactions in securities brokerage.

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), net

The details of the Group’s securities investments and the net fair value losses
recognised for the Year are set out as follows:

Percentage of
Number of ~ shareholdings Number of
sharesheldat ~ at31 March  shares held at
31 March 2023 2023 31 March 2024

RIEZZE WIBZZE RIECME
ZR=t-B =A=t-R =A=+-R
FHROBE ZHEEAL RERARE

HE BEETE  BFELRAEMSRRS

RAFE  WE - EEERE BHFRELMEM
TRRBBRADNBIIBEBTL(CT_=F:
H3AEAETT) BAKAEEETHAIB% - F
B EERRNEEETRD MEFXHEE
MR HERMDFTE

DaFEstE A RS ARR (LAFE
AFEHRSLHARR I ZEMBEZLTF
Hl &R

RAEE  NEE 2 EFRERCHERBHRF
ERRFRF BRI T

Percentage of Fairvalue  Percentage of
shargholdings (losses) for total assets of
al 31 March Fairvalue at31 Fairvalugat31 the Yearat31 the Group at 31
2024 March2023  March2024  March2024  March 2024
RZB-mE
RZBZME WIBCZE ORNCECME O REEE ZRSt-H
ZA=+-B ZA=+-A ZR=1+-H ZOTE (hEREEE
ZEREAL  COFE  ZLFE (FH) #EZEM
(note1)  HK§'million  HK§'million ~ HK$'million
(W)  BRET  BRET  BRET

Name/(Stock Code) &%/ (BAkE)
Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Growpy - WS EREERRAF
Limited (412) #) 1500 0.00% 1500 0.00% = = S S
Thiin Group Holding Liited (2167)  EMMEBHRABR A
(note ) (2187 (i 2) = S 12.79,000 1.71% - 13 () 0.54%
Aliance Iterntional Educaton Leasing RS EIE 4B A E 1A%
Holdings Limited (1563) (note3) IR A1(1563)
(h&E3) 26,642,336 1.78% - - 133 - (108) -
Wealtink A-nnovation Capital Limited ZERI S8 B ARAR
(formerly Wealthking Investments (BT RVE A AR
Limited) (1140) &) (140) 1,980,000 002% 1980000 0.02% 1 - - -
Tisé Equity SP-1 (note ) Tisé Equity SP-1 (Ff34) AER AER NER NER 9 = ) -
Unlsted bt instrument FITREIA NER NER ils iR 15 - (14 -
178 13 (163) 054%
—To—E/CNEER RAERERREEEARAT 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DM

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the monthly
return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the month ended 31
March 2024 of the issuers publicly available on the website of the Stock
Exchange.

2. Zhixin Group Holding Limited (“Zhixin”) and its subsidiaries (“Zhixin Group”)
were principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of ready-mixed
concrete and precast concrete components in the People’s Republic of China.

Pursuant to the annual report of Zhixin for the year ended 31 December
2023, Zhixin recorded revenue of approximately RMB512 million and total
comprehensive income of approximately RMB10 million.

The Group held 12,796,000 shares of Zhixin as at 31 March 2024 (2023: nil).

3. Alliance International Education Leasing Holdings Limited (“Alliance
International”) and its subsidiaries (“Alliance International Group”) were
principally engaged in offering finance and operating lease service and private
higher education services.

The Group did not hold any share of Alliance International as at 31 March
2024 (2023: 26,642,336 shares).

4. Tisé Equity SP-1 is a segregated portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability and registered as a
segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman Islands in March
2021, with an investment objective to provide its investors with long-term
capital appreciation.

During the Year, in relation to fair value loss in financial asset at FVTPL of
approximately HK$183 million, a total of HK$29 million of fair value loss was
related to investment in Tisé Opportunities SPC.

G
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R-ZE-_WFE=A=1+—0  AEEHEEEMR
#912,796,0000% % 10 (ZE = =4F : &) -

3. RBMBEIBRHEHEEERERARTREBBEE]
REKBRAR(REEEREE) X2 RREMH
MERKLEHEREERRSEHE R -

RIZB-MF=A=+—R A&EBREFH
REEER IR (T — =4F : 26,642,336%) °

4. Tisé Equity SP-1/&Tisé Opportunities SPCHJ& 7 1%
BHEE  E2ABRZZEZ—F= AREH
EREERTMK I ERRERAF - Wik
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B8 T B8 EATisé Opportunities SPC.2 3% & 48/ -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWMEDN

Other losses, net

During the Year, other losses, net were approximately HK$174 million
(2023: other gains, net of approximately HK$76 million). Such change was
mainly attributable to loss in fair value change of financial asset at FVTPL of
approximately HK$183 million, gains in fair value change of financial liabilities at
FVTPL of approximately HK$39 million and a provision on liabilities arising from
financial asset at FVTPL of approximately HK$27 million.

During the Year, in relation to fair value losses of financial asset at FVTPL of
approximately HK$183 million, a total of HK$29 million loss was related to
investments in equity funds.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses were approximately HK$58 million
(2023: approximately HK$53 million), representing an increase of approximately
9% as compared with the Previous Year. Among the administrative expenses
incurred during the Year, approximately HK$16 million (2023: approximately
HK$15 million) was related to depreciation and non-cash in nature, and staff
costs of approximately HK$17 million (2023: approximately HK$20 million).

Provision for expected credit loss of financial assets

A provision for expected credit loss of approximately HK$37 million (2023:
reversal of provision of approximately HK$39 million) were recognised during
the Year. It was mainly attributable to the loan receivables overdue.

Share of results of associates

During the Year, the share of loss of associates of approximately HK$325 million
(2023: approximately HK$45 million, loss) was mainly attributable to the sharing
of loss of our investment in Cambodia, where it reflected the change in fair value
of land held by the project company of the Group in Cambodia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Share-based payment expenses RIB%in X RS

No share-based payment for share awards and emolument shares was granted in =~ AEE AR FUARGZM(ZZT-=F : £935H
the Year (2023: approximately HK$3 million). SHEIL RN EERMERY -

Finance costs AE R E

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately HK$20 million (2023: RAAEE » MEK AL BAEEBT(ZTE-=

approximately HK$19 million), representing an increase of approximately HK$1 ~ 4F : K19BEHETT) » BEFEMOIEE BT
million as compared with the Previous Year.

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through other DAFEGEARE{HARMZEAKE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), net (B AFEAEZEARSHARM2EE
RIZEMFIEZLTFEER B8

The details of the listed securities investments and the fair value losses RAAREE - FHBASKREROCHERA T EREE

recognised during the Year are set out below: FFBHEYIAT
Percentage of
Percentageof  Percentage of Fairvalue total assets of
shareholdings at ~ shareholdings at Fair value at Fair value at (Iosses) the Group at
3 March2023 31 March2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 forthe Year 31 March 2024
RZE-mE

RZBZZE  RIBCWE  RIBCWE RCBIME REEEZ ZAZt-H
ZR=t-B ZRZt-B ZRZt-B ZAZt-H OFE  HFRERE
CREEAL ZRRESL  ZRRESK AT (B @EZEMM

Notes HKS'million HK'million HKS'million
(i3 BEER BEET BEET
Name "
Oshidori Intermaional Holdings Limied (622) FEEEMBRABAFEL) o 121% 121% 2 15 () 063%
fesoLie Science GroupLimited (474) B EBHARED
BRATI b 146% 146% 19 {7 0 071%
China Pear! Global Limited RHERERERAA ¢ 6.00% 6.00% % 181 ) 162%
Tonsin Petochemical nvestment Limited ~~ RHAEZRE
BRAE d 1667% 1667% i 3 () 147%
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limted HBEERRAT G 411% 411% 1 g ) 038%
R 28 67 1081%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR TN

Notes:

a. Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) and its subsidiaries
(“Oshidori Group”) were principally engages in investment holdings, tactical
and/or strategical investments, and the provisions of financial services (i)
securities brokerage services; (ii) margin financing services; (iii) placing and
underwriting services; (iv) corporate finance advisory services; (iv) investment
advisory and asset management services; and the provision of credit and
lending services.

Pursuant to the annual report of Oshidori for the year ended 31 December
2023, Oshidori recorded a revenue of approximately HK$60 million and a total
comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,567 million.

The Group held 77,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
77,500,000 shares).

b. Aceso Life Science Group Limited (“ALS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
“ALS Group”) were principally engaged in (i) securities investment;
(ii) provision of securities brokerage and other financial services; (iii)
asset management; (iv) rental and trading of construction machinery; (v)
provision of repair and maintenance and transportation service; (vi) property
development; (vii) property leasing and (viii) money lending;.

Pursuant to ALS annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024,
ALS recorded a revenue of approximately HK$228 million and a total
comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,182 million.

The Group held 107,550,000 shares of ALS as at 31 March 2024 (2023:
107,550,000 shares).

c. China Pearl Global Limited (“CPG”), through its wholly owned subsidiary,
holds a shopping mall in Quanzhou, Fujian Province, the People’s Republic of
China with approximately 97,000 square meters (available lease out area over
65,000 square meters) and 1,089 car parks, and it leases out the complex to
lessees and provides property management services to the shopping mall.

d. Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited was principally engaged in the
development of EcoPark in the South-East Asia which focuses on waste
management and recycling industry with advanced technologies and value
added processes.

e. Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited was principally engaged in the provision
of trading in petroleum and aluminium products.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s current assets and current liabilities were
approximately HK$773 million (31 March 2023: approximately HK$1,379
million) and HK$554 million (31 March 2023: approximately HK$968 million),
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of lowering cost of
funds. Therefore, funding for all its operations have been centrally reviewed and
monitored at the Group level. To manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuations
in interest rates on project, appropriate funding policies will be applied
including the use of bank and other borrowings and placing of new shares. The
management will continue its efforts in obtaining the most privileged rates and
favourable terms to the Group for its financing.

Gearing ratio and indebtedness

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debts divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net
debts. The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) as at 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023 was as follows:

AEEFIENEBBRE EFEESKA
- ARBEAEMAERGRENESHEEE
BEG iR KT - BEEANKEER W
TR - ARBBRAEENORERR
BREERRITREMEEUNREEHRRND - &
BEESEERASENRES HERKEER
KRB MK

REARKERRAE

AEBANEERRBRLEL R /REEEREERNG
B R RREFFERNERREAE - &
RBERIRAMBIRRRP IR 2 [ | A
BERREAE R_T_ME=A=1+—AKk=
T —F-A=t+-HNELEB(BREEE
BELF)WMT

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

—ZS-mF ZE=F

=RA=+—H —A=+—H

HK$’million HK$'million

BEEET BEBT

(audited) (audited)

(B#Fx) (B FEZ)

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 321 304

Corporate note payables ERNTERE

—at FVTPL -UAFEFERBEZ LA

b= 539 578

Total borrowings BEE®E 860 882

Less: cash and cash equivalents B Re RIS FED (100) (105)

Net debts (E 760 777

Total equity k] 1,236 1,864

Total capital BB 1,996 2,641

Gearing ratio BEBMEBLE 38% 29%

The borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately HK$13 million were
carried at fixed interest rates, and approximately HK$308 million were carried at
floating interest rates.

* Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position have been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation. Thus, the comparative figures in the above calculation were
amended accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR TN

As at 31 March 2024, cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
following currencies:

RZZE-NMF=A=+—H8 BHELKRLEE
YR 5| EHEEETHE

HK$’million

BEBET

HK$ BT 84
US$ ETT 5
JPY HIt 9
EUR BT 1
GBP HgE 1
100

As at 31 March 2024, the maturity and currency profile for the Group’s bank and
other borrowings at amortised cost are set out as follows:

RZZE-_NMF=A=+—8 AEEETLHE
HEEIREERAT R EEHE N EEHEESE
T

Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Total

—FR E_F =ERF #st

HK$’million  HK$’million  HK$’million  HK$’million

BRET BRET BRET BRET

HK$ BT 293 19 9 321
Charges on Group’s assets EEEEENRT

As at 31 March 2024, approximately 85% (2023: approximately 96%) of the
Group’s borrowings and other borrowings are secured by (1) corporate note
receivable; (2) property, plant and equipment and (3) investment properties.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and lease receivables bear fixed interest
rates. The Group’s cash at bank balances bear floating interest rates. The Group
also has borrowings and obligation under finance leases and an interest free loan
from a director. Exposure to interest rate risk exists on those balances subject to
floating interest rate when there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements.
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working within an agreed
framework, to ensure that there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are appropriately fixed when necessary.

el 1 B S

RZZF-WNF=ZA=1t—H  XEEH8%(Z
T #96%) 2 EEREMEETIA)E
WERRIE : QW% BEEk&E: ROKRE
ES(S R

FlEEmpE
AEE 2 BEARITF R MAERUGRIAN

ENERETE - AEE ZRITRSEHRIAFEF
KR - ARBNAEEMBERERT &

KE—REZZREEX ~ WARERHNHT
MM RER - ZFEANFBA R B ZEBREE

HHXRER - AEBHBRSERE ZERA
ERENKRER - AR SEYHN KA EE
BT SIERRE - WNEFEREE M EE R

>__%«__<o
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Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, US$, JPY and EUR. The Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments including
trade receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables, borrowings and
obligation under finance leases which are denominated in US$ and EUR. The
Group does not adopt any hedging strategy in the long run but the management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange risk exposure and might enter into
foreign exchange forward contracts on a case-by-case basis. The Group has not
used any hedging contracts to engage in speculative activities.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the organisation
and the external environment with active management participation and effective
internal control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
Major post-balance sheet date events

Subsequent to the end of the Year and up to the date of this report, there was no

significant or important event that affects the business of the Group.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 122 staffs (31 March 2023: 117). The
Group generally recruits its employees from the open market or by referral and
enters into employment contracts with its employees. The Group offers attractive
remuneration packages to the employees. In addition to salaries, the employees
would be entitled to bonuses, subject to the Company’s and employees’
performance. The Group provides a defined contribution to the Mandatory
Provident Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the eligible employees.
The Group also adopted a share award scheme.

The operation staff consists of experienced machinery operators and mechanics.
While such employees are highly demanded in the market, the Group manages to
maintain a relatively stable workforce by continuous recruitment from the market
or through referrals. New employees are required to attend induction courses to
ensure that they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to perform
their duties. In order to promote overall efficiency, the Group also offers technical
trainings to existing employees on the operation of more advanced construction
machinery from time to time. Selected operation staff are required to attend
external trainings which are conducted by the manufacturers of the construction
machines to acquire up-to-date technical skills and knowledge on the products
of the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for the Year (2023: Nil).

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS IN THE YEAR

Material transactions in the Year are as follows:

1. 0On13June 2023 and 29 June 2023, True Well Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an order with Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited for a bond purchase at the consideration of
approximately HK$250 million and HK$101 million, respectively. The
bond purchase constituted a discloseable transaction under the Listing
Rules.
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2. 0n 27 July 2023, Aceso Life Science Group Limited, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, as a vendor, entered into an agreement to dispose of
1,400,088,000 shares (being 18.37% of the entire issued capital) of the
Company at HK$420,026,400, to a subsidiary of Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal
Co. Ltd.* (RE & FZRE RN B R A F]) (“Yitai"), as a purchaser.
Completion took place on 17 October 2023.

The Group had not made other material acquisitions/disposal of subsidiaries
and/or associated companies during the Year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Year was full of opportunities and challenges. The impact caused by
geopolitical tensions, military occupation, high inflation rate continues to
bring unprecedented challenges as it impacts long-term global economic
developments. However, the Group implements prudent business strategies to
establish a diversified business portfolio that can survive the uncertain market
conditions while exploring high-quality asset investment opportunities in major
economies in the world in order to explore the growth potential of profit and
capital value for shareholders and investors of the Company.

The Management also recognised the growing global demand in natural
resources. The Group has put in additional resources in search of investment
opportunities in projects related to natural resources around the world.

The strategic investor, Yitai, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Yitai Share
(Hongkong) Co., Limited, has become a shareholder of the Company which
held 18.37% of the total issued share capital of the Company on 17 October
2023, which represents a good opportunity to introduce a strategic investor to
the Company. Considering the strong investor profile of Yitai, it is expected that
it will boost the investor confidence in the market and may bring in additional
resources and investment opportunities to the Company and it will broaden the
shareholder base of the Company on the other hand.

The B shares of Yitai are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
900948) and its H shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and were subsequently voluntarily withdrawn from listing on 11 August
2023 (stock code before withdrawal of listing: 3948).

Yitai was ranked 221 in the 2023 Fortune China 500 listed companies and ranked
268 in the 2023 Fortune China 500, published in July 2023. According to All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce (P ZE2H T %84 =), Yitai
was ranked 188 in the Top 500 Chinese Private Enterprise (4F B R {250058)
in 2022. Yitai was also ranked 16 in the Top 50 Chinese Coal Enterprise (F°
FE IR 1D 3£5058) in 2022 according to The China National Coal Association (FF
Bl o 2 1€, Yitai is the largest local coal enterprise in the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region and one of the large-scale coal enterprises in the PRC.

* For identification purposes only
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The principal businesses of Yitai include coal production and operation (which
directly owns and control 10 coal mines with resources reserve at 4,336
million tonnes and minable reserve at 2,126 million tonnes), rail transportation
operations (controls 3 operating railway line for the coal mines), coal-related
chemical operations and other operations.

According to the 2023 annual report of Yitai, it recorded audited revenue
of approximately RMB53 billion and net profit attributable to owners of
approximately RMB7.7 billion for the year ended 31 December 2023 and it
recorded net assets of approximately RMB46.4 billion and total assets of
approximately RMB85.4 billion as at 31 December 2023. The annual production
of commodity coal of Yitai was approximately 51.7 million tonnes and sold 67.8
million tonnes of coals during 2023.

Looking forward, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly uphold its risk
management policies, strengthen its capital management and implement
stringent cost control measures to uphold its profitability during downturn of
economy.

Money lending and financial services business

The Group will continue to expand the clients base and establish a strong track
record in order to strengthen the businesses of corporate financial advisory
services, asset management services and streamline the client base and gradually
phasing out the money lending business in the coming future. For the securities
brokerage services business, the Group will explore the involvement in the share
placement activities to enhance its revenue stream.

Property development business

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an important stop on the
ancient Maritime Silk Road and an important location for China to promote
the “One Belt, One Road” construction in the 21st century. Now Cambodia is
also preparing an economic transformation, with many business opportunities
emerging. Meanwhile, Cambodia has a decent investment environment and
the market is highly liberalised and internationalised, attracting the attention
and injection of global capital. While taking part in the development potential
of the land development project, the Group is also exploring more business
opportunities to invest in more business sectors in Cambodia and to share the
development dividend of this high growing emerging market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular countries in Asia. In
recent years, Malaysia's GDP has continued to rise, which proves that Malaysia
has strong investment potential. The Group is also deploying and looking for
local high-quality projects, following the layout along the “One Belt, One Road”
regions.

Looking forward, the Group remains confident in its existing businesses and
will continue to monitor the performance in order to maximise the returns to its
shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management of the
Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director on 28
February 2017 and co-chief executive officer on 1 May 2020 (re-designated as
chief executive officer on 30 June 2020). Mr. Fok is a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in Business Administration from The
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fok involves in the formulation of strategic plans
for the business development of the Group, fund raising activities and potential
merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr. Fok is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries).
Mr. Fok currently serves as an executive director and the chief financial officer of
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (Stock code: 474), the controlling shareholder
of the Company, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, aged 56, was appointed as executive Director on 24
September 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Gompany.
Mr. Tang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in aerospace engineering from
Syracuse University and has been serving the Group since his graduation. Mr.
Tang is responsible for the overall strategic management and development of
the Group’s business operations, marketing and business development and
finance and administration. Mr. Tang was appointed as the director of Chim Kee
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in June 1989 and
took over the leadership of the Group in May 1994. Mr. Tang has over 30 years
of experience in rental and trading of construction machines.
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Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Ausiralia), aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 February 2017. Dr. Ou is a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Dr.
Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering from
The University of Western Australia, Australia. Dr. Ou also holds two Bachelor
of Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural Engineering
respectively. Dr. Ou has over 30 years of professional engineering and
management experience in civil and industrial engineering areas both in Australia
and China, including residential and commercial high-rise buildings as well as
projects in oil & gas, mining and infrastructure industries. Dr. Ou had been a
senior staff member in the world’s leading energy & resource firms including
Kellogg Brown & Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons
Pty Ltd., as well as Sedgman Ltd., which is specialized in coal processing and
handling plants. Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive director of Rey
Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX focusing on exploration and
developing energy resources in Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key
energy and resource projects around the world such as acting as the Lead Civil
and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar project, Rio Tinto iron
ore Dove Siding expansion project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline
project, Yemen LNG Project (in the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia
Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou was
also an officer at Western Australia government agency from 2003 to 2006. Dr.
Ou also has extensive experience and network in China. He was the general
manager and the chief engineer of Fujian Liming Construction Company* (&
A ZRAAEE T 22 3)) and deputy general manager of Fuzhou Henli Real
Estate Development Pty Ltd (f& /1 = 2255 thZE R Z A BR 22 7) from 1993 to
1997. He was a guest professor for Inner Mongolia University (U5 &5 A E2)
and Inner Mongolia University of Science & Technology (R 5 & Rl A E2)
in China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an executive director of Aceso Life Science Group
Limited (stock code: 474), the controlling shareholder of the Company, whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Lin, aged 63, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 6 October
2020. Mr. Xu is a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Xu holds a Bachelor's degree in Laws from Xian Political College, China and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Business Administration from Capital University of
Economics and Business in China.
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Mr. Xu is currently a senior vice-president and president of China of Chow Tai
Fook Enterprises Limited and General Manager of Chow Tai Fook Investment
Limited*. He has been engaged in economic management for a long time. He
was once the director of the Taxation Department and the Customs Department
of the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, vice-minister of the
Economic Department of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government,
minister of the Administration and Finance Department, Hong Kong business
development director of CITIC Limited and the chairman of Kaisa Financial Group
(Hong Kong) Company Limited. With the exposure to several positions, Mr. Xu
has solid foundation in economic theory and rich experience in management.
Mr. Xu currently serves as a non-executive Director of Goldstone Capital Group
Limited (stock code: 1160) and an independent non-executive director of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 391), both companies are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Xu was an independent non-executive
director of China United Venture Investment Limited (formerly known as Glory
Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 8159, whose shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange) from March 2022 to December 2022. He was also
an executive director and executive vice-chairman of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 620) from April 2020 to February 2021,
an independent non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (stock code:
1041) from March 2020 to July 2020 and an executive director of Zhaobangji
Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 1660) from QOctober 2019 to March
2020, whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu
was also the chairman of Yunnan Jinggu Forestry Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600265) from December 2020 to March
2024.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 February 2017. Mr. Mak is the chairman of each of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the China University
of Political Science and Law with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is
a legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr.
Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr. Mak currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of Talent Property Group
Limited (stock code: 760) and Aceso Life Science Group Limited (stock code:
474, the controlling shareholder of the Company), whose shares are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Mak served as an independent non-
executive director of each of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose
shares were delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from
8 February 2021) from April 2017 to February 2021 and Up Energy Development
Group Limited (stock code: 307, whose shares were delisted from the main
board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from April 2017 to
January 2022.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEEBEREAS

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 March 2017. Mr. Li is a member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Li has obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University; Postgraduate Certificate in Business Administration
from University of Leicester in England, and Master Degree in Executive Master
of Business Administration (EMBA) at Fudan University in PRC. Mr. Li is the
executive director of First Shanghai Securities Limited (“First Shanghai”). Prior
to joining First Shanghai, he was the managing director of South China Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 619), whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li is a chartered wealth manager of the Chartered Wealth Manager
Institute and the director of the Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers. Mr.
Li has held various senior positions including director of corporate development
and vice president of corporate planning and development in financial institutes
over his 20 years of experience in the financial industry.

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (alias Abraham Razack), aged 78, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 15 October 2020.
Mr. Shek is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Shek
graduated from the University of Sydney and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree
and a Diploma in Education. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in 1995
and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and the Gold Bauhinia Star by the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR”) in
2007 and 2013 respectively. Mr. Shek was a member of the HKSAR Legislative
Council representing the Real Estate and Construction Functional Constituency
from 2000 to 2021. He was also a member of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) from
January 2017 to December 2022. He is currently a member of the Court and
Council of The University of Hong Kong and an honorary member of Court of
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, a Court member of City
University of Hong Kong and a Court member of Hong Kong Metropolitan
University.
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EERSREEEBEEAE

Mr. Shek is an independent non-executive director of China Resources Building
Materials Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1313), Chuang’s China Investments
Limited (stock code: 298), Chuang’s Consortium International Limited (stock
code: 367), Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited (stock code: 120), CSI
Properties Limited (stock code: 497), Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(stock code: 3699), Far East Consortium International Limited (stock code: 35),
ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 199), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1125), Shin Hwa World Limited (formerly known as Landing International
Development Limited) (stock code: 582), NWS Holdings Limited (stock code:
659), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617) and Alliance International
Education Leasing Holdings Limited (formerly known as International Alliance
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 1563), all being listed public companies
in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment
Trust (stock code: 2778)) and Regal Portfolio Management Limited (the manager
of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881)), both trusts are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr Shek is an independent non-executive director of
PAO Bank Limited (formerly known as Ping An OneConnect Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited).

During the last three years, Mr. Shek was an independent non-executive director
of each of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 47, retired on 2
June 2020), SIM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880, retired on 28 May 2021),
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212, privatised on 20
December 2022) and Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2007, resigned on 15 March 2024). He was also an executive director and
Chairman of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 530, whose shares
were delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 31
October 2023).
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EERSREEEBEREAS

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 July 2021. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the
audit committee and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
in Accounting and Gomputer Information Systems. He is a fellow member of
each of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practising
Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, investment and financial
management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of each of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock
code: 871), Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 3991) and Aceso
Life Science Group Limited (stock code: 474, the controlling shareholder of the
Company), whose securities are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive director of each of Fujian Nuoqi
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted from the main board
of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021) from April 2017 to
February 2021, Grand Peace Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8108, whose
shares were delisted from GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from 27 August
2021) from March 2021 to August 2021 and Up Energy Development Group
Limited (stock code: 307, whose shares were delisted from the main board of
the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from April 2017 to January
2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on 26
August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance
and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior partner of Raymond
Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own solicitors’ firm, he has
been a partner of F. Zimmern & Co., Solicitors & Notaries from July 2012 to
August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained his Master of Laws from
University College London.

* For identification purposes only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining high
standard of corporate governance as the Board believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental in enhancing the shareholder value
and safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders.
Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound corporate governance principles
that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules, except for the deviation from the code provision C.2.1.

Under code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual in order to
ensure that there is clear division of responsibilities between the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive of the Company. The Company has not appointed
a chairman and the Board provides leadership for the Company. Having
considered the business operation of the Group at the material time, it is believed
that the Board, which consists of experienced professionals, can function
effectively as a whole, while the executive Directors along with other members
of senior management of the Company are capable of overseeing the day-to-day
management of the Group under the strong corporate governance structure in
place.

Nevertheless, the Company understands the importance of compliance with the
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code and will continue to review the structure
from time to time and consider appointing a chairman/chairlady of the Board as
and when appropriate.

The Group commits to continuously improving its corporate governance practices

by periodic review to ensure that the Group continues to meet the requirements
of the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Company regarding Directors’
transactions of the listed securities of the Company. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code and its code of conduct during the Year.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business operations
of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees the operations and
monitors the financial performance of the Group. The management is delegated
with power and authority by the Board for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group. The management is accountable to the Board for the
Company’s overall operation.

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, approving the annual development
plan and budget, monitoring financial and operating performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system and supervising and managing the
management’s performance.

Regarding the Group’s corporate governance, during the Year, the Board has, in
accordance with the terms of reference, performed the following duties:

° determining and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the Directors and employees; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this corporate governance report.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group. The Board gives clear directions to the management as to the matters that
must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Group
by the management.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors.

AL

FIFATEERIRBIIFATES ©

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EFZREZHA

Executive Directors:
BMiTES:

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
EEEEE

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
BB e A4

Dr. Zhiliang Qu, /. (ustralia)
B L - creroem

Non-executive Director:
FERITES :

Mr. Xu Lin

ST A

Independent Non-executive Directors:

WIERMITESE :
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
BRRSESE

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot
X i

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
VY-t 5

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
PR 88 28 55 4

Member of the Nomination Committee
REZEENXE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

STMEEENE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FHEZEBEKE

Member of the Audit Committee

ERLZEENE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

RAEEEEE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

YFWNEEEXFE

Member of the Audit Committee

BERLZEENE

Member of the Nomination Committee

RELZEENKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEENE

Member of the Audit Committee
BEREEENE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
BERLZEEXF

Member of the Nomination Committee

RBREBENE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FMEZEEKE
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, there was no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
Throughout the Year, there were at least three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board and the number of independent non-executive Directors
represents at least one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which could effectively exercise independent
judgment. The Company has also complied with rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules which stipulates that one of the independent non-executive Directors must
possess appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In compliance with the CG Code, the independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-gxecutive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent under the Listing Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other, and is subject
to termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”).

By virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director. Any
Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-glection.

Pursuant to code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. At each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being will retire from office by rotation. However, if the
number of Directors is not a multiple of threg, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third shall be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors
who shall retire in each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-glection or appointment but as between persons who became
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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Supply of and access to information

All Board members have separate and independent access to the Company’s
management to fulfill their duties, and upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances and at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors also have access to the company secretary
of the Company who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Board meetings are structured
S0 as to encourage open discussion, frank debate and active participation by the
Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board with such information
and explanations as are necessary to enable the Directors to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board. Queries
raised by the Directors are answered fully and promptly. Meeting agenda
accompanied by relevant Board/Board committee papers are distributed to the
Directors/Board committee members with reasonable notice in advance of the
Board/Board committee meeting. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees, which recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached thereat, including any concerns raised or
dissenting views expressed by any Director, are kept by the company secretary of
the Company and open for inspection by the Directors.

Liability insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities in
respect of any legal action which may be taken against the Directors arising out
of its corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ continuing professional development program

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code provision C.1.4 of
the CG Code during the Year. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has arranged for, and provided fund for, training in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses during the Year and
relevant training materials have been distributed to all the Directors.
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Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, as and when
required by particular circumstances. During the Year, the Directors’ attendance
of the Board/Board committees meetings is set out as follows:

ESERERXE

Exexfafes KON TEERK
BARERAHE®E -RAFE EFHFE
FE/ESRESGRLBERAINMT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEERAY  ETEERN
Executive Audit Nomination  Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee megtings
E¥e WTBRE ENWEAE REERE  FMERE T N |
Total number of meetings BERERY g 1 3 1 3 1
Executive Directors: UrEs:
M. Fok Chi Tak EXERE 9 1010 NATER (i NA T EF (i
M. Tang Yiu Chi James il e 89 B0 NATER  NARER  NATER i
Or. Zhiliang O 2 Austay BiEREL  merom 9 o NATER  NATER 38 i
Non-executive Director: FATES:
r. YuLin A 8 NANEE AR ER AR ER 38 n
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUk4TES:
Mr Mak Y Tong FRELE 9% NATER 38 i 3B i
M. Li ChiKeung Elot FRELE 9% NATER 38 i 3B i
Wr. Shek LaiHim Abrafiam REFLE 9% NANEE B NAMEE NANBE !
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Rt " NATER 38 i 3B i
BOARD COMMITTEES EXZRT

The Board has established (i) Executive Committee, (i) Audit Committee, (iii)
Remuneration Committee, and (iv) Nomination Gommittee with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, which explain their respective roles
and the authority delegated to them by the Board, are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice and other assistance under
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

BEESERI)RNITEES ; (Il B%RZE
(IVFMEES  R(VIRREES  URTE
EEHE BT ET  FTHZESRREREZE
CEEZHESEMANSESANACRES
CERTREZEN  ERBESETNARQR
MRS  EELESRRETEE
BABITERE  WEASEBER N SKEL
BEXTARERAE BN TEREMHE  mEB
FHRA R E)ESE -

“IoZH—NFEFR RAEERERREEEERAT 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 October 2015 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs D.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises of four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, Mr. Li
Chi Keung Eliot and Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group. It also acts as an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters within
the scope of the group audit. Meetings shall be held at least twice a year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year and
up to the date of this report included:

(@)  reviewing the audited accounts and final results announcement for the
Previous Year and the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 September 2023;

(b)  reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and ensuring compliance with the relevant accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and other statutory requirements;

(c)  reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems;

(d)  meeting with the external auditors to go through any significant audit issues
or key findings noted during the audit of the Group’s final results for the
Year;

(e)  reviewing the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group; and

() making recommendations on the re-appointment, remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
management. The work and findings of the Audit Committee have been reported
to the Board. During the Year, there was no issue brought to the attention of the
management and/or the Board which were of significant importance to require
disclosure in this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 October 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph E.1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises of five members, namely Mr. Mak
Yiu Tong (chairman), Dr. Zhiliang Ou, Mr. Xu Lin, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are, amongst other things, to make recommendations to the Board on the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management and on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No individual Director
was allowed to be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
Year included:

(@)  reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration;

(b)  assessing performance of executive Directors;

(c)  reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
senior management with reference to, among others, the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, their merits and contributions; and

(d)  reviewing the share schemes of the Company.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the Board with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed under Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23 October 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.3 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises of four members, namely Mr. Mak
Yiu Tong (chairman), Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Li
Chi Keung Eliot. The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Directors.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report included:

(@)  reviewing and discussing the Board’s structure, size and composition,
diversity as well as the competence, experience, academic background
and qualification of its members;

(b)  reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-appointment of retiring
Directors at annual general meetings; and

(c)  assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from Board

members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may also propose

candidates who are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

e business experience relevant and beneficial to the Company, taking into
account the need for diversity of the Board, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills;

e character and integrity;

e accomplishments in personal careers;

° independence;

° willingness to devote sufficient time to discharge duties as a Board
member;

and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The

Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary of such board
diversity policy, the measurable objectives set for implementing such board
diversity policy, and the progress of achieving those objectives are set out below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing the Board's composition, the diversity of the Board has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and potential contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring achievement of the
measurable objectives as set out in the board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are well experienced in the construction industry,
investment or finance businesses. Some of them are professionals in project
management, finance, accounting or legal with extensive experience.

In view of the present scale and complexities of the Group’s operations and the
nature of the risks and challenges it faces, the Nomination Committee considers
the Company has achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity among the existing Board members.

All Board members are male. The Company will appoint at least a director of
different gender on or before 31 December 2024.

Among the 122 staffs of the Group, 106 are male and 16 are female.

el 1 B S

EFESTILHE

ARREHMEZTELTILBR - HRESS
ZHAEBRBE ARTHREZTSZ T
RMBREZAFHERRIERNZFERZER
ol e

ESESTLRRIRE

RERAFESERR  AARREEEER
B&EZ b A FFHEDIRR B RN FER
RZBRIE ARBERIESFENEES
B-ERZITEEREESEZTIL BEE
TRRER - Fik - MIERBEER  EEXK
B BEEARAE - EEEMAZEHUAA
A ARA - WHEEBAEFURBIRTRD
BLREEEZ T2 -

AR EER

FEABBR-RZINZTBRBRELE B
BARRER - Fi MERBEES - %
R REER AR o R ABZ REE KA
REFSEHZIBERRMERE °

Ex
REZBECEARERENEREFTE S LILR
R ZAIFTERRR

EEESRTL

RBEEESNEBERER  REIMBEKS
HmEREE - MoK EREBEZRR AR
IR B R EEREEAL -

ENAEBEBLL 2 REGRBENEREE A
LEMHEBRRREKBME  REZEER
R ERAREFENEZME  ARRDER
REE - K8 MBRZTCZIREFE -
PMEEEEXRENRIL - REER T M
Ft-_A=t+—RzxZAEwEd -2 TR
RIHESE -

SERBINEHET - HR106B2SF1E - 16875
e

RAEBRERREEEERAT 4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board would consider, inter
alia, the following factors before declaring or recommending dividend to the
Shareholders:

e the Company's actual and expected financial performance;
e refained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

° the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by any
contract entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries;

e the Company’s expected working capital requirements and future
gxpansion plans;

e the general economic conditions, business cycle of the Company and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; and

° any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations, including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of
Association.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount or at all
for any given period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with the statutory requirements
and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities
to ensure that the financial statements for the Group are published in a timely
manner. The management has provided the Board with monthly updates and
sufficient information for the Board to develop and maintain a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects. The Directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong
Kong, which reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the Board and management with an
appropriate consideration to materiality. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquires, confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
gvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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The accounting systems and internal control of the Group are designed to prevent
any misappropriation of the Group’s assets, any unauthorized transactions as
well as to ensure the accuracy of the accounting records and the true and fairness
of the financial statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports, other
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report contained in this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The total fees paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the external auditors during the Year are as follows:
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Auditor’s remuneration ZBEMEN &
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31 March 2024
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HK$’ million
HEET
Audit services 2R
Non-audit services IEEIZ RIS -
Total FE 1
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS RIEEE R NEREIE

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control and risk management system, which is designed to provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information and records or against financial losses
or fraud. The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well
defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and is reviewed and enhanced
by the management at regular intervals.
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The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate  ~ AEBBE OEF IR TFRIFOEEAER LA
governance practice and internal control system. The Company has in place an ~ EBESHE&IE - A AR HIE —EEHE B Lt
integrated framework of internal control which is consistent with the principles Al A& BT 3845 [ 70 30 85 470 £ [\ [y 5 78 — L AR 48
outlined in the “Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework” & IFrSi/R B 2 42 A N EPESIRIEZR - FHI5 R a0
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as illustrated T~ :

below:
Monitoring ° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
ER FEAT L B IE 2 RIR
° Internal audits performed by internal audit department
RN EREIZ B PIEITA BT
Information and Communication ° Information in sufficient details is provided to the appropriate person in a timely
Ei R iBE manner
KEREEATRETDFRZER
° Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers and
external parties
BUAEBALARERS - HEFREIN T ZERERSB
° Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties
FAL AR AR N BT R BERE
Control Activities ° Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out
EREE FIE AT BRAITEEES ZBR M ER
° Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties, authorization,
physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.
EREHEERERN BESTI  BE EYVRE - THE
il RS
Risk Assessment ° Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
R B R achievement of the Company’s objectives are performed regularly
SR - FERIEFEERARAFERZ T ERMBAE
e Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified
FEVEE1TEIAE IR AT R 2 B ks
Control Environment ° Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high ethical
ERRIR standards to the staff are established

RUREBERE TEERARNRBNERBERSEEEE

e QOrganizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff
concerned
% I AR B TEE N R EE RAER

° Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority are set
G SUNGIES DS S haliiae 3l
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The internal audit department is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and
risk management system, reporting regularly the results to the Board through
the Audit Committee and making recommendations to the relevant department
management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational, compliance controls, various functions for risk
management and physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit Committee during
the Audit Committee meetings and had been delivered to all Directors for review.

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit Committee meetings the key
findings identified by the Company’s external auditors in respect of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management and discussed findings and actions
or measures taken in addressing those findings. The Company considers the
internal control systems and risk management were effective during the Year.
No material issues on the Group’s internal control system and risk management
have been identified by the Group’s internal audit department and the Company’s
external auditors during the Year which required significant rectification
measures.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on 26
August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance
and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior partner of Raymond
Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own solicitors’ firm, he has
been a partner of F. Zimmern & Co., Solicitors & Notaries from July 2012 to
August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained his Master of Laws from
University College London.

During the Year, Mr. Siu has received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing
them to the company secretary of the Company, who is responsible for forwarding
communications relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions and inquiries, to the senior management of the Company:

By post

Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F

Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

By email
Gavin.Kwai@acesogrouphk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the Shareholders’
meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL MEETINGS
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever it
thinks fit to convene extraordinary general meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company by mail at Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders shall follow Article 64 of the Articles of Association for including a
resolution at any general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out
above in the paragraph headed “Procedures for convening general meetings by
shareholders”.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors recognize the importance of long-term support from the
Shareholders. The Company attaches great priority to establish effective
communication with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its announcements, circulars, annual and interim reports
and other corporate communications and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website at http://www.haotianint.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event as
it provides an opportunity for direct communication between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external auditors will
endeavour to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
Shareholders’ queries. All the Shareholders are given at least twenty one (21)
days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage Shareholders’
participation.

The Board conducted a review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy during the Year and is satisfied with the
results thereof given the above measures.

The Board will review regularly the Group’s operation and corporate governance
of the Company in order to ensure compliance with the Articles of Association,
the laws of the Cayman Islands and to protect the interest of its shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the Year. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is principally
engaged in the following principal activities:

(@)  the construction machinery business, serving primarily the construction
sector in Hong Kong, including (i) rental of construction machinery; (ii)
trading of construction machinery and spare parts; and (iii) provision of
machinery transportation services;

(b)  the provision of financial services, conducting: (i) Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
requlated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and (ii)
money lending activities; and

(c)  the property development.

Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 72 to 73. No dividend
was paid or proposed by the Company during the Year, nor has any dividend
been proposed by the Directors since the end of the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the Year and the discussion
on the Group’s future business development are set out in the sections headed
“Director’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the key
financial performance indicators are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Group are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s relationships with key stakeholders,
environmental policies and performance and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are as follows:

Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group’s success depends on the support from key stakeholders which
comprise employees, customers and subcontractors and suppliers.
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Employees

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets of the Group.
The objective of the Group’s human resource management is to reward and
recognise performing staff by providing a competitive remuneration package and
implementing a sound performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives,
and to promote career development and progression by appropriate training and
providing opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

Customers

The major customers include construction work companies engaged in either
public or private construction projects in Hong Kong which require particular
types of construction machinery at different stages of their projects. We have
established long-term business relationship with some of the customers for over
10 years. The sales and marketing team maintains contacts with these customers
regularly to understand their needs and to provide relevant information to support
their projects.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The major suppliers include manufacturers and service providers of construction
machinery, oil companies, and other third-party service companies for
maintenance, transportation and assembly/disassembly services engaged by us.
We proactively communicate with the suppliers to ensure they are committed
to delivering high-quality and sustainable products and services. We will select
suppliers from the pre-approved lists of subcontractors and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We believe that our business also depends on our ability to meet our customers’
requirements in respect of safety, quality and environmental aspects. To meet our
customers’ requirements on safety, quality and environmental aspects, we have
established safety, quality and environmental management systems. Through the
systematic and effective control of our operations, compliance with safety, quality
and environmental requirements can be further assured. Further discussions on
the Group’s environmental policy and performance are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which is available on the Group’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied in all
material respect with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may affect the
operation results and financial conditions of the Group through risk management
process, which includes the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money lending
business

As at 31 March 2024, the outstanding loan receivables of the money lending
business of the Group (net of impairment) was approximately HK$20 million,
representing approximately 1% of the total assets of the Group. Any delay or
default in payment of the loans will not have an adverse impact on the Company’s
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the Company.

To manage such risk, the Company requires borrowers to provide appropriate
security and closely monitors the loan receivable collection cycle from time to
time to get full collection of the outstanding amounts due from borrowers. The
Company will assess and decide to enforce the security provided by borrowers or
take legal actions as appropriate. All exposures are subject to regular review and
assessment for possible impairment.

Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through subsidiaries with
appropriate licenses to conduct regulated activities and money lending. During
the course of providing such financial services, the Group would be exposed to
compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability, being subjected to regulatory
proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss of property or business reputation
arising from violation of laws, regulations and rules due to the operation and
management or practices of the Group or its personnel. In order to effectively
control compliance risk, the Group has put in place a practicable compliance
management system and provided resources and support to develop lawful and
compliance operations of the Group.

Financial risk
The Group’s diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks, such as
market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details of the financial risk

management objectives and policies are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14a to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 77 to 78.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had reserves amounted to approximately
HK$1,150 million available for distribution.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 196. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
Dr. Zhiliang OIJ, J.P. (Australia)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lin
Mr. Wei Bin (resigned on 1 April 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Information regarding directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
will retire from office by rotation as Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The aforesaid Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re- election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non- executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other, and is subject
to termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-glection at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed in the section “Share Incentive Scheme” below, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Gompany, or had
exercised any such right during the Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme

Details of the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Incentive Scheme” below and note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in shares of the Company (“the Shares”), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFQ, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix C3 to Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying Shares of the

RELFRBRRERMKNZHFE

Company
Number of Percentage of

Shares held shareholding
Name of Director/ $E®E (Note 1)
chief executive Personal interests  Nature of interest Total interests BRERSH
EE TETBRARHES BAEE H#HIMHE HER (FF5ET)
Fok Chi Tak (Note 2) 60,975,610  Beneficial owner 60,975,610 0.80%
EEE(FIE2) EnEAA
Xu Lin (Note 3) 4,146,342  Beneficial owner 4,146,342 0.05%
SRR (F97E3) EnEAA
Notes: BI5E

1.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,621,152,835
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2024.

These Shares are shares granted to Mr. Fok Chi Tak under the Share Award
Scheme.

These Shares are shares to be issued and allotted to Mr. Xu Lin as part of his
emolument as a Director pursuant to the terms of his service contract.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors and chief executive had any interests or short positions in any
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

94

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

1. FREJEBRER-F-_NF=A=1+—HE
BATRRD /37,621,152,835 85T & ©

2. ZEBROHAREBRMHREFIRXTESREL

Z D

3. ZERMHARBIFMTEZRB A QIRKIEE
REEEME A0 BITALRE T RN

REXHEEN R-_F_HF=ZA=+—
A BESHAN EFRETBTRAEHER

AR A REAEAREER (& R E S RS K
FISEXVER) < Bfn ~ MHEAR D ERET AR

BRIEFESF RAEEIIE3B2MEEAMFEZ LM
HBRBRAET R ME RG] REERZFT 2 #Ew
jZ/AE'. °

Annual Report 2023/24



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of
the Company, the following persons (other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company), who had interests or short positions in the Shares, the underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be disclosed pursuant to
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to

therein, were as follows:
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Number of Percentage of
Number of underlying shareholding
Name of Shareholder Sharesheld  Shares held  Capacity/Nature of interest Total interest (Note 1)
FRFHER BEgoL
BRke 2R R A BWE S #aKE HEs (izE1)
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (“ALS”) (Note 2) 2,211,613,259 —  Interests of controlled corporation ~ 2,211,613,259 29.02%
EHEnrREEER AR (58] (i) REHEEER
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited 2,211613,259 - Interests of controlled corporation ~ 2,211,613,259 29.02%
( “Asia Link") (Note 2)
DHAIZERARR A28 ) (i) REHEEER
Li Shao Yu (Note 2) 2,211,613,259 - Interests of controlled corporation ~ 2,283,397,259 29.96%
ZHF () REHEEER
71,784,000 Beneficial owner
BRBEEA
China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCBC") (Note 3) 1,458,116,000 - Security interest 1,458,116,000 19.13%
B RITIRG BR AR ([ ERT)) (E3) RiRER
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“CHIL") (Note 3) 1,458,116,000 - Interests of controlled 1,458,116,000 19.13%
PEESREBREALNA(FRES] () REHEEER
Soaring Wealth Ventures Limited (“Soaring Wealth”) (Note 4) 500,000,000 — Beneficial owner 500,000,000 6.56%
Soaring Wealth Ventures Limited (“Soaring Wealth") (i £4) BaBEBA
Lin Yuan (Note 4) 500,000,000 - Interests of controlled corporation 891,264,000 11.69%
i (FaT4) REHEEER
391,264,000 - Beneficial owner
BRBERA
Su Junhao 578,359,524 — Beneficial owner 578,359,524 7.58%
HER EREAA
YITAI SHARE (HONGKONG) CO., LIMITED (“YITATHK") (Note 5)  1,400,088,000 - Interests of controlled 1,400,088,000 18.37%
FRRG)EBERAR(FREED (D) REHEEER
Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Co., Ltd. (“Yitai") (Note 5) 1,400,088,000 — Beneficial owner 1,400,088,000 18.37%
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Notes:

1. All interests stated are long positions. The percentage of shareholding is
calculated on the basis of 7,621,152,835 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2024.

2. Ms. Li Shao Yu is beneficially interested in a total of 2,283,397,259 Shares,
among which, 71,784,000 Shares are held by Ms. Li as beneficial owner, and
2,211,613,259 Shares are held through Asia Link, which is wholly-owned by
Ms. Li. Asia Link's interest in 2,211,613,259 Shares are held through ALS,
which is 45.48% owned by Asia Link. Among ALS’s interest in 2,211,613,259
Shares, (i) 599,912,000 Shares are held through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Win Team Investments Limited and Hao Tian Management
(China) Limited; (ii) 1,540,272,688 Shares are held through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Win Team Investments Limited and Hao Tian Management (Hong
Kong) Limited; and (iii) 71,428,571 Shares are held through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Guo Guang Limited and Hao Tian Finance Company Limited.

3. CCBC, through Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, which is its indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary, holds the security interest in those 1,458,116,000 Shares.
CHIL held 57.11% of the issued shares in CCBC.

4, Ms. Lin Yuan is beneficially interested in a total of 891,264,000 Shares,
among which, 391,264,000 Shares are held by Ms. Lin as beneficial owner,
and 500,000,000 Shares are held by Soaring Wealth which is wholly-owned
by Ms. Lin.

5 Yitai, through YITAI HK, which is its wholly-owned subsidiary, beneficially
interested in a total of 1,400,088,000 Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 23 October 2015 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, under the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for
the Shares. Eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme, amongst others,
include any executives, any employee (including proposed, full-time or part-
time employee), a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director), a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the
Company and its subsidiaries and an associate of any of the aforementioned
PErsons.

The Board shall set out in the offer the terms on which the option is to be granted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at 10 December 2015, being the date of the
listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company may
seek approval of its shareholders in general meeting for refreshing such 10%
limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue for the time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
(as such term as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Directors who or whose associates is the grantee of an option).
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of such
grant, such further grant of the options shall be subject to prior approval of the
Shareholders with such person and his associates abstaining from voting in
favour of general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days inclusive
of the day on which such offer is made. Options granted shall be taken up
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration for the grant of option. Subject to the
restrictions under the Listing Rules, options may be exercised at any time from
the date which option is deemed to be granted and accepted and expired on
the date as the Board in its absolute discretion determine and which shall not
exceeding a period of 10 years from the date on which the share options are
accepted but subject to the provisions for early termination thereof contained in
the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price is determined by the Board, and shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 October 2015 and will expire on 22 October 2025. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme was 100,000,000 Shares, representing approximately
1.32% of the issued shares of the Company. The total number of options
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme was 100,000,000 Shares
and 100,000,000 Shares as at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024, respectively,
representing approximately 1.32% of the issued shares of the Company.

During the Year, there was no share options granted, exercised, lapsed, forfeited
or cancelled.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 24 April 2020. Unless
early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date (i.e. 24 April
2020) and will expire on 23 April 2030. The remaining life of the share award
scheme is 6 years.

The Share Award Scheme serves as an incentive measure to recognise the
contributions by selected participants and to provide them with incentives in
order to retain them; and to attract the right talents for promoting the future
development and expansion of the Group, with a view to achieving the objective
of increasing the value of the Group by motivating the participants to strive for
the continual operation and future development and expansion of the Group and
aligning the interests of the participants and the shareholders of the Company.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, participants include any
director (including executive director, non-executive director and independent
non-executive director), employee (whether full time or part time), officer, agent
or consultant of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its affiliates or
any other person as determined by the Board, whom the Board considers, in its
absolute discretion, has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

There was no maximum entitlement
Scheme.

of each participant under the Share Award

No price shall be payable on acceptance of the awards.

The Board has resolved to grant (i) a total of 196,274,929 award Shares to
selected grantees who are not connected with the Company (the “Non-connected
Grantee(s)”) on 24 April 2020; and (ii) a total of 65,475,610 award Shares to
selected grantees who are connected with the Company on 29 June 2020. The
award Shares granted under the scheme are subject to a vesting scale in three
equal tranches.

T =F/"NFFR

Bk {7 € W&t 8
ARABMR-F_TFHA—+ O ARMAR 82
HIE JrglJ BRIFEFSIRAALLL - BRI A

A8 B B IR WEH;@(EU_Q_ FMOA
“HERESBIIERER_F=241HA
ZH=HEH o Betn EEEDA B Y F eR HARR 736
Fo

B RE T EIEAREE RS ERRE TR M
%ﬁﬁZEﬁ Iﬁ&#kﬁﬁmu A 1%
Z . ARESAEAS MMEEREEBRKER
ﬁ%%%% EMASAEELSEEANER
REBEREURRRERABZERME N - I
FLEFEEANNRREFN AT MEBRRE
AAREEEBELERZ -

X EMRAURET  2ERECREES2E
FERSELAHEHAREELERZAR
Tiﬁﬁcﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁcﬁﬂﬁﬁ B NmEE
Z(BERTES  FRTEZRLBUIFNTE
%) BE(THwERBIGRE)  SEBE - K38
ASERREFERTEZEMAL -

RIBR D 2R &)
WRBEELR °

B2 EE R EERRD

EMERSEAXNIFER -

BFES()RN _Z-_TFWNA - +UHZRMAE
NN B0 R 2 PR AR A ([3Ef @ A%
)\J)T“ﬁ & 196,274, 9290 FBBIAL 1D+ R (i) =

E_EERNATNRRERRREHECE
PoE AR AR H & $£65,475,610AL 22 B AR 7 $E
FETEIR L 2 BB IR IR TR D LR
ZELBIRRR o

SAEBRERREEEERAT 59



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movement of the award Shares during the Year were as follows:
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During the Year, a total of 6,500,001 award Shares have been vested and issued
to the Non-connected Grantees in April 2023 at nil consideration and a total
of 21,325,204 award Shares have been vested and issued to the Connected
Grantees in June 2023 at nil consideration. The weighted average closing price of
the Shares immediately before the dates on which the award Shares were vested
was HK$0.298. There was no outstanding award Shares as at 31 March 2024.

There was no purchase price of the unvested award Shares as at 1 April 2023 and
31 March 2024.

The total number of awards available for grant (which is subject to the listing
approval) under the share award scheme as at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024
were 497,444,013 Shares (which represents 6.55% of the issued shares of the
Company) and 500,364,744 Shares (which represents 6.56% of the issued
shares of the Company), respectively.

At the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available for issue of
the Share Award Scheme ((i) the total number of awards available for grant under
the share award scheme and (ii) the outstanding and unvested award shares)
was 525,269,218 Shares, which represents 6.89% of the issued shares of the
Company.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of Options and awards
granted under the Share Option Scheme and the share award scheme during
the Year divided by the weighted average number of shares (excluding treasury
shares) for the Year was nil.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Licensing of office premises

On 31 December 2019, Glory Gentury Limited (as the licensor) (“Glory Century”)
and Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Limited (as the licensee) (“HTMHK”),
an indirect subsidiary of ALS entered into a license agreement for the licensing
of the use of the premises located at Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F., Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai (the “Premises”), Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022, at a monthly license fee
of approximately HK$258,000 for the first year, HK$319,000 for the second year
and HK$346,000 for the third year (inclusive of management charges). The total
license fee shall be subject to an annual cap of HK$3,336,000 for the first year,
HK$4,068,000 for the second year and HK$4,392,000 for the third year.

On 10 February 2023, Glory Century and HTMHK entered into a license
agreement for the licensing of the use of the Premises for a term commencing
from 1 February 2023 to 30 September 2024, at a monthly license fee of
approximately HK$346,000 for the first year and second year (inclusive of
management charges). The total license fee shall be subject to an annual cap of
HK$4,560,000 for the first year and HK$3,420,000 for the second year.

HTMHK is an indirect subsidiary of ALS and Glory Century is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. ALS is an indirect controlling shareholder
of the Company, and HTMHK is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 31 December 2019 and 10 February 2023.

The auditors of the Company, MOORE CPA Limited, have provided a letter to
the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming that, for the
Year, the continuing connected transaction (i) has received the approval of the
Board:; (i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agresments
governing the transaction; (iii) has not exceeded the caps disclosed in the
relevant announcement made by the Company; and (iv) was in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group if the transaction involved the provision of
goods and services by the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has reviewed and confirmed that
the above continuing connected transaction has been entered into by the Group
(a) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (b) on normal commercial
terms; and (c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
the above continuing connected transaction that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Year set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions do not constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the paragraphs headed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective associates had any
interests in a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competed or
may compete with the business of the Group or had any other conflict of interest
with the Group which would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets or profits of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made donations of HK$2,532,498 to charitable and
non-profit-making organisations.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was formulated by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board,
with recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme as incentives to eligible persons, details are set out under the sections
headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2024, the market capitalisation of the listed shares of the
Company was approximately HK$6,630 million based on the total number of
7,621,152,835 issued shares of the Company and the closing price of HK$0.87
per Share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares were held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases attributable to major
customers and suppliers during the Year and Previous Year are as follows:

FEERRAER

RAFEREF  TEXFRHEREELRE
BERBERRBECAOLAT

For the year ended
BEUTHNLEEE
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—E_NF TEC=F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
Percentage of turnover: EEREANL
From the largest customer REZAEP 16.40% 5.0%
From the five largest customers in aggregate RERAREF 2 B5E 43.42% 19.0%
Percentage of purchase: Higsa okt
From the largest supplier RETALER 44.85% 35.4%
From the five largest suppliers in aggregate RERKHEIER 2 2% 67.92% 66.7%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in the five largest customers nor suppliers during the
Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year were audited
by MOORE CPA Limited (“MOORE CPA”), whose term of office will retire at
the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-
appointment of MOORE CPA as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general megting.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED.

On behalf of the Board

Fok Chi Tak

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

K| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HAO TIAN INTERNATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 195, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matter
WREHER

BT SR

FRRBTFEEREBERMANEEHE - RaY
AHEAMBRRNBARAEENEE - &
LERRERMEAERRAMBHRRIHOA
BRRETREN - ZM TS ELEEREHR
EENER RS EBENTEHR/ANLR
SRR B ET =R -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B EstMEERRTFSER

Impairment assessment of interests in associates
RREE O R R0 ET 6

We identified the impairment assessment of interests in associates as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the Group’s consolidated financial statements and the involvement of
estimation uncertainty and the significant assumptions and judgments.

EREREARHR BEEERAMBBRRMEEEA - B REFTHPRLE
RBRRAE - BEERREERA 2 Es O EMERSERENFE -

Interests in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates, less impairment in the carrying values of the interests. As such, the Group is
required to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that the carrying
amount of interests in associates may be impaired. For those associates in which such indication
exists, the Group assessed the carrying amounts for impairment.

REE DR BR NG R MBI R NIRRT - TR HEELAE - N
R EEEREEHELREEREM2ENS  AERRAEBEME - At
BEREAREBERRTRREREAMPRETRBE R R En REER
RORE - REEEBTR MELT EEEETLREREE -

Management assessed whether there was any impairment of the carrying values of investments in
associates by calculating the recoverable amount. The impairment assessment requires management
to exercise significant management judgment and estimates, including among other things, estimating
the fair value of the assets owned by the associate.
ERERBTEMNRSETHNBE LR RENERER S FAEMAE -
RETEEREREELEATRAGNRMGE - AP aEAHAHERFARENE
ENATE-

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group’s share of impairment
loss of HK$325 million has been recognised by the Group in arriving at the carrying amount of the
Group’s interests in an associate based on the impairment assessment.

BEGRERBREMTITAARE - REAETE  REE EEERBE LR
En RRER BRR ERERGRESRNAEEET

o

TR =F/ZNEFR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of interests in associates
included:
BMHRBE DR R MENRFRIE

- Assessed the appropriateness of the management’s accounting
for the Group’s interests in associates on equity method of
accounting basis;

- MAEEEREReIEY
Bnz et RENEEY

ERERBERF L

- Understood and evaluated the management's process for
identifying the existence of impairment indicators in respect of the
Group’s interests in associates;

- BRUTEEREY BERERBERRZEDR
RIREFIEAETROER

- Where indicators of impairment have been identified, discussed
with management and valuer how the Group determined the
recoverable amounts, including the valuation methodologies
selected and key inputs adopted, for the associate’s underlying
asSels;

- WEIAFEAENR  REERERMEMSIR &
SENAETHE A RIMEEENRESE - B
EMMEDERTRMOERE AR ;

- Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuer performing the valuation on the underlying assets; and

- TMEETERAERENREANEE  EHRE
Bt R

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and
the reasonableness of the recoverable amounts of that associate,
including the key inputs and assumptions used, which the
management used for their estimation of recoverable amount of
the associate.

- MEREREZBEERZEE LR ZAIKE &
ZAENL  ARERERARMLHZHE AR T KE
SENBERBASERTARE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 were audited by another auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on 28 June 2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

TR =F/ZNEFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
Kong Shao Fung

Practicing Certificate Number: P07996

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GRRGRAMZENGR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—E_ME —E=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
M35 BEET BEATT
Revenue WA 5 173 246
Cost of revenue N %N (109) (164)
Gross profit EH 64 82
QOther income EMUA 6 43 37
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih(E18), W= - B8 7 (174) 76
Administrative expenses TR (58) (53)
(Provision)/reversal of provision of TREE REBBEGEHEE
impairment loss on financial assets E518) (B f8) o
(expected credit losses) (37) 39
Fair value loss of investment properties & 4% N F(EEE (1) -
Share-based payment expenses ARG A4 B2 o (3)
Share of results of associates PaN (i AN (325) (45)
Finance costs BB A 8 (20) (19)
(Loss)/profit before taxation FRIREI(BB1R), &% 9 (508) 114
Income tax expense FTSRiR > 11 (4) (6)
(Loss)/profit for the year FERER) BT (512) 108
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEskAEMZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

2024 2023
ot <ol 1 - 3 —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BaE BEET BEET
Other comprehensive (expenses)/  FRIREE M2 (B, WA :
income after tax:
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit T~ EF P IEE B HE -
or 10ss:
Fair value loss on investments inequity AR ETE B HEE L AEME
instruments at fair value through other ERE (AR THETEEHESE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) FFAEMEERE ) 2 ERTA
W& 2 AN FEEIE (87) (23)
Items that may be reclassified to profitor ~— AJGEE#TH A E Bz o HH -
loss:
Share of associates’ exchange DEEE A RIREBINEBEE
differences on translating foreign 2N ERR
operation (4) 3
Exchange differences on translating MEGINETSEE 2B K ZE5E
foreign operations (25) (16)
Other comprehensive expenses for FRHEMRBEBA & FRiRE
the year, net of tax (116) (36)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ FER2EGIR),WakE
income for the year (628) 72
(Loss)/profit for the year FE{S SR (B5IR), @7 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KARER A (463) 108
Non-controlling interests FEIRRA R (49) -
(512) 108
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ E{ERNRE G, W8 :
income for the year attributable
to:
Owners of the Company RARERAA (579) 72
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (49) -
(628) 72
(Loss)/earnings per share S ER), 27 12
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR(FRBL) (6.08) 1.42
Diluted (HK cents per share) S (TSI (6.08) 1.42

el 1 B S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MEBIKRR

Asat31March2024 M-ZE-ME=HA=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mF —T-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BiRE BEET BEAT
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BER&E 14a 192 205
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 18 27
Investment properties KEM=E 14b 7 -
Intangible assets B EE 16 5 5
Interests in associates i AN s e 17 798 1128
Financial assets at FVTOCI AAFEFE B EZ T A
EtrEiae eREE 18 258 345
Deferred tax assets BERIBE E 30 1 2
Properties for development BRPYE 20 326 352
Other receivables and deposits H W RIa iz e 22 9 4
Other financial asset HthemEE 1 -
Corporate note receivable W ERE 19 - 42
Total non-current assets JERENRERR 1,615 2,110
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 1 1
Trade receivables B S EWIR 21 185 91
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E4th FEULGRIE ~ &2 & KIS F0R 22 37 43
Financial assets at fair value through WA EREBHS i AlBs=
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (AT EFEBEB LT AR
w2 eRMEE 23 13 178
Loan receivables FEWE R 24 20 45
Finance lease receivables B E TR E R YGRIE 1 2
Corporate note receivables EU D ERE 19 412 360
Trusted and segregated bank accounts EEEBIIRITERRS 25 4 554
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 25 100 105
Total current assets MBS EREE 773 1,379
Total assets SERE 2,388 3,489
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HmERBEMRRT
Asat31 March2024 M-ZE-_MWE=HF=+—0H
2024 2023
—E-msE —E-=4F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
M5 HEET BEBT
Current liabilities mENAE
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 10 15
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 27 293 263
Trade payables B SRR 28 6 13
Other payables, deposits received and HAibEREIE - BEiliRE K
accruals FESTFIA 29 240 665
Income tax payables FER TS TR 5 12
Total current liabilities mENEE#EE 554 968
Net current assets MENEERE 219 411
Total assets less current liabilities BHE#FERRBER 1,834 2,521
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 9 14
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEGE 30 22 24
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 27 28 4
Financial liabilities at FVTPL UWAFEFEAEE (LT ABREZ
SRBE 31 539 578
Total non-current liabilities ERBARRE 598 657
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,236 1,864

TR =F/ZNEFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRREK

Asat31 March2024 H-Z-_WWE=HA=+—H

2024 2023
ot~ o 1) [~ —E-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
B3t BEEET BEBT

EQUITY R
Share capital & 32 76 76
Reserves B 1,040 1,619
1,116 1,695
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A 120 169
TOTAL EQUITY ERYE 1,236 1,864

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 195 were approved and ~ FE72F15B VS BERARCHESTENR -Z
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2024 and are signed ~ —pu4E XA -+ <BHEREETIZ - WH T

on its behalf by: FEERERE
Fok Chi Tak Mak Yiu Tong

ExfE FREX

Director Director

EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FENRERE

Asat31March2024 M-—ZT-ME=HA=+—H

Attributableto owners f the Company

FOFREAR
(Accumlated
Share-hased losses)/ Non-
Share  payment  Capital FUTOCI  Translation ~ refaingd controlling
Sharecapital  premium  vesene  reseve Olherresene  reseme  resene  eamings Total inferests  Tolal equily
WATE
AR
#lLitA
HRhELH kb2E (RHER)/

Bt BRER HaR ABEA RRER BRZER ERRR GERW &t FRBNE  NEWE

Nogs — HSmilon  HKSmilon  HiSmilion  HSmilion  HeSmilon  HiSmillon  HKOmilon  HRSmilion  HiSmilon  HKSmilon  HKSmilion
W EEEn AT BEAT  EEEn  REAT  BBAL  REET  BERT  EEERT  BEET AEMR
A1 April 2022 R-BZZEMA-A [} 1514 (] % 1 M J (85 163 - 163
Prfto e e Emi] - - - - - - - 108 108 - 108
O comprenensie foensss) - ERER2AFR4E
income for e year

R lssoninesnenisn -+ AT EEAER NG
wiyismens dAIO0 A Efo2ENE BR
TRRE L VEFE s s - - - @) - - @ - @
Sweotodssoowy  HEBELTAESNE
diferences on tenseing BELELER

foreign operion - - - - - - 3 - 3 S ]
Exchnge ifenoss o0 BERNSHEL ZEY
s ol 8 - - i i - - (1 - (1 - (1)

To comperershe mcoms o~ ERZENALE
e year - - - - - Al (3 108 n - 1

Trensactons it equly RGNS

foders:

s o awa shees BBk Ri - b ] - - - - - - - -
Shaetesed pamentepenses  MURISEAER 3 - - 3 - - - - - 3 - 3
Disosd o in HERBATERTTE

sbsdaywibotlosin ~ &EEE
confol 3 - - - - (13) - - - (13) 169 1%

At 31 March 2023 and P-B-z£=R
1 April 2023 Zt-AR-BCZE
mA-R

—

b 1980 i % ) (%) 4 43 16 16 184
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REER®BR

Asat31 March2024 H-Z-_WWE=HA=+—H

Attritutable o owners o the Company

3N EIN TS
(Accumlated
Share-based losses)/ Non-
Share  payment  Capital FITOCI ~ Tranglation ~ retained controlling
Shargcapital  premium  reseve  reseme Olherresee  resene  resene  eamings Total interests  Tolal equily
HOTE
by 1
14190
URRERR k2@ (RHER)/
k% BOER RER REBR  RABRE GECER ERER  REEA Bt FRRNE REER
Nots  HéSmilion  HéSmilion  HiSmilon  HOmlion  HkSmilon  BKSmiion  HSmilion  HeSmilion  HéSmillon  HkSmilin  HKSmilion
Wi AEET  AEET  FEET  FRET BRET AERT BERT  AERT GERT HERT mEMR
Logs for e e EmER - - - - - - - (463) (463) (49) (512)
Ohercomprehensiefopnss) — EMERREFR)NE
income for e year
Findelssonimesienisn -+ DATEEAER G
alynsments P00 AEMR AN 2ER
TRRE/DTRER = : 2 - - (67) (87 - (67)
Steeofassocsenhane  SEEEATAZENE
difrencss on arslaing BEC/ERZE
forign opeaton - - - - - ) 1) - )
Bchangs dencss on BERNFHEL RS
s o opetions 28 - - - - - - (29) § (%) - (%)
Todlompehensieonprses  FRZERREE
forthe year - - - - - 1] (29 (463) (679) (49) (628)
Tansalon ey EREREARS
falders:
lssue o v e RERA ) - i (0 - - - - - - -
Tastosanedsanngs  BRBEA - - f - - - 1 - -
At 31 March 2024 R-2-mEZR
=t-8 T6 1,586 - 5 (12) (1) (%) (439) 1,116 120 1,286
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeBERE
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZE_—_Z_PUF=FA=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities BEITDFRAAQRE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRE AT (E518),m T (508) 114
Adjustments for: AT RIBEL AR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREETE 32 35
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 13 12
Fair value losses/(gains): NEEEE W)
—financial assets at FVTPL —ARAFEFEAEZETA
Bz MEE 183 (16)
—financial liabilities at FVTPL —ARAFEFEAEZETA
BEzemas (39) (51)
— investment properties —REME 1 -
Finance costs BhE KA 20 19
Gain on disposal of associates HEBENFZ W - )
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERB ARz e - @]
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEK
equipment Bt 2 Was - (6)
Provision for/(reversal of provision) of financial TREEFERERERN
assets (expected credit loss) Rt (B EE) 37 (39)
Provision for liabilities arising from financial MAAFEGFEBEE (L AER
assets at FVTPL ZEMEBEEEA BERE 27 -
Interest earned on corporate note receivables S ERBRELZ T S (25) (23)
Interest earned on bank deposits FIRTTFERBRELZ FI B (5) 2)
Share-based payment expenses AR AR - 3
Share of results of associates DIGEEE AR EE 325 45

TR =F/ZNEFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Operating profit before working capital and EEEe RHEMEEATLE T
other changes 61 89
Working capital and other changes EEEe REME
Finance lease receivables B &M S FERIE 1 4
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFEBHES et AlEs
SREE (20) 46
Inventories FE 2 19
Additions of assets held for rental and SSEHEREBIIERE 2
subsequently held for sale BiE (25) (23)
Loans receivables FEUE R = (%)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAnEWRRIE - e RIENFIR 8 (8)
Other payables, deposits received and HAEAEIE - EdiRE R
accruals FEETFIE (5) (16)
Trade payables B S ENFB (7) 7
Trade receivables Z 5 IR (94) 44
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KR FER e e (79) 157
Income tax paid EETER (11) (1)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating e FTA) B ReF58
activities (90) 156
Cash flows from investing activities BRETEMEASRE
Consideration paid for acquisition of corporate note  UREEFEUL (> ¥ =8 2 B MR (E
receivables (367) (396)
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI WA FEFTEBEEZ LR AHAM
2EREZEREE - (121)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYWE  BEILEE (2) (23)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEREBZM0ZE
equipment (9) =
Repayment of corporate note receivables EEBUINEEE 370 377
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB RFHEFIEHIE
equipment - 6
Proceeds from disposal of associates Br B N RIS A 1 16
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at BEENAFEFEBEZ (LA ABRE
FVTPL LB BEBEMSHUR - 10
Interest received EHFIE 5 2
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary BE—MFREMSHIIE - 1
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEBMARLSEHE (2) (128)

80 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mF —T-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT

Cash flows from financing activities MEEBRERERE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ERERITRHEMEE (246) (366)
Repayment of corporate note payables EERNTESE - (63)
Advance from (repayment to) a director REER) —RES2EHRGRIA) 1 (20)
Interest paid B E (20) (19)
Lease liabilities paid BENHEEEE (14) (14)
Advance from (repayment to) fellow subsidiaries 2K B (fEi2) R R B A 7.2 B (FRIB) 10 (7)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings IRIT R EMEESHRIE 263 319
Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries &M E A T*E Fﬁjﬁﬂﬁiii il 4

without loss of control FriS kT - 156
Advance from intermediate holding company REH F‘ﬂ IRAE) 2R 92 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing RZF;FZEIFRE (FRF) R &R

activities 86 (14)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BRERREFEM(R D), 1BNPHE

equivalents (6) 14
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REVZ2BHe RESEED 105 91
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNESTE RSB R F KR 1 =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXRZBEERASERY 100 105
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEE/MZAIR
Bank and cash balances RTINS AR 100 105

— =/ NFFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=8 M m R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

1.

82

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an exempted
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company is Hao Tian Management (China)
Limited and Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which are
incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands respectively, and
the intermediate holding company of the Company is Aceso Life Science
Group Limited with its shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The address
of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.0. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares of the Company
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group include: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of
securities brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv)
rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation services; (vi) property development and
(vii) money lending.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
rounded to the nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.

—RE#

ESRBBEERBREEBERATRTARA
Al - EREMBARSAEIAERE])EH
ERESIMNLAEREBRAF - AR
AESRAE  HEEABRRERARASR
REXEEBE(FREDERAAIREEAIE T
BREBRAR ZFLaDRIRNESRE
BRZHEEFEMAKT - KQR) ZHEIE
BRARREHRERREEBERAF -
ERMDRBEBBERZAMR AR ([
FIDERETEITEE - NARISKRIER
ERAEEVDFZL - EFfirEEiit
AWindward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.0. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands * &%
FTECEMBRERET A EE- N
ZH0251E2510-2518F » AN\ 2 E Bk
REEZFTER £ o

RAFR/—FEREEZERLAF - MAEEZ
TE2XEBEE  ()VEFRE  (NRHES
AR SRR  (IHEEEBRE : (V&
ERBBEEREE : (VIRERERREN
NBGRTS » (V)R ERR(IKE -

WEEEMBRRABIT(EIT)ZS
BRLRARRB 2NN EY  BKEEEH
EI - OB BAAEREAZAESMTE
gl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICY

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ST ERFESR (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BB ERF125R (1BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BRI ERF125R (IBFTAN)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BAGEAFIR BB RS ERNEHREF2R(EFTA)

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 and
February 2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)
BEVBREEFITREE_S_EFTAK
—T - F - Az BHBMBWEERFETHRAERTA)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace
all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be
material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
gvents or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

el 1 B S

2.

BRI REEIIEEBMBERE
R ([ &R P 8 5 4Rl |) RHAeth
ERTERAYEE

REFEBHENZHITERMBERE
ERARHEERTE

RAFE - AEBE D NREMR A IMTEHRE
REXRATIaEEEHAMAS(FE
SETEI NG )R ] BEM MG L
AIREERTAR - ZEHERREEFTA
R-ZB-=FNA—-HARBNFEHAMR
BAERL

Definition of Accounting Estimates

AT 2 ER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

HBE-—RGEFCEENBERBAZEL
MIE

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model Rules

BRI o — 8 — A RAR A

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR 2 R

Insurance Contracts

RERE A
BRTRatEIN  RAFEEAH B BUH

BELAREETAHASERAERE R
BEFENTHRRRRAL,HZEH
EMBBRRAB L BEBELBEATE

BREESHENSRETF)RESR
MRS ENTEEEB208 (BETE)
(B EZRE [ ZFE

REBRAFEEREAZETR - BB
SRR IR/ A HEHREZES) - AIEX
SERTBRER BB EESFTBOR]—
A HERTERRE R E— AT TR
RATEEMEN —GFEER - J 2B
HerE - RARVBHRRIBEAER
BERERWERRIELADRE - RIGFTBOR

ZEERTANIED - GEfBEREF A EE
ARXZMEE - R EH Gt mEE
K BMER B TEAK A - WA
HEARS - A SRR AR S
BREMAGIBERX - WEREZRE
FERSFHREM  AIZFERTEE
EERNGHBRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

2.

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgments (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments in current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the amendments, accounting
policy information that is standardised information, or information that
only duplicates or summarises the requirements of the HKFRSs, is
considered immaterial accounting policy information and is no longer
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements so as not to
obscure the material accounting policy information disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

2.

R REETEBMBGRE
R ([ FEMEHEER ) RHEM
ERTBERAYEEN (1)

EREEETEANFIRETX)RES
M| E ERN T EB25% (BETX)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of application of

the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the
abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong which are
obliged to pay LSP to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile,
the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits
of each individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employeg’s
accrued retirement benefits derived from employers” MPF contributions
was allowed under the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which
abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance payment and LSP (the
“Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance, the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to calculate the portion of LSP
in respect of the employment period before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” which
provides guidance for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism
and the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has implemented
the guidance published by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP
obligation retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and more
relevant information about the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.

el 1 B S

2.

BRI REEIIEEBMBERE
R ([ &R 35 5 4R ) REAfh
ERTBERAYEEN ()

EFE RS e A SR RUH A
HoRe(GaRe ) -RUBHE S ((RE
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BB TE 0225 (B 8 S R IR BIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERHIIREEIEEMBERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS #0 ([FAMBEEEN )RR
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER ERHBRAYSEE) (1)

86

ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the
abolition of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong (Continued)

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from employer MPF
contributions that have been vested with the employee and which could
be used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the
deemed employee contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the Abolition, these
contributions are no longer considered “linked solely to the employee’s
service in that period” since the mandatory employer MPF contributions
after the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition LSP
obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view the contributions
as “independent of the number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead,
these deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of service in
the same manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of
HKAS 19. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a cumulative catch-
up adjustment in profit or loss for the service cost, interest expense and
remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial assumptions for the
year ended 31 March 2024, with corresponding adjustment to the LSP
obligation. The cumulative catch-up adjustment is calculated as the
difference at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
before the Abolition and the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated
under paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

This change in accounting policy did not have any impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2023, and the cash flows amounts for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The application of amendments to HKFRS
does not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

EEREE S e A SR EF S IUHEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICY (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
ARV BREERFI0R LB BT ERFE 285 (185 A)

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB BHEERFEI165R(SFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB EFHERIFE1R(EETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BEAGEEIR (BRI AN)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BEAGEAETRREBVBERELRETRISETA)
Amendments to HKAS 21

ARG ERE21RJEFTA)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BRI REEIIEEBMBERE
R ([ &R 35 5 4R ) REAfh
ERTBERAYEEN ()

BRI RENZ FERB B SR
CHIES

REBEY RIZFEATIIER/MERARE
MH) BB RELANERTA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture'

REEHHBENRNEEREZEANE
EHESTE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

ERMEARRSHNEEARE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

BESERRBDEIERBAREERES
55%(2020) ) 8 BA{E 7]

Non-current Liabilities with Covenant?

M RERFERE A E

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

HERBE

Lack of Exchangeability®

Rz AR

U R B kB A I R
3 o

g RIE-UF—F— Ak ZERBME
FEEARI AR -

: R-ZE_AF— A AR ZERBRNE
[ ERfE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3.

88

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

3.
-

= g8

=
i

SMBHRZBEEREX
R®EH

3.1 BRFRSHMBHRZEE

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the material accounting
policy information set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique.

Annual Report 2023/24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECZEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (8|

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 REFRAUBERRZEEGH)

3.2

statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benegfits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

Material accounting policy information 3.2
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

TR =F/ZNEFR

FomEEY ATEHBENED
BomERaRAREERKEE
EHBERS  RPREELET
i 05 KR O PR B
By EMTISSREFEL Y EE
s o

EXEREEH

RaRE
REMBBRREBEARR - AEXR
AEHcERRENBAR MG
WK - ARARRTIERTEIHESR
PRI -

s AREHIRKREHR

. RESERRAYRZ TS
BESARATERT R

o HEMEMERNFEEDE -

SXEBRERREEEERAT 89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGEMBRRCEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL Rt RREE )

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e., when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

3. REGEMBHRZEEREX

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Leases
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets
(such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office
furniture and telephones). Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3.

94

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements
to the lease liabilities and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

3. REGEMBHRZEEREX

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation
of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
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is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or l0ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

3. REGEMBHRZEEREX

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3.

102 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, intangible assets other than goodwill and
properties for development (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

Properties for development

Properties for development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as non-current assets
until when development of the properties has commenced and
carried at cost less impairment. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a

group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured as at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEREIHGE
Financial instruments (Continued) ST AGE
Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTQOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will continue
to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earmed on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
loan receivables, corporate note receivables, other receivables
and deposits, and bank balances which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
gach reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUBRECEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE
Financial instruments (Continued) ST A
Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12 months ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

REGSUMBERRCBEEREX
EEBREHE )

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Financial instruments (Continued) SMI A

Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) iy 1EERREZILEME)

BARLERENERSL
BHIBERIL ;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the °
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change . ﬁﬁlf@fi‘%/\%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&
in the regulatory, economic, or technological 73?(%7’%%%%%)\%
environment of the debtor that results in a significant i&@&%‘iﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁg
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt W HTBEIM E R FE
obligations. 1t

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk
of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3.

108 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

REGSUMBERRCBEEREX
EEBREHE )

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Financial instruments (Continued) SMI A

Financial assets (Continuea) THEEE)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) HEEBOR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is WEEBHMBTEF AEYERE
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe BismE - BER W &EIE
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of FIER A= (INEF T HF8
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been EAWERF NEEZMH
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy TRMEE  REER EZE
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be EEERE  AKEREDE
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s RIBFEBGRIEF R EREMEN S
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where BEE - MEBHRLERSE
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. o HIg W B M R RIBRIE
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss. HPRER o

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TEEREEBEZIERER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

el 1 B S

BHIEEEBZHEREBOM
T EZOBREENSEEX
/N BB K BB R D 2 B o
BRI OEE 2T
EPBEBIRRATIEIEEFHE
HE - BHEEERNMGIR
PR FE S B R IRE 2 RR - TD
NEBEERONARSES
METE - ARBERKERBERE
EFERERLBALEILE
X 7R 2% 45 77 B ] 145 B0 BT RE 1
BRREARBERYRAE
BRATTTEV R B BR IR J7 A (A AT IE
WE ZERANEMEERESE -

—RmE  BHREEEHREAL
SERBAEVERNFAEA
#IR M B B AR B TR AT X
MRS REZHNER » WK
e ERREENERN KR,
IH o

RAEBRERREEEERAT 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FEFRSHMBERCEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BETBUREHE (18|
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE
Financial instruments (Continued) ST A
Financial assets (Continuea) ZREEE)
Foreign exchange gains and losses HNGE UK 2 N B 1R

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item as part of the net foreign
exchange gains/(losses);

e  For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value
of financial assets;

e For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGEMBRRCEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL R RREE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EXEMBEZIHEGE

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
oss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

3.

112 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii)
it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings, trade
payables and, other payables and deposits received are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2023/24

BHRRCBEREX

-1
3R ()

EXEHRREH ()
&R T A )
THEE

B R A R & D RARBR %
IR PR A TR A SR 3
5 -

:Ffau-l—i """"" 'T E-I—AEIE E’J
éﬂﬁfﬁ

EERABNANBLIERTEMK
WEERFBIRFMBEANER S G
R ARE - (INFEREE - 3h(ii)tE
ERUATFEFEREHRZEFAR
@ AERBEs BRUAFER
ERHE#{LEIAESR -

REHERAY R 2 BAE

TREBEBRBRRITIEMEE &
SN HIBREAMENKIBEARE
Wize - RREBERMN RIS
HAANETE -

TRIAEMNKEER

EREEEAREENEBHHERR - B
SHEGE R - AEEAKRIEERS
BEE - KIEER Z%mﬁlﬁfﬁfﬂﬁﬁ
HEREHRENREZZENIE
HPRER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VIR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group’s material accounting policy information,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
gstimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 March 2024, certain of the Group’s financial assets classified
at FVTOCI and FVTPL are unlisted and measured at fair values with fair
values being determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair values of these instruments. See notes 18 and 23
for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
which are not assessed individually using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings of various
debtors taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 34 and 21, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

4.

114 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables and
corporate note receivables

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment and
gvaluates the ECL of the loan and interest receivables and corporate note
receivables.

Appropriate impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss. In
assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk perceived at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the loan and interest
receivables from borrowers and corporate note receivables are assessed
individually by the management of the Group, based on the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records,
including past due dates and probability of default, of each borrower
and reasonable and supportable forward-looking information (such as
macroeconomic factors including Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”)
growth and unemployment rate with adjustment on different scenarios of
gconomic environment prospect) that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings ,
with reference to its individual external credit rating where available, to
calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls which are driven by the estimates of probability of
default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collateral (if any) less the costs of selling the collateral.
At every reporting date, the financial background, financial condition and
historical settlement records of each borrower are reassessed and changes
in the forward—looking information are considered. The management
further assesses the amount of exposure of default by assessing the
potential loss in view of the credit risk on credit-impaired loan and interest
receivables to which the Group is exposed and enables the Group to
take appropriate corrective actions promptly. In assessing the amount of
exposure of default, the Group takes into account the timing of cash flows
that are expected from foreclosure on the collateral less the costs of selling
the collateral. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s loan receivables
and corporate note receivables are disclosed in Notes 34, 24 and 19
respectively.

4Rt ERRKIE ()
{HETF AR Rz £ B3R R (#8)

Bl EREFBRENERXREZRE
HGRBm

BIEEE PR ER G - AFHAERE
RAEMBNAR BB EEREZ AREEE

1’

BERERENERTER - RHEEY)
rERREERRESERBILME - KE
ERRHREE e T AZEE ZENORR
YRR AR T ARMZ BORR
EITHR - HETZAER - AEEER
BRESERAZTBEESR - BHIRRR
BEEFCE - BRAHAMEOE
NBALEXNARBZ AR/ AEGREE
ZHIEMEER (PIMEZBEESERAE
BRENEERE(ERNLEERE]IER
RRER - WRBKBERFEA SN NEBE
MELAE) BUNGERRERAZE
KB AR R R -

EEFRARBAFEEFRESKRRE
A 2EHBANBMERFRGAE) - A
AEBEMEEER - RAREERATEY
RERR - TIRBGEFHEL A REIEARTE
HEMm EEWA) 2 Be RSB RE
AR AL EERRNATE - RERS
BH - BERANTBEESR - BHEIRAR
BEERCES MG - LEEAEME
BRmEs - B EE - THEEVRR
TR A AKREEER 2 EERERK
ERMFE 2 EERBREH 2 EREERX -
3 fe (A 55 B 37 BRIV S B IE1TE) » X
AHEERNRR 2 R - AREE EEMA
on L8 7 TREAIR 0 < B DR &5 4 R
ZHA - BEEEERZBEE X EM
AEEIEE -

BERAREEERRAKERKERIAR
R RIE 2 BRI D RIS ~ 24K
199 5% -

Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment assessment of properties for development

Properties for development are stated at costs less impairment, if any. In
determining whether it is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. Change in the assumptions and estimates, including
discount rates, future selling prices and future construction costs in the
cash flow projections, could materiality affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of properties for development
subject to impairment assessment was HK$326 million (2023: HK$352
million). No impairment losses have been recognized (2023: nil).

Estimated impairment of associates

As at 31 March 2024, one of the associates, CESIZ (Cambodia) Co.,
Ltd (“CESIZ”), owns a land in a special economic zone approved by
the Council of Ministers (the Special Economic Zone”) with a size of
17,252,519 square meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia (the “Project
Land”), in view the Project Land is located in a developing country which
may be affected by the global economic challenges, the Group performed
impairment assessment on its interests in this associate. Determining
whether impairment loss should be recognised requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the relevant associate which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.

In assessing the recoverable amount of the Group’s interests in this
associate, the management considered the net realizable value on the
Project Land as the source of proceeds from the ultimate disposal of the
investment.

The information about the impairment assessment of the associate is
disclosed in Note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IARSZERRH

(a) Description of segments and principal activities (a)

Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are as follows:

(i) Rental and sale of construction machinery and spare parts
business: The Group offers crawler cranes of different
sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment in its construction machinery rental fleet in Hong
Kong. The Group also sells construction machinery and
spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau.

(i) Provision of repair and maintenance and transportation
service business: The Group provides repair and
maintenance service for construction machinery, in
particular the crawler cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group
also provides transportation services which include local
container delivery, construction site delivery and heavy
machinery transport in Hong Kong.

(i) Money lending business: The Group holds money lending
licenses and offers mortgaged loan and personal loan
businesses in Hong Kong.

(iv)  Provision of asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial service business: The Group holds Securities
and Futures Commission licenses for conducting type 1
(dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and provides a wide range
of financial services in Hong Kong.

(v)  Property development business: The Group holds properties
for development in Malaysia through a subsidiary.

116 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24

SEB R EREEFR

AEEEMERLERRA(EE
BEREAD) BERD BN A D
MRBMMmE < BRSPS
Speft 2 B IRGTELR o

RIBEABMGRE L ERLL S
B REBZ A 2HAMOT :

() REEWBIEAZTHEENE
XY AREETZEBZ
SERWEERBERETRERE
RPhzBEEDE - ERE s
- AR IES R ERME -
AEBMAERENRMHEER
ERMEBREN -

(i) IR RRE U SER RS
5% AEBNEBIIREH
WLERES D) RHEER
RRERY - XAEBITREE
RE{ERRY - EPEEAR
EiEER  EEMREBNE
TUME S ©

(i) MEER: AEREFARER
R WERBRHTEBERRK
BEAERER

(ivy REEEER BHFLLNHE
e BRI ER - AEERE
EFLREEBHERZEGR
R AIRIERE 7 R E R
TRIBEZRD) - F4HEGL
EFRHER) RFREEEHE
ETR)XREED  WERB
RHEZ 2 2 BRT -

v) PEBRER: AKEEB—
R E QR EFSKATHAH
ELEYE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBEHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ItABRDEBEHE (18)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (b) SEBEREZ
There were no intersegment sales during the years. No operating FRABESHEEHERL - NER
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable AEE ] 2H 0K - SRS GHT
segments of the Group. Al D EL o
The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each TEEBRRABREZDB LS
segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment liability is REFEDRE - AREBREERE
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information A48 50 B OR 3 e R R R (& T E
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance HEARTEN  MUEZ55 30
assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results BERDFABH DN - Fitt - &
are presented. Z2FDTRAR D EPHELE -
The segment profit or loss for the reportable segments provided to BE—_Z_MER_FT-_-F-f
the CODM and reconciliation to profit/loss before taxation for the ST HUEFE - RETEIEEE
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows: RREANBHEAIZ 30 8l 2 2 #f B
KERFADER,EEERNT
2024
13
Provision of Provision of asset
Rental and sale repair and management,
of construction  maintenance and securities brokerage
machineryand  transportation Money  and other financial Property
spare parts service |ending serices  development Total
RitgEEE.
BERBRER RUMEBRGRR BHEER
SHEERNE UREBEE it} R SRS WERR it
HKS million HKS'million ~~ HKS'million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BRET BRET  BREL BRET BRET BRET
Segment revenue B
el revenug SR 157 § 3 1 - 173
Seqment resuts befors the following fems: —— FIBRUA T ETERI 2 p 0% 59 3 3 3 - 68
~Depreciaion il (28) (1) - - - (29)
~[mpaiment losses on financil assels ~SREERNEER(REEE - - (35) ?) - (37
(expected creditosses) BB
~Ingrestincome ~FERA 1 - - 4 - 5
—Fingnce coss ~BERL 0 - - - - 0
Seqment resuts AH%E i} 2 (32) 5 - 3
Unallocate: AR
~Otherincomg - £t 3
~ Ot losses, e -HiERTE (174)
~ Adminishaiv expenses ~BEY (17)
- Depreciaton il (16)
~Falrvalug loss of nvestment propertes ~-RENELTEFE (1)
- Share o esuls of associates -DEBELTEE (325)
~Fingnoe coss ~BENRK (16)
Loss befor avaton RHAEE (408)
—To—E/CNEER RAERERREEEARAT 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. BARSBEH )

(CONTINUED)
Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SPEREGE)
A
S
Rental and sale Provision of repair Provision of asset
ofconslruction  and maintenance management, securites
machinery and spare and rensportation brokerage and other Property
arts sevice — Money lending financial services Oevelopment Total
RLEEEE &
REERRER RRELERRE FERRAMSR
THRERBE  HNRESRE HE % ES Bt
HkSmilion HeSmillon — HKSmillion HkSmilion HeSmilion HKSmillion
BEAT BEAT  BEAR BEAT BEAT BEAT
Segment revenue SHEA
Exemal revenus SR 0 8 3 10 - 26
Seqment resuts before e following fems: ~— JOBRUA TR 2 D54 (I 9 9 10 - %
- Deprecaton il (3) - - S = ()
~Reversa of impaiment osses onfinancial -~ SR EEFEEKAR(BER 5 - 19 4 = »
asses evpected ceditosses) EE8)
~ nerst income —HIEMA - - - 1 - 1
~Finance oosts ~BEART ] - - - - (3
Seqment rsults PB%E 4 9 ) 15 - 2
Unallocate: AR
~Otherincome —EfigA 3
- Other gans,net -HiphREE 16
- Adminisrative expenses ~f1BAx 22)
- Depreciaton il (13
~Reversa of impaiment ossss onfinancial -~ SR EEFEELER(BER 1
asses expected creditosses) )
-~ Shate-based payment expenses U (3
- Share of esuls of associates -DEBELTRE ()
~Finance oosls ~BERA (16
Proft before taaton BHEIER 114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WMARSEBEH (1)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SEERZGE)
2024
Z3omE
Provision
Prouision of of asset
repair and management,
Rental and sale  maintenance securities
of construction and brokerage and
machineryand transportation other financial Property
spare pars service  Money lending services  development  Unallocated Total
RitaE
BRMEE  REHER EE 8%
fRSH REUR ERREM

HERNE ERiRE it SRR NERE 2R &t
HKS'million ~ HK§'million ~ HK$'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million  HKS'million ~ HKS'million
BRET BEET BEET BRET BRET BRET BRET

Amounts included in the measure of HAAHERE 8%
seqment proft or loss:

Depreciaion Vi i 1 - - - 16 45
Impairment losses on inancia asses SHEENERX(BEE - - 3% 2 - - 3
(expected creditoss) gER)
Finances oosts BENE 4 - - - - 16 2
03
“Eock
Provision of asset
managemen,
Rentaland sele ~ Provision of repair securites
ofconstruction  and maintenance brokerage and
machineryand  and fransportation other financial Propery
Spare parts sevice — Money lending SBIVices development Unallocated Total
BEERR  RESEBR R &5
RSl RENR S RE

HEREE EERE HE Eia 0] MEER AR @t
Hk§millon HKSmillion HkSmillon HkSmillion HKSmillion HkSmillon HKSmillion
BERT BE#T BEAT Bl BE#T BEAT BERT

Amounts included n the measure of AN BRI EVEE:
seqment profitor loss:

Depregiaton nE 3 - - = = 15 {7

Reversel of mpairmentlosses on frengil 2 REEHEBXEE (3 - (19) 0 - (1) (3
assets (expected reditoss) (BHEEER)

Finances costs HARE 3 - - - - 16 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(CONTINUED)
(¢c) Geographical information

The geographical information about the Group’s revenue from
external customers by location of operations and the non-current
assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets in
which the assets are physically located is detailed below:

WA K5 EBEF ()

(c) HWERH

BERASBEBINEEPAERA(GR
REHERI D) A RIERE B E (2R
TEARRIN RBELEHRREE(BEEERK
FFE) 2 @ B REHRan T

Revenue Non-current assets
A JERBNEE

For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March

BE=A=1+—HLEE ®W=BA=+—H
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EME —T-=F ZEBINFE —T-=F
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEEEST B8%T HEESRT B8B83
Hong Kong B 173 245 210 217
United Kingdom T - - 21 22

The People’s Republic of China AP 2E A R AL FNE

(the “PRC”) (MR ED) - - - 1
Macau P = - _
Malaysia B - - 326 352
Cambodia SRIHEE - - 798 1,127
173 246 1,355 1,719

(d) Information about major customers

There is no external customers which contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

() FRAREREFRZEH

HE-_Z-_MEER-_T-_=F=AH
Tt HIEFE BEhRAEEL
I A EB3B10% 2 SNERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSEEHE (&
(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (e) WA#EE
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers FIREFEHKRA
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HE-_ZT-_MF=A=+—RHI%F
E
Provision
Provision of of asset
Rental and repair and management,
saleof  maintenance securities
construction and brokerage and
machinery and  transportation other financial
spare parts service  Money lending services Total
BEER RUEE
RigH ROt E TE -B%
SHERR REEUR BREREM
He R W& SRR% st

HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
HEET HEHET BHEET BEET HEET

Sale of construction machinery FE Lt K 5

and spare parts THHE 21 = = = 21
Repair and maintenanceand 48 RIRE MK

{ransportation service ERRBUA

income - 6 - = 6
Commission income generated AEER - B

from asset management, eSS EN ik

securities brokerage and BRGEESE 2

other financial services EELON - - - 1 1
Rental of construction BEEWAES

machinery 136 - - - 136
Interest income frommoney ~ MEE4Z

lending FBHA - - 3 - 3
Interest income frommargin =~ FERREEL 2

financing FEWA - - - 6 6

157 6 3 1 173

Timing of revenue recognition Ut A\ FEFR R ]

At a point in time RE—FRE 21 - - 1 22
Over time bR 136 6 3 6 151
Total Bt 157 ] 3 1 173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSEEH (&
(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) MrA#IE (i)
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers FIRER ST A (1)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE-ZF-_-F-A=-1T—HLHF
J—&—
Provision
Provision of of asset
repair and management,
Rentaland sale  maintenance securities
of construction and brokerage and
machineryand  transportation other financial
spare parts service  Money lending Services Total
RS REEE
k&R RERE EE - BF
THHEER  RREUK i R EA
HE EHRS e RS @t

HK$million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$'million
BEBTL BEAT BHEATL BEET HEATL

Sale of construction machinery and spare  FEEEHEH K% 15 F

parts THHE 65 - - - 65
Repair and maintenance and BERREAR
{ransportation service income ERREWA - 8 - - 8

Commission income generated from asset AEEIE + &
management, securities brokerageand 440+ R E A

other financial services SRRGEES
ZREMA - - - 6 6
Rental of construction machinery BEHREE 160 - - - 160

Interest income from money lending WEEEZFE
WA S S 3 - 3

Interest income from margin financing ~ HEREELZ
FEMA - - - 4 4
225 8 3 10 246

Timing of revenue recognition W \FER B ]

Ata point in time RE—B R 65 - - 6 1
Over time BERR 160 8 3 4 175
Total st 225 8 3 10 246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 3.

(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued)

Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

Performance obligations information about the Group’s revenue is
summarised below:

(a)  Revenue from contracts with customers
() Sale of construction machinery and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
0-30 days from delivery.

(i)  Repair and maintenance and transportation service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
from 0-30 days from the date of billing.

(i) Commission income generated from asset
management, securities brokerage and other financial
services

Commission income from asset management and
other financial services are recognised as income in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement;
commission income from dealing in securities are
recognised on a trade date basis.

(b)  Revenue from other Sources
(i) Rental of construction machinery

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The Group leased own machinery
to third parties for a period of one to three months
and payment is generally due from 0-30 days from
the date of billing.

(i) Interest income from money lending and margin
financing

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.

el 1 B S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

6.

OTHER INCOME 6. HMkA
2024 2023
—E"MFE B4
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Interest earned on: FUTZERRZFE
— corporate note receivables — R EERE 25 23
— bank deposits —RITIFK 5 2
Government grant BT 4 BN - 1
Rental income from warehouses EErESBA 5 5
Others Hith 8 6
43 37
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7. HMEGE) ke B8
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEAT
Fair value (losses)/gains on: UTEEZAFEER), K -
— financial assets at FVTPL —LURFEEEEELTABT Y
CEREE (183) 16
—financial liabilities at FVTPL —LURAFEEEEE (LT ABT Y
TRIBE 39 51
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BE—BFrazlizs - 1
Gain on disposal of associates BEHBENTZ WS = 1
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains bE 5 (E518) Wz (3) 1
Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWZE - MEMRE 2 W
equipment - 6
Provision for liabilities arising from HURAFEFEAHE( LT ABRE S
financial assets at FVTPL (Note) MEEES B ERE ) (27) -
(174) 76
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

1.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (CONTINUED)

Note: The provision on liabilities arising from financial assets at FVTPL

represented the provision on the legal dispute with the fund manager
who handles the unlisted debt instruments held by the Group as shown
in Note 23.

Based on the agreement signed with the fund manager, the Group was
liable to pay a total of HK$27 million to the fund manager as part of
the handling charge of the instruments; such liabilities have previously
been netted off from the carrying amount in the financial assets at
FVTPL as disclosed in Note 23 as at 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had a legal dispute
with the fund manager, where the fund manager asked for settlement of
HK$27 million while the Group counter argued the fund manager had
been mishandling the unlisted debt instruments, accordingly the Group
was seeking for refund of the original investment costs of HK$7 million
and waiver of the handling charge of HK$27 million. In August 2023,
the Group won the case during the first trial, but the fund manager
appealed to the court which overturned the original verdict in January
2024.

The Group has immediately appealed the court and up to the date of
this report, the verdict has not been given. Based on the legal advice,
the upcoming verdict will be final and conclusive and is of the opinion
that the Group would probably lose the case. The directors of the
Company had considered the economic downturn in the PRC debt
market, the Group is not able to realise the unlisted debts instruments
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group has written down
its fair value of this unlisted debts instruments as zero and made a
provision of HK$27 million in relation to the handling charges during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

1.

Hith (8548), W&z - B8 @)

GEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEREF
2024 2023
ot S - 3 =
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAL
Interest expenses arising from: ATEEZMNERAX :
— bank and other borrowings —-RIT R HAMEE 19 18
— Iease liabilities -HEBE 1 1
20 19
9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KRMBIEIE) B
This is stated at after charging the followings: I TO4E NG N5 B IBE TR -
2024 2023
ot Jou 1 - =%
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Auditor's remuneration ZEETIN S 1 1
Cost of inventories sold (included in EETFERA(BEERAKEF)
cost of revenue) 20 58
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERBBITE
equipment 32 35
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEERE 13 12
Total depreciation wITeE 45 47
Less: depreciation of property, plantand & : B ESEWRAKRHYIE - BE KK
equipment included in cost of revenue 2 ITE (29) (32)
16 15
Staff costs (including directors’ BTIXA(BRESHMH) :
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances & - TEAL R RE 55 58
— retirement benefit scheme contributions  —ERFEFIFT IR 1 1
— share-based payments —DARR 0 T T 5RIE = 3
Total staff costs 8 TR A5t 56 62
Less: staff costs included in cost of revenue & : B & W AR A #) 8 THA (39) (42)
17 20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS

(a)

10. EFERITHERZHERIEF

The emoluments of each director are as follows: BEEZMET -
The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) FHES=ZHMEWMT :
2024
—EomE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and  benefit scheme  Share-hased
Fees henefitsinkind  contributions payments Total
Fe BMR EBHRTHE LROXAR
ae EWiRdl % -] it
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEER TEET BEER BRET BEET
Executive directors BiTEER
Fok Chi Tak ExE = 2.5 - 03 2.8
Tang Yiu Chi James HiEs - 46 - - 4.6
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J. BEnBT ATt - 0.1 - - 0.1
- 12 - 03 15
Non-executive director FUfTES
XuLin i3 - 0.5 - - 0.5
Independent non-executive WA FEHITES
directors
Mak Yiu Tong yi3 e 0.1 - - - 0.1
Li Chi Keung Elliot B 0.1 - - - 0.1
Shek Lai Him Abraham REH 0.1 - - - 0.1
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan 78 0.1 - - - 0.1
0.4 - - - 0.4
Total it 04 1.1 - 0.3 8.4

el 1 B S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. EFERTREREZHHERIEF
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) BESBZHE£WT : (@
(Continued)
2023
i 2
Salaries, Retirement
allowancesand ~ benefit scheme Share-based
Fees  Denefits in kind contributions payments Total
He RRR  ENRAEE MRHIAR
s ENER =3 H @t
Note HK$million HK$million HKS million HK$million HK$million
Mzt BEET BEET BEBT BEAT BEATL
Executive directors BES
Fok Chi Tak EhE - 25 - 13 38
Tang Yiu Chi James HiEs - 20 - - 20
Or. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEnEL ATHL - - - - -
- 45 - 13 58
Non-gxecutive directors FUTES
XuLin s - 05 - 05 10
Wi Bin it (il - 05 - 05 10
- 10 - 10 20
Independent non-executive  BWIAFEMITES
directors
Mak Yiu Tong BRE 0.1 - - - 01
Li Chi Keung Elliot TE% 01 - - - 01
Shek Lai Him Abraham higH 0.1 - - - 01
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan [F§:8 01 - - - 0.1
04 - - - 04
Total g 04 55 - 2.3 82

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The independent non-
executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

B TEENME T ERNEEERRR R
AEBEEBHBORYE - LA IFRITESAOB
TETEANEEARRALENBRARESEHN
AR%E o BB IFMITESTNME T 2RANE
ERARRIESHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 10. %?&ﬁﬁﬁﬁZﬂﬁ&ﬁ*‘]
=1

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a)
(Continued)

Note:

(i) Wei Bin resigned as an non-executive director of the Company
on 1 April 2023.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2023: four) were the directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure set out in Note 10(a).
The emoluments of the highest paid individuals except directors
are as follows:

SESZHeMT - ()

f3E -

() BECHR-_TE-_=FWA—H&
EARRBIIERITES -

FHESZIEBANAT

EAEEMeEE2ALERNET
B ZR(CE=F : IR AKX
NAEIEE - HP S EEFHIE10)AT
BEER BRESIN FHESZ
ERIE IEHEmT

2024 2023

—E_mE —E-=4F

HK$’ million HK$'million

BEET BEET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 2 1

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BT ToIEEE 2 AR

2024 2023
ot ol 1) - —E-—4F
HK$nil-HK$1,000,000 L 7021,000,00078 7T 2 1

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company or five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2023: nil). There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZE_—_Z_PUF=A=+—HILtFE
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. ISR
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEEET BEAT
Current income tax BNERFR1S R
— Current year —ARFEE
—Hong Kong —&HB 6 5
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFERRBEREE (1) (1)
5 4
Deferred tax (note 30) EFEF A (F7E30) (1) 2
4 6

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
(loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as

RIS TR S BB AT (B518), R FITRIA R
BRERR R 2 FE 2 HERMT -

follows:
2024 2023
—E_E ZE-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
HEET BEAT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrE AT (B518) 5 (508) 114
Less: Share of results of associates B DR E R RIFEE 325 45
(183) 159
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2023: LT E165%tE (T =4 :
16.5%) 16.5%) (30) 26
Expenses not deductible for tax GIEi b
pUPOSes 34 3
Income not subject to tax BERBA (1) (21)
Tax loss for which no deferred income RAERBELEMMSH ST 2 HBEE
tax amount was recognised 2 1
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ENFR LRI ARIER 2 BT g 18
tax losses - (2)
Qver-provision in prior years BEFEHBRERE (1) 1)
Income tax expense Fri iR 4 6

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong profit tax of
the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. Taxation arising in other jurisdiction are
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

130 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

REFSHMEFMERREGEE - &
REB TR E2008 8 7T B 128.25%
B - 1B3B200& 78 TR FE 5 1216 .5%%K
Mo TMIEMANEHHEFHENEEE
BRI EER16.5% M — IR
HEH - SEREEERNTENEHY
AT FERR 04 M) A B 20088 78 7T 128.25% =1
8 HHBIB008E B T b ET BRTURE M IR
16.5%5T8 o Bt RDARER FTEL 2 BRI
BRARDARER 2 RITHERETE

Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. Bl (8 B
(a) Basic (a) E=F
Basic (loss)/earnings per share was calculated by dividing the BREAR(EB),BIRANRAREE AR
(loss)/profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company EERER)ERRAERNBBITER
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during Mz T8 E -
the year.
2024 2023
ot Jo] 1 - T F
(Loss)/profit for the year KABIHAE ABHFER
attributable to the owners of (B518) /mr (B BET)
the Company (HK$'million) (463) 108
Weighted average number of B EITE B 2 Nt
ordinary shares in issue FHE(ESER)
(million shares) 7,614 7,586

Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREAR(EE) /BFIEL)

(HK cents) o) .

(b) Diluted .
Note 2024 2023
e e

Adjusted (loss)/profit for the year ~ FRIAZE & A EES (B518) 27
attributable to owners of the ZRRRER AERFRLEH
Company used to determine the ~ ZE(E18),#FI(B 8B T)
diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(HK$ million) (463) 108
Weighted average number of BEITEERZ IETEE (i)

ordinary shares in issue (BER)

(million shares) 1,614 7,614

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share = PEE (B518),/&FICEL)
(HK cents) (6.08) 1.42
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 12. Bix(&8) BF (#)
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #EGEE
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose () wER#EE(EE) BFzE
of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated as follows: ARG ERT
2024 2023
—E_MFE TEo=fF
million shares million shares
BEE BER
Weighted average number of ordinary UG ESRER(E
shares for the purpose of basic 18), Bz @Ak hnwE
(loss)/earnings per share T8 7,614 7,586
Adjustment for: KATEIERE
— Assumed exercise of share awards —RERITIERD 42ED - 28
Weighted average number of ordinary METEEREE (SR’
shares for the purpose of diluted Flz EmA% 15 2
(loss)/earnings per share 7,614 7,614
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the outstanding share HEr—_ZE-_mWE=A=+—H
awards of the Company had anti-dilutive effect on loss per IEFE - NATIS TR EZE
share of the Group. HAEESRBEEERES
-2 -2
13. DIVIDENDS 13. BRR
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year REZE-Z-WNF=ZA=+—HILFE
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: nil). AARTERNIERRE(ZE ==
F ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

14a.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14a. 9% - BERRE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles  Machineries Total
HELHER HE R KE
¥ WERE REfH RE 1 it

HKSmillion HK$'million HKSmillion HKSmillion HK$'million HKSmillion
BEBT BEBT BEET BEBT BEAT BEBT

note (b)
HiEE()

Cost B&
As at 1 April 2022 RZE-_#MA—H 1 9 5 1 479 511
Additions NE 21 - 2 - 29 52
Transfer from right-of-use assels "ERREEEEA - - - - 5 5
Disposal HE (1) - - (1) - 2)
Transfer to inventories (note () EATE(MH() - - - - (41) (41)
Asat 31 March 2023 and 1 April 204 W=B==%F

“R=t-Ak

“E-MERA-A 31 9 1 (] 472 525
Additions e = - - 2 2 29
Transfer to investment properties ERRENE 9) - - - - 9)
Disposal k3 - - = @) - 2)
Transfer o inventories (note (¢) EAEE(H(0) - - = - (6) (6)
Asat 31 March 2024 RZBZRE

=A=1+-H 22 9 1 (] 493 537
Accumulated depreciationand ~ REHFERFEE

impairment

As at 1 April 2022 RZE__FMA—H 1 1 5 ] 293 312
Charge for the year FRER 2 1 - - 32 35
Transfer from right-of-use assels rERREEEEA = - - - 1 1
Disposal i (1) - - (1) - 2)
Transfer to inventories (note (¢) EAEE (M) - - - - (26) (26)
Asat 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 W=B==%

=A=+-BR=%

“=FMWA—H 2 8 5 5 300 320
Charge for the year FRER - 1 - 1 30 32
Transferto investment propertis ~~ EAREAM% (1) - - - L (1)
Disposal k3 - - = @) - 2)
Transfer o inventories (note (¢) #EAFE (W) - - - - (4) (4)
Asat 31 March 2024 RZBZRE

=A=1+—H 1 9 5 4 326 345
Carrying amount IREE
As at 31 March 2024 RZZ-F

ZA=t-H 2 - 2 2 167 192
Asat 31 March 2023 R-B==%

SH=r—F P 1 2 1 17 205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

14a.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

134 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

The above items of property, plant and equipment after taking into
account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Machineries

The Group has pledged owned properties and certain machineries with
carrying amounts of HK$106 million (31 March 2023: HK$125 million)
to secure general banking facilities granted for bank borrowings to the
Group (note 27).

Leasehold land and buildings are properties situated in the United
Kingdom for a lease term of 999 years less ten days from and including
1 January 2020.

For both years, the machineries were held by the Group for generating
rental income under operating leases from its rental construction
machinery business.

The Group, in the course of its ordinary activities, routinely sells its
machineries (originally under property, plant and equipment) that it
has held for rental to others. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
related sales of rental machineries that included in revenue and cost
of sales amounted to HK$2 million (2023: HK$19 million) and HK$2
million (2023: HK$15 million), respectively.

In the opinion of the management, sales of these machineries, which
included under revenue and costs of sales, is part of the ordinary
course of business of the Group.

14a. 93 - W= B axfis (%)

fi i -

Annual Report 2023/24

FiE - BERKREILE BHEF®

Efﬁfé’: BT FERAE G AR
HEL W RIEF QOver the
lease terms
biegiz Rt
HE % 35 10% to 20%
B EERPARE 20% t0 25%
AE 10% t0 25%
TR 10%
AEEDEFERMEARIGEEST(Z
T-=F=RA=+—H : 125588 %1)
ZERFMERETHEE - EAANEEE

?)ﬁﬁfﬂa Rz —RRIBITRE 2 B R (T aE
7) °

BELRETATREBZYE B
BRSNS X - 6T
—RER)EE

RMEFE  AEEFEOEHBRE

ERWHEEGHELERE  UEL
WA o
RBEBEBEBIZT - AEBTFHHER

FHEZHM(RBYX  BER&®)

THMAL RBE_T_NE=H
=+ —HIFFER  FFAHEERARK
AAEEHERM CHERN N A2EE
BL(CZE=F:19EET)R2ES
BRL(CE=F : 1588#ET) -

ERERS - AEHMT EET AR
ElARMART  ARRBARES
=5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZE_—_Z_PUF=FA=+—HILFE
14h.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14h. ¥ BEYE
2024
- Jo .- 3
HK$’ million
BEET
At beginning of year F) =
Fair value changes NEEEE 1)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note (b)) S ENE NG YN (D) 8
End of the year FR 7
Notes: MIaE -
(a)  Investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2024 on the () WEVMER-ZE-_NF=A=+—HH

open market value basis by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by BonVision International
Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors who
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant location. In estimating the fair
values of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use. The fair values of certain investment properties have
been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income to

avoid double counting.

(b)  The transfer from property, plant and equipment is made when there (b)
is a change in use of the properties, evidenced by commencement of

lease to third parties.

Valuation techniques

fH{ER W

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXFHREARE

BUBXRMEMERBEENEER DA
S2ERUMEERRFTHEEZR
MM EEEEER  ZARELHIRA
UEMNEUMENGETHBFHEBED
FATHARE R - IWMART IR 2 X FHER
MEZBERREFERAER/EERAE -
ETREMEZ ATFECIERE - A
BRIEMREAEEEERA Lt E
BETE -

EMERSBLER LFARBAE
=HHER  TERME  BELERE
REA o

Relationship of unobservahle
inputs to fair value
AARRBANEEATFE
Z %

Industrial building units
in Hong Kong 2024: HK$7
million (2023: N/A)

Direct comparison approach
(Key input: Comparable
transaction price)

ERBTEEFEEN_T
“WHFTHEEAL(ZE
—=F  TER)

BERLEOR
(A& A : AL X H(ER)

The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy.
Except for the transfer of HK$8 million from property, plant and equipment,

there were no other transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

(c)  The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases. (c)
The lease terms range from 1 to 5 years (2023: N/A). All leases are on
a fixed rental basis and do not include variable lease payments.

Adjusted comparable transaction
price, ranged from HK$2,200 to
HK$2,900 per square foot, taking
into account differences in the
transaction time, location and site
KRBALRZER  NTF
B 5 HEIR2,20078 7T 22,900
BT BRR SR - UE
M ey =R

An increase in the transaction price
used would result in an increase in
fair value, and vice versa.

RHERES  XFEES
2 TR

RFEAHEDREIRATFERE - BIEY
¥ BELREBASEEET

F AR E

HibE3IMBALEH -

FEBRBELEHELEEREYE -
HEFHNFI1EF(CE_=F: TE&

R) - FEROEEERSLE - TRE
TREERK -

TR =F/ZNEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

14b.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14b. 1 E'W % (18)
(d)  Asat 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of investment properties (d RZZTEZENF=A=+—H KEHEHY

of approximately HK$7 million (2023: N/A) was pledged to secure
borrowings (note 27).

(e)  The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the (e)
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

(f) ~ The Group’s future undiscounted lease payments under operating (f)
leases are receivable as HK$206,000 less than 1 year, HK$192,000
between 1 and 2 years, and HK$240,000 between 2 and 4 years.

RIABBTLCE_=ZF : TERIZE
EYECEMAERE S (H5E27)

HRAEEESUNEBRERZ ST A5
BE¥FE  RAEBYARRBELZHM
EERINERR - HER L TE SRR
EEERRSEEARERERERE
BYREEZE -

REBERELERETHARRAUBAEE
FRIRHZ206,00078 7T (D HR14F) ~ 192,00078
TT(IFE 2 24F) % 240,000/ 7T QEF E45F) UL
HY °

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. (FHEEE
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Offices N 3 8
— Warehouses —B&E 15 19
18 27

Lease commitments of short-term leases 42 ERFR & v FH & IE

136 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited  Annual Report 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s
lease liabilities is as follows:

ERERE R

AEEHEABEENAMRASRE 2D
BRI

2024 2023
—EB_MEF —Eo=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
— Less than 1 year ——FR 11 15
—Between 1 and 2 years ——EWF 5 10
— Between 2 and 5 years —MERF 5 5
21 30

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEETERY
— Offices —BRE 5 5
— Warehouses —BE 8 7
13 12
Lease interests HEFE 1 1
Expenses related to short-term leases 352 A SRR 2 X 3 4
Total cash outflow for leases ERMEZ R RHRE 18 19
Additions to right-of-use assets RETREEE 5 11

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 6 years (2023: 1 to 6 years). Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants and the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

AEBEREERLAENEE - HEW
BRE-FERF(CETE_=F: —F
ERNF)ZEERMFIY - HERFIRE
ERIEREER - 5 BETR R &
- HE BRI SEINEMAREEE - AR
EEETSREEREER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. P FE
Securities
brokerage
Goodwill Customer list licenses Total
EHER
[} ERBHE - J:) st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEATT BEBT BEBT BEBIT
Note (a) Note (b)
Mz (a) M (b)
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April 2022, RZZE-—_FMAH—A
31 March 2023, B =FE=A=+—
1 April 2023 and A —ZE-=—4mH—
31 March 2024 Ak=—Z s =H
=t+—H 46 12 %) 63
Accumulated amortisation R HHE R E
and impairment
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March RZZE-_FMH—A
2023, 1 April 2023 and 31 B =FE=A=+—
March 2024 A —Z-=4/mH—
BR-_ZE-FE=H1
=+—H 46 12 - 58
Carrying amount RE{E
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZE -4 - - 5 5
=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2023 RZE-=4F S S 5 5
=A=+—H
Notes: MIEE -

(@) Customer list

The amount arose on the acquisition of Hao Tian International

Financial Holdings Limited (“HTIFH") in December 2018.

(b)  Securities brokerage licenses

The amount arose on the acquisition of HTIFH in December 2018.
The recoverable amount of HTIFH has been determined based on fair
value less cost of disposal using market approach (level 3 fair value

measurements).

138 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

() EPBE

ZEBRE T \Ft+-_AKRERXH
BRemERERAR([RXERSRE

DB -

(b) REHFLLER

ZEBRE T \F+-_AKREERXEH
ReREREL  RRERESRERZ
A E & BB A T IS A R B A FER
ERR(FE=R R TEFB)ETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. RBELTFZHES

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BHEBT
Unlisted investments: JELETIRE -
Share of net assets DLBEEFE 798 1128

Notes:

(@) Associate material to the Group

U]

B

(a HEAEEMEBERZEERR

Set out below is the associate which, in the opinion of the (i) T%QE‘J%$%E@:2:?E
directors, is material to the Group as at 31 March 2024 and E=2==%=7 i"'_ Bt A
2023. The associate is accounted for in the consolidated ﬁﬁﬁf %%%\Zﬂw%@ﬁj ° “}
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised B ol L\A*’%E>§%%ﬁ§ﬁj%*&
financial information presented is based on the HKFRS financial RN = Fr 23] ﬂﬁi‘%’é#ﬂﬁ%%?’b
statements of the associate. ENBERFZBRABGRER
Uz pvseo
Place of % of % of
establishment ownership ownership
Name of entity and operation interest interest Principal activities
FiERIES FAEEER
4. E-1 R 3L RE B ANtk EEXRH
2024 2023
“BNE —T_=fF
CESIZ Cambodia 22% 22% Property development
CESIZ ESE S MEER

—T T NEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)
(a)  Associate material to the Group (Continued)

(i) Financial information of CESIZ

17. REELTZERS (]

MIEE -
(a)

(&)

HASEMEBERZBE D E(E)
(i)  CESIZZBAH5 &R

140 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

2024 2023
—E-_mE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#ET BEBT
At 31 March: R=A=+—8:
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 3,654 5,147
Current liabilities BB E (28) (23)
Net assets BEFE 3,626 5,124
Group’s % of ownership interest AEEMMBEREEREDL 22% 22%
Group's share of carrying amount of interests ~ ANEBE D (EHER Z BREE 798 1,127
Year ended 31 March: BHEZA=+—RHLFE:
Revenue A - S
Loss for the year FAER (1,477) (13)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income for the S RE M2 E (BIsk), Uz
year (20) 13
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FANEERAZLE (1,497) -

CESIZ is principally engaged in investment in urban complex
development project in Cambodia. Under the sub-decree
122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”) on the establishment of CESIZ
Special Economic Zone granted by the Council of Ministers
of Cambodia to CESIZ, the Council of Ministers approved
CESIZ to establish the Special Economic Zone with a size of
17,252,519 square meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia.
Under the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole and exclusive
right to develop the Special Economic Zone with all the
necessary land use rights, including those for residential,
industrial and commercial development purpose. The principal
asset of CESIZ is a land for development.

Due to the significance of the carrying value of the Project Land
and that it is located in a developing country which may be
affected by the global economic challenges, the management
of the Group considered there is an impairment indicator of
the Group’s interest in CESIZ and has accordingly engaged
Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent valuer not related
to the Group to determine the fair value of the Project Land as
at 31 March 2024 as the source of proceeds from the ultimate
disposal of the investment.

The fair value of the Project Land was determined using direct
comparison method, based on recent market transaction data
of sales of land with similar nature and condition and adjusted
for differences in the location of the land. The fair value
measurement is categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

Annual Report 2023/24

CESIZEZNRBENREW MRS MAEE
BEiRE - BIBCESIIHXEREEH T
CESIZR% 3 48 B [ B — 4R A <122/2019
([Z%E2]) RFEBREBEIH
HECESIZERBEBEAERIEREA
17,252 519F KR B R R o IRIE =4
AL CESIZSHERBEERER 2
—RBRER  IHEEMBELELIBE
BREEEEE  TEMEERRER
%) o CESIZMEEEEAZERM -

MRZAR T REEEXR - AR
ERMBER AR EHEBERBN
T8 FEEERERREEBERNCESIZ
MESFAERENSR  HtEH T HER
SEEBNBIGHEMESBERTEE
RAA NEEZRAELHNR_T_O
FZA=+T—RZRFE EARKKH
ERIRE Z FRSFRNRIR

HEITHOAFERAERELEEE
E o ERBEOEE RIRTFTEE DM
RAMSRZEE - XRBETHUED
ZRELAE - AFEFESHEEAT
BERBEREIR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)
(@)  Associates material to the Group (Continued)

(i) Financial information of CESIZ (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the land, the highest and best use

of the land is its current use.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the fair
value of the Project Land was the adjusted price per square
meter, which averaged at HK$212 per square meter. A slight
decrease in the adjusted price per square meter used would
result in a significant decrease in the fair value measurement of

the land, and vice versa.

Based on the result of the valuation, the recoverable amount
of the Project Land was HK$3,654 million, accordingly an
impairment loss of HK$1,477 million (of which the Group’s
share of loss was HK$325 million) has been recognised in
CESIZ’s profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(b)  Associates not material to the Group

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for

using the equity method.

17. RBELFZERR)

MIsE - (8

(a)

HAEEMEBEAZBERRE)
(i)  CESIZZ AT E*L ()

EEtt s 2P ER - Lz &
B RRERGREER AR -

HELHWAFEGERAANE
ETABRBAEZ-REYS
KHABER - FHEEFTK
12787 ° FTERAEEFI7 K FHE
ERMAETRE  BEHLIHOQ
FEFFERETRE - R2IFA -

RIREEAR - BA A AR
[l & # /33,6545 &87T Bt -
BE—_F_MF=A=+—A81L
FECESIZIR % B R EE R
AT BB T (R AR E RN E
B3BHEABTT) °

BASEMELIFERZBE QR

TRINRAEBEEEMEERTEKRR
EEV YN Sl S NTIEEE

2024 2023
k- Joud 1)1 -3 —EC=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#BT BEBT
At 31 March: ®

Carrying amounts of interests T - 1

Year ended 31 March: BE=RA=+—HL=EFE:
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year 4 /Z &518 & 2 T F L 4858 - (42)

On 26 June 2023, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement
for disposal of 49% equity interest in Lion Run Holdings Limited, an

associate of the Group, at a consideration of HK$1 million.

On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement for
the disposal of 49% equity interest in Triple Blessing International

Limited at a consideration of HK$44 million.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, an associate of the Group was
disposed of at a consideration of HK$7 million, resulting in a gain on

disposal of an associate of HK$1 million.

el 1 B S

RZZE-=FA=-+/X8B  xAF2Z
ME2ENBARBFEEEARARE
EHBE M EEETNEELERAEEN
B8N BB AR A BR A B149% A o

RZEBE-_—FXAZ+=H ' ARFZ
ME2ENBAREFRERRARE
YU EAREE 2 BE AR ==
AR AR NEZ @ REMEEE
on
REE—E=F=H=+—HI|IFE
N AEENTEESTHE —HEEA
A WESIEEBTH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 18. UAFEEHRS st A KM

2HKBZEMEE
2024 2023
—E-mF T =F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBIT
Unlisted equity securities (note (a)) IEETIRAE S (HI5E(a)
China Pearl Global Limited (“China Pearl”) RAPKRRIKBRAA]
(8 ABR]) 181 255
Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited RATALEREREBR AT
(“Tonsin”) ES:i) 36 4
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited HEBEREBERAT
(“Empire Victory”) (s ) 9 10
Listed equity securities (listed in Hong Kong) ETRAFESREE LT
(note (b)) (BfFE(b)) 32 39
258 345

Notes: Bﬁgf .

(@) As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has equity interests of (@) RZTE-_NER-_ZTE-_=F=ZA=1+-—
6%, 16.67% and 4.11% in China Pearl, Tonsin and Empire Victory, H:  AEBREABLE BHLEES
respectively. The above investments are intended to be held for RITEE6% ~ 16.67% K4 11%EMER - Eilt
medium to long term. Designation of these investments as equity WEITERREHES - BEaig&iETF
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income can BUAFTEAEAHEB(LFAHMEZE
avoid the volatility of the fair value changes of these investments to the WA A e B R EMN AT EKEF
profit or 10ss. BRFHEE -

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise NREEBZEZEEKRELIFAT HE
the fair values of these equity instruments, which are not held for B ME—EEKIEE - FIAEYGHE
trading but a strategic investment, through other comprehensive %%E%T\Eﬁﬁkﬁéjim LIEER R ERE A
income. No dividend income was received during the year (2023: Nil). ANFEFEREHEAHMLEZE
Hﬁ(m AEFEERKIFEWA(ZE==

Fm\) o
On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance within the T HEFLRELER - RUAATEEE
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings. EHESCHAHEMEEMBRENRFEESD
HEMERRELSETREER2ER
(b)  The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise (b) HMREEBITERERRARKRE  K&H

142 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

the fair value of this equity instrument, through other comprehensive
income, because the Group intends to hold for long term investment
purpose.

The listed equity securities of the Group represent Aceso Life Science
Group Limited of HK$17 million (2023: HK$19 million) and Oshidori
International Holdings Ltd of HK$15 million (2023: HK$20 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

19. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES

19. B PERE

2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BIsE BRET BEATT
Non-Current assets FERENEE
Future World Holdings Limited (‘Future AR 3Rt FI4ZRR B R A A
World") (ARZRHER ] (a) - 42
Current assets mEEE
Future World R (a) 47 =
Nanshan Capital Holding Limited LB ER A A
(“Nanshan”) (Il (b) 361 361
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited HEREERAT 17 =
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  J& : TBHR{E B ES1E B (13) 1)
412 360
Total s 412 402
Notes: BRE
(@  On 30 December 2022, the Group purchased notes (the “Future Q) MZZT-_—_F+-A=+8 AEHEFE
World Notes”) issued by Future World, with principal amount of BARFHR ZZH(RBRERERE]) - &
HK$42,000,000, at a consideration of HK$42,000,000. The Future £ 442,000,000/ 7T + KB t:242,000,000
World Notes is interest bearing at prime rate plus 2.5% per annum, BIL c AXEARERNEIREEFNER
unsecured and due on 4 January 2025. F2.5% EBEHEEN-_FT-_AF—AN
HEH -
(b)  On 22 June 2022, the Group executed an order for the purchase of b) RZZTZZFARAZ+ZH FEEH

notes, with principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “2022 Nanshan
Notes”) at a consideration of US$45,000,000 (approximately HK$354
million). The 2022 Nanshan Notes are interest bearing at 7% per
annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co., Ltd and due on 23 June
2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1 million was provided
as at 31 March 2023. All the principal and interest from 2022 Nashan
Notes have been settled on due date.

el 1 B S

1TH8 R A BB B R4 58 445,000,0003 7T HY
ZE(ZZ2-_—_FELUEE]D  REA
45,000,000 T (#354E & B L) - —F
—oFMILEBRRFERNRI%TE - B
IWEEBBRARMEER  RZZT==

ANAZTZ=ZAFH -R_T-_=F=A4
=+—08 EHEEEBEAIEEET -
2o FELEENEAE RFIBEER

FEH 2 84F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

19. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

20.

144 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Notes:

(b)

(Continued)

On 13 June 2023 and 29 June 2023, the Group executed orders for
the purchase of notes with principal amounts of HK$250 million
and HK$101 million (collectively, the “2023 Nanshan Notes”) at a
consideration of approximately HK$250 million and HK$101 million,
respectively. The note purchases constituted discloseable transaction
under the Listing Rules. 2023 Nanshan Notes is interest bearing at
7.5% per annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co., Ltd. and due on
14 June 2024. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$2 million was
provided as at 31 March 2024. All the principal and interest from 2023
Nanshan Notes have been settled on due date and no further execution
orders for purchase of notes issued by Nanshan have been placed by
the Group subsequent to the settlement up to the report date.

PR £ TR iR ()

GEE

(b) (&
R-T-=FRA+=ZAR-F-=F

ANAZ+TRB AEEHITERAAEE
Ke&n Rl AEB0EEETRINNEEET
MNEEHRIZZE-_=FELEE] -
REOEBBIEEBTROAINEES
T MIBELEMRA  BEZEEABT
BERXD —E-_=FEILEERRFF
K75%:HE - ARILEBBRABEE
BRRZE-MFENATOBEEE - R
—T_NFEZA=+—H8 BHEES
TW%E%%E°:e_f$ﬁmmﬁm
AERFEERIHAZELEE B8
BEE®RER $Eliﬁﬁ HEEW
BERIUBITEENRITIER

(c)  As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of corporate note () MZZE-_MEF=ZR=+—H" }ELIAZJL
receivables of approximately HK$361 million (2023: HK$361 million) EEE CEREENABIGERT(Z
was pledged to secure borrowings (note 27). —=F:361HBBT) BB LM%HX
B8 (FisEer) -
PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT BREDRYE
2024 2023
—E_mE T
HK$’million HK$'million
BEAET BEATT
Land use rights TR AR 326 352
Note: fT5E
The properties for development were related to a residential and commercial BRAMELANNSRATREFRER L
mixed property development project located at Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, FTELBERGVELRBEEAHE - Hibth
Malaysia comprising 267,500 square meters (or 2,879,343 square feet). The 267,500 75 K (552,879,343 F 5 IR) - :Z ¥ % |

property is held from the government for a lease since 2019 and expiring on 8
February 2097 for residential and commercial building uses.

BFEE - M T -AFRINR TN+

F_ANAEMm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BHEIFHRIEA
2024 2023
—E_mE —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBIT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA

Rental income from construction MM ER 2
machinery business H2HA 48 56
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B TEEEEEEEE (12) (12)
36 44
Securities brokerage BHLAL 150 48
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B TEEREEEERE (1) (1)
149 47
185 91

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its trade
customers arising from construction machinery and sales of construction
materials business. The credit period provided to customers can be longer
based on a number of factors including the customer’s credit profile and
relationship with the customers. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
The Group has a policy for allowance for expected credit losses which
is based on the evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of
accounts on every individual trade debtor basis and on the management's
judgment including creditworthiness and the past collection history of
gach customer.

ZER A R SR MR SRR IH B RIS HY
BHEFELTHIEMNEEY - AT
PROZEEHRGEETFPHEERR K
HEPHNBERFLZHAZMIER - £ER
TRMEFH  AREFEEEEFEE
HEERREFPRAEEERE - RPHWREA
e EHEN - AKERERAEEER
BERR  ENERHERBILESHER
ARR B By @Y K B e 0 A 1B 2 °F
o MHEEEHEREFPNEELBE
WO RCER B 2 H BT AR AL ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from securities
brokerage business are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement
date. The margin clients of the securities brokerage business are required
to pledge their investments to the Group for credit facilities for securities
trading.

The aging analysis by invoice date of trade receivables from rental income

from construction machinery business before allowance for expected
credit losses is as follows:

. RAEBRIA R

HESKLCEBELNREREMRE S
BEPNEZRKSEERE BRIZERE
B BHREEBZRESEPARAS
BEMEE 2 REARGEEREEES

=g
BHE-°

KEZERMEBHESBANE Z R

TEREH R B 251 2 fRlie 0 A CRINBR

B EEBEREBWT

2024 2023

—E_NE —EC- =

HK$ million HK$'million

BE#ET BEETT

0-30 days 0-30H 13 12
31-60 days 31-60H 19 18
61-90 days 61-90H 1 4
91-180 days 91-180H 4 11
181-365 days 181-365H 4 9
QOver 365 days B 3365 H 7 2
48 56

The aging analysis by settlement date of trade receivables from securities

brokerage before allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

AT AR EEEERENELE R
HFREZEHRYGARESEAHZ7

ZERER DT ¢
2024 2023
ot ol 11 - TE =4
HK$ million HK$'million
BE#ET BEBT
0-30 days 0-30H 11 5
31-60 days 31-60H 39 2
61-90 days 61-90 H 30 -
91-180 days 91-180H 2 10
181-365 days 181-365H 23 1
QOver 365 days 38365 H 45 30
150 48

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in note

34.
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B R FRBERE B R34 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HtWEWRIA - HERAMTRE
PREPAYMENTS
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BHEBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepayment for acquisition of property, ~ EBEWE - ME &
plant and equipment Jt 2 TERTEOR 9 2
Other non-current assets HEM3EmEEE - 2
9 4
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from intermediate holding ~ FEUR Fh REIIZE AR A RIFIE
company (note (a)) (Bt 5% (a)) 30 32
Amounts due from immediate holding il a2 NI sl
company = 3
Other receivables E M R R IR 1 3
Deposits and prepayments e MR FIA 6 5
37 43
Total st 46 47
Note: T -
(@)  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (a) ZoBEEER  BERIREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

%.mﬁ¢§giﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

Z &R
2024 2023
—E-mE —EC-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBIT
Listed equity securities ETRAES 13 134
Unlisted fund investment (note (a)) JELETESIE :E(@) - 29
Unlisted debt instruments FELEMERLTE - 15
13 178
Note: Msx -

(@) Amount represented the investments in fund: @) BESEEATIESHOERE
2024 2023
—EZ_plE T =F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Kingdom Future Limited (“Kingdom Future”) HEAERAR([FHE]) - 29
= 29

In April 2021, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 49% equity interests in Kingdom
Future with a consideration of approximately HK$321 million.
Kingdom Future, through its interests in a segregated portfolio of Tisé
Opportunities SPC, acquired shares of New Gains Group Limited, a
subsidiary of China Evergrande Group, which owns Fangchebao Group
Co. Ltd.* (REBEERKRMHBRRAR]). The consideration was
settled by the allotment and issue of approximately 867 million shares
of the Company. The transaction was completed in May 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, full amount of investment in
Kingdom Future has been written off due to the financial crisis and

negative news of China Evergrande Group.

(b)  Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining (b)

fair values are set out in note 34.
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RZEZ—FWA  AEEHEBIF
=HEIIE R - WEHER49% R
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BREERME A BRI - New Gains
Group Limited B R EBEBRHERA
Al o RENR W BHITARRTL867THE
BRBRMHZANERN - ZXZER-E
T —FRATK °
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24. BIKER
2024 2023
—E=_mE —E-=4F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEET BEETT
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BIEIREE R R U E K 37 37
Unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables EIRHE T FI R ERE R 25 25
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B B EEEERE (42) (17)
20 45

The loan receivables carry effective interest rates of 12% to 13% as at 31
March 2024 (2023: 10% to 16%).

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s loan receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount, net of impairment, of HK$20
million (2023: HK$12 million) which are past due as at the reporting
date, all of which has been past due 90 days or more. The directors of
the Company are of the view that these past due balances are not credit-
impaired because the directors have regular updates and communication
with those debtors to understand each of the debtor’s status and
their financial conditions which concluded the carring amounts were
recoverable as at the end of the reporting period.

Included in arriving at the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31
March 2024 is accumulated impairment losses of HK$42 million (2023:
HK$17 million). Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34.

RZZB_ME=A=+—0H  BREZRH
EREMNERI2%ZE13%(ZZEZ=F : 10%

Z16%) °

R-ZE-WWFE=ZA=+—8 ' AEBEK
ERBEReEEREREGIRRE) 220
BEAT(CZE_=F : 2EE&BT)NE
MARKEER - Rk HHEBE - 23
R T HARBAIORIA F - ARRIEE
R AREETHHEZEERAETE
FROER - LT MBEEBANMKRRE
BN ZECBHBETEEER
B WAHLENER  RNRESHKR - BE
EEIRER

REE_T_NF=A=1+—HNEKE
FEREEEERFIREERLESET(Z
T_=F 7TAERT - MEMEFIEH
TABTFES4
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 25. gﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m& EENEF

DEPOSITS
2024 2023
ot S - 3 =
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEATT
Current D
Trusted and segregated bank accounts (Note () 12 5E NIBLERTTER P (Bi7E(a)) 4 554
Cash and cash equivalents REMREZEEY 100 105
Total #Et 104 659
Note: Misx -
(@)  Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients” accounts (a) EEMBUYETERPNIEREEES
in the provision of asset management, securities brokerage and other BARLE R HMS @Hﬁ%%j‘%“*ﬁnp El’]
financial service business segment. EFPERP o
26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. AR
Lease payments Present value of lease payments
BERR HEARRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—7—.$ —?—_E —7—.$ —?—_E
HK$‘million HKS million HK$‘million HKSmillion
HRET BEAT BRET BEAT
Within one year —ER 10 15 10 15
Inthe second to fith years, inclusive RE-ZFHE(BRERRE) 10 15 14
20 3 19 29
Less;: Future finance charges W ARBEERR (1) (1) - NATR B
Present value of lease obligations T EFFHIE 19 A 19 9
Less: Amount dug for setlement & ¢ 128 A BIER(ER 2 OB (5
within 12 months (shownunder ~~ ARBIEEIET)
current liabilites) (10) (15)
Amount due for setflement after 12 1218 A {431 8RB B 2 2UE
months 9 14

At 31 March 2024, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.00% to NR-ZE-_MNME=F=+—H ' EFHELREE
4.88% (2023: 1.78% to 4.88%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract ~ F| &N F4.00%F4.88% (—FE =4 : 1.78% =
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 4.88%) o FIENAHBEET - Bt AEEEY

ATFEFRAR o
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27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. BITRHEMES
2024 2023
—EB_MEF —Eo=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
Bank borrowings RITIEE 318 297
Loans from other financial institutions HAbB Ak 2 B3R 3 7
321 304
Representing: A
Current mED 293 263
Non-current FETRED 28 4
321 304
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEEEBRAT :
On demand or within one year BERSIFA 293 263
Between 1 and 2 years 122 F 21 22
Between 2 and 5 years 285 F 7 19
321 304
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 12{E A A EIEME R 2 F IR ()
12 months (shown under current liabilities) BB aEET) (293) (263)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A & B HR(EE 2 508 28 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 27. SBITRH S8 R)

Notes: MoaE
(@)  The average interest rates at 31 March were as follows: () MZA=Z+—BZFHRF=ERMT :
2024 2023
—EmE —E-=F
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 5.37% 5.34%
Loans from other financial institutions H B isieE 2 B35 3.88% 4.91%
(b)  Borrowings arranged at fixed interest rates and exposed the Group to b) BEEMNEHELEAEETEATE
fair value interest rate risk are as follows: IR ESHT :
2024 2023
k- o 11 -3 —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#ET BEBIT
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 10 12
Loans from other financial institution Hib B 5 g 2 E5X 3 7
13 19
(c)  The directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s borrowings (€ BEEEHAEEEEATEEEEY
approximate the carrying values of the borrowings. PEEEARE - B R
(d)  Bank and other borrowings of HK$274 million (2023: HK$292 O) BAREMEEMEEET(—E-=
million) are secured. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of & 29é\§§/%n) AEER o 75,\\7_
financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for certain bank —mE=fg=+— EII i f’F;%%T:FﬁE%ﬂ%
borrowings and loans from other financial institutions are as follows: & &H{T@@ %x&%z&%&wz&%@&
FeMEEZRAMBNT -
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#ET BEET
Property, plant and equipment W - B REE 106 125
Investment properties wEME 7 =
Corporate note receivables M EEE 361 361
Total assets pledged as security ERER EEREERE 474 486
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28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. BHEMRRA
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt of BEKHERAB B S EMNFKIBERRD
goods, is as follows: M
2024 2023
ot Jo] 1 - T =HF
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAL
Within 30 days 30H A 2 2
31 to 60 days 31Z260H 2 2
61 to 180 days 61H=180H 1 7
181 to 360 days 181H=360H - 2
Over 360 days 1360 H 1 -
6 13
29. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 29, HMfEMSRIE SR R EL
ACCRUALS Ig
2024 2023
ot Jou 1 - —EB=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEEET BEAT
Margin deposits payable to clients arising from EEBBFELNENER
securities brokerage (note () N ACIEEE)) 5 555
Contract liabilities (note (b)) & 88 & FEED) 2 4
Accruals fEETE A 7 7
Provision for liabilities arising from UWAFET2EEELET ARG
financial assets at FVTPL (note (7)) JERMEEELE BERE
(B7E(T7)) 27 -
Others HAh 6 9
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary (note (c)) FE R R M8 A B 5 (T E(c)) 10 -
Amount due to a director (note (c)) B —RESFHIE () 1 =
Amount due to an intermediate holding company ~ F&{~f — &1 AR 5 AL A &)
(note (c)) (FF5E(C) 182 9
240 665
Notes:

GEX

(a)  Margin deposits received from clients for securities brokerage were

oayable on demand, @ REAEREREFRESEERY

fit o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

29 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

(b)

29. HfhiEMIRIA - Ui & & ERt

ACCRUALS (CONTINUED) IE ()
Notes: (Continued) BisE - ()
(b)
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2024 2023 2022
R-BZ= RZZEZZF RZEZZF
=RA=+-H —A=+-H mA—H
HK$’million HK§'million HK$'million
BEEET BEATL BEATL
Contract liabilities —advances ~ AHBE—MEFREZ B
received from customers 2 4 2
2024 2023
—E-mE T =%
HK$’million HK$'million
BE#ET BEBIT
Revenue recognised in the year that was included REWMFABRHABZER
in contract liabilities at beginning of year RUEA 4 2

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied at

end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in:

RERDPEERERBHEFALRAR
N T FEEERRBBRAZZHE :

2024 2023
—TmE —ET-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEET
2024 —E-WMF - 18
2025 —E-RF 11 -
11 18
N ON=Ci eHE
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FRANRRZEXETD

2024 2023

—E_mE —E-=
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Increase due to operations in the year I 752 8 1 0 21 40
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BEHBEEREERA 23 38

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products to a customer for which the Group has received consideration

(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

29

30.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
by the Group.

29.

IR ()

MsE : (8

HtEMRIER - CliR& R EE

€ #%EREER BEREEREER-

30. EIERIA

NTAAEECER T RREHIERE

Lease Accelerated  Right-of-use
liabilities ~ Taxlosses tax depreciation assels Total
HRAR WEGE NERERE ERAERE st
HK$millon ~ HKSmillion HK$million HK$million ~ HKSmillion
BEAT RASATL BEAT BERAT ASATL
Asat1 Aprl 2022 R-ZE-—£mA—A 4 8 (28) (4) (20)
(Charged) credited to proft or loss for the (¥18)5t AR B2
year = (6) 4 = ()
As at 31 March 2023 and WZZE-_=F=A=1+—-AK
1 April 2023 —Z-=4MmA-A 4 2 (24) (4) (22)
(Charged) credited to profit or loss for the (¥18) 5t A R1828
year (1) = 1 1 1
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1+—A 3 2 (23) (3) (21)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for 5h Z? /E:\ BHRARERMS @ ECHBLEH
consolidated statement of financial position purposes: (HEIHE) 2 DT -
2024 2023
—E-mF ZE=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRERT BEETT
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 1 2
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBHAR (22) (24)
(21) (22)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$55 million
(2023: HK$43 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
and these tax losses have no expiry dates.

—T T NEFR

AR AR s MR 2 A TR - SRS A& BT
(T =% : BAEBD)ERELHAEE -

mARHAERLESIHA -
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31. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 31. mﬁ?ﬁﬁ+iﬂﬁﬁ1hﬁ+lﬁﬁ
ZEMAR
2024 2023
—E-mF o
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Non-current FETRED
Corporate note payable ERNTERE 539 578

In January 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Alcott Global
Limited (“AGL”), which held 22% interest in CESIZ (note 17(a)) and issued
note with principal amount of HK$850 million as part of the consideration.
The note has a maturity date of 3 years from the date of issue, subject to
the extension at the option by the Group at their sole discretion. The note
bears 5% interests per annum, subject to the satisfaction of (i) having
received audited financial statement of CESIZ prepared under HKFRS; and
(ii) the return on net assets of CESIZ, calculated by dividing net profit after
tax over net assets, for the previous financial year achieved 20% or more.
The repayment of principal and interest (if any) shall be made (1) only if
and when the Group has received cash payment of dividends declared by
CESIZ; or (2) out of the proceeds if and when the Group has disposed of
its shares in AGL or the immediate holding company of AGL; or (3) out of
the proceeds if and when AGL has disposed of its shares in CESIZ. The
corporate note is a contingent consideration by the Group which is carried
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated profit or
l0ss.

B —F—F  KEEZRKEEAICt Global
Limited([AGL] + #5B CESIZZ 22%# =5 (B 5
17(a))) MBI ARG R AS0E BB T2 ZHIE
BEONRE - ZEEMEIEE AT H R
=F  THAERRFEELR - ZZ2BETF
B5%EME - MARA U TEME - ()BEWREIRE
BBV BREEARFEEACESIZEFZIT IR
x o R(i) E—9RFEECESIZAFEER R (%
BREEFFEBRINEEFETE)ED20%K
Ak - RERFIB QB EAVERAEEKE
CESIZERMINEMF s KQ)EAEBRLEHR
PRAGLERAGLE B R A R MBS B B A T 1S 3%
T8 5 3R (3)FEAGLH & H A CESIZEI AR 0 e &) A AT
BRIERBE - RAIRBAAEENNARE -
BAFEE AFEEHNEABERTE

27
s ©
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. &
Number of
shares
37 E 42|
Note (‘million) HK$'million
BiaE (BEK) BEET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B0 LR
Authorised: ERE :
As at 1 April 2022, RZZE-_—FHWA—AH-
31 March 2023, —BE-=F=ZA=+—H "
31 March 2024 “E-NFE=A=+—H 20,000 200
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE :
As at 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_FPWA—H 7,559 76
Issue of award shares BITHREIR D (a) 33 -
As at 31 March 2023 and RZZEZ=F=H=+—H
1 April 2023 F—ZFE-_=FH—H 7,592 76
Issue of award shares BITREAR D (a) 29 -
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-WF=A=+—H 7,621 76
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

33.

158 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Note:

(a)

Issue of award shares

In April, June and October 2022, the Company issued and allotted
approximately 33 million awarded shares to its employees.

In April 2023, the Company issued and allotted approximately 6.5
million award shares to its employees.

In June 2023, the Company issued and allotted approximately 21
million award shares to its employees.

In December 2023, the Company issued and allotted approximately 1.3
million emolument shares.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share award

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted on 24 April 2020. The purposes of the Share Award Scheme
are (a) to recognise the contributions by selected participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them; and (b) to attract
the right talents for promoting the future development and expansion
of the Group, with a view to achieving the objective of increasing
the value of the Group by motivating the participants to strive for
the continual operation and future development and expansion of
the Group and aligning the interests of the participants and the
sharehalders of the Company.

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the Board may determine other specific
vesting criteria, conditions and the time when the awards shall vest.
The Award Shares are vested in three equal tranches of which: (a)
1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall be vested in the first
calendar year after the offer date during a period of continuous service
with the Group; (b) 1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall
be vested in the second calendar year of continuous service with the
Group after the offer date; (c) 1/3 of the Award Shares under the award
shall be vested in the third calendar year of continuous service with the
Group after the offer date.

(a)

32. &7 (i)
GEX

LT ERE I

RZZE-__FmA - "ARtA A2
RIB BT ELNBEERER RN 4
BT

RIZE-=FMA  RARAREETLE
EHOSABRERRMNGEET

RZZEZ=FA ' ARAIEBITILE
BN B EBRERRNOBET -

RIE-=F+_F ARESEHTYL
FBMNMIBERMERNEET -

AEEEEEARA ARAREAEERE
BB ZRE - R EBE(CER MR
& RIRRFMHEAER

LIB R 3Z 1R IR

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Share award (Continued)

Movement and details of the award shares (the “Award Shares”) during

the year are as follows:

33. BIRR 5 ZFHRRIR (1)

(a) Befn3Emn ()

REE BB (TRE A ) B 8 & 7F

ICEUNNE

Number of award shares

EmBmHA
24 April 2020 29 June 2020 Total
—E-F —ECTF
mA—+mAE ~A=-t+tAhH HET
million million million
BER BERKR BER
QOutstanding as at 1 April 2022 RZZT-__FMA—H
R AR H 17 43 60
Vested during the year KEEHB (8) (22) (30)
Lapsed/cancelled during the year FRRB 2) - )
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 W_ZE-_=F=A=+—
and 1 April 2023 AR-—ZE-=%FmA—
AR 7 21 28
Vested during the year KEERE (7) (1) (28)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 RZZEZF=A=+—
Hi#RE L - - =
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R BH 2 IRE (B IT) 0.246 0.148
Fair value at date of grant (HK$ million) R H BEIZ AF(E
(B8ET) 48 10
2024 2023
—E=_MmF —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAL
Share-based payment expenses AR 2R — 2

—T T NEFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. KIB{pZf1#IA (§8)
(a) Share award (Continued) (a) B{mEREh(48)
Details of the specific categories of award shares are as follows: SRz @R O FBOT ¢
2024 2023
—EZ_pmE T
Numbers of Numbers of
Date of grant Vesting period share awards share awards
EHAE BREY EmaRin e E RERNEE
(million) (million)
(EEBg) (BBR)
24 April 2020 24 April 2020-24 April 2022 - -
—E-EFMA=+MA T ZFNA-—FNEE=Z
—ZHEWMA=+mA
24 April 2020 24 April 202024 April 2023 - 7
ZEZTFMAZ+IMA ZEZTFMAZtMNEE=ZZE
—=#MA=-+mImAH
29 June 2020 29 June 2020-29 June 2022 - -
—E-EFXA=Z+NAE —T-EEXA-TNABEE=Z
—ZHXA=+ANA
29 June 2020 29 June 2020-29 June 2023 - 21
ZEZEFXAZ+NAE ZEZTEFRAZtTNABEE=ZZE
Z=F~A=+n1H
- 28
As at 31 March 2024, Fok Chi Tak, the executive director of the BE_S_MF=A=+"H KQ7

HITERESRYERSEEMRD ZE

Company does not hold any (2023: 20 million) share awards. (—Z—— 0B ER) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. KIBR{pZf1FIA (§8)
(b) Emolument shares (b) BHEBEIR
Movement of the emolument shares granted by the Group during FA - AREREZHMERHNE
the year are as follows: T
Emolument Shares
B < A% 15
6 October 2020
—ECFF
+A7<H
million
BER
Outstanding as at 1 April 2022 RZZE-—FWHA—HEKREH 6
Vested during the year AEERE (3)
QOutstanding as at 31 March 2023 and R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—HBK
1 April 2023 TR =FMA—HEARES 3
Lapsed/cancelled during the year FRRBFH )
Vested during the year KFEEFB (2)
QOutstanding as at 31 March 2024 RZZEZNF=A=+—HRHKRELE -
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R B H 2 IRE (BT) 0.39
Fair value at date of grant (HK$ million) REHBHz2AFEEEBT) 3
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Share-based payment expenses AR 2R S 1
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e B HRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. IR ZfIRRIA (&)
(b) Emolument shares (Continued) (b) M7 R
Details of the specific categories of emolument shares are as BEBRcMEROHFBNT -
follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=F
Number of Number of
emolument emolument
Date of grant Vesting period shares shares
BHBEH REH B & B 1 # B MemiRmHE R
million million
BEE BER
6 October 2020 6 October 2020-6 October 2022 (note) = -
—2-2F+AXE “E-TFIANBE T
+ A 778 (D)
6 October 2020 6 October 2020-6 October 2023 (note) = 3
—E2-FF+AHNH —ECZFE+ARHE-Z ==
+ A58 (#isF)
- 3
Note: BEE
These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin, ZEMERMDBETF ARG ERITESH
as part of their emolument as non-executive directors of the Company. W4 RERSREAE - EATRESENS —30
If Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin ceases to be a director of the Company D o (HEFME 4 REE S AR EE
for any reason before any vesting date, Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin HEfRTEEMER M TNBEETRRRE
shall be entitled to receive a pro rata portion of the emolument shares X ORI AE BB A EA IR
calculated on the basis of the number of days worked by Mr. Xu Lin B ER B Bl & A% 0 - 5T & E2E BFFH
and Mr. Wei Bin. SERBRSCEZ TIEES -
Mr. Wei Bin has resigned as a director effective from 1 April 2023. AN _E-_=FNA—B&ETFE

E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3. emREEXEEEEE

2024 2023
—EB_MEF —Eo=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI NAFEFEEEEBLT AR MR
Wz EMEE 258 345
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEFEAEEE(LETABR 228
BE
Mandatorily measured SRHIETE 13 178
Financial assets at amortised cost BEERARSR REE
Loan receivables FEUWE X 20 45
Finance lease receivables BB E R GRIE 1 2
Corporate note receivables R TR 412 402
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRRSZEEYAREERRT
pledged bank deposits e 104 659
Trade receivables B 5 B GRIE 185 9
Other receivables and deposits MRl EIE MRS 36 42
Other financial asset HemEE 1 =
1,030 1,764
Financial liabilities SMARF
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEBEBE ABRC
THBE 539 578
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REENASR 2B E
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 321 304
Trade payables B S ENRIR 6 13
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIENRETER 238 661
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 29
1,123 1,585

el 1 B S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

34.

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.
Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate bank and other borrowings (see note 27(b)) and lease liabilities (see
note 26). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note 25), variable-rate bank
borrowings (see note 27). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances
and HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated
borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate movements based on
interest rate level and outlook. The management will review the proportion
of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they are within

reasonable range.

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates the effect of the interest
differences by a 1% change on variable rate borrowings and bank

balances, assuming all other variables were held constant.

Carrying amount

55 B4 R EE ()

SRMTAFENERMERE - 825
BT AABNERSETRERFIEE
BEEGEERR)  EERRREBHE

SRR o AT EZIER %Ei%%ﬁi@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ&
R -AEEEEBUZFRARETER
ELHE - DAREGR M A U IREUE ZHE 56 ©
T 5 B B
FIEmPE

AEBEEAEHAHAESRITREMEE
(FF LM EE27(0) A R E & & (FF R H5E26)
ZAFENERRE - NEETATEEH
FEIRITAESGER M 25 F BIRITE
BEEFAWEN 2R RMERRE - A&
Bz Re&RMNERREREEEPRIFITLHER
MERAREBABTFHEZ EETE LS
EARTRAEREZKD - REEFBIIR
BRI KF R AR RSB E S
WEEXEERANXER - BEE R
AESEENEEEELEX  BRAEAES
BEER -

ﬁﬂmf“%ﬁﬁﬁ """""
BEENUNIRITA @1%

Efﬁ: °

e

TL‘Z#XQZE
REFIEE -
R E\%%EZ

Impact on post-tax loss

IRE{E HREBRzZTE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“ETNE T -F Z“BONME —T-=F
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEET ©S&88rT OBET BEET
Floating-rate borrowings HEEE (308) (285) (3) 2)
Bank balances 1THERR 100 97 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI. For equity securities measured
at FVTPL and FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange, the management
of the Group manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure

should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to listed equity securities price risks at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis included those financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at FVTQCI. If the prices of the respective equity investment included
in financial assets at FVTPL and at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
assuming all other variables were held constant, the impact to the Group

would be as follows:

34. &RLR WA mEEE (R)

Hfih {5 4% B B

AEERBBREANTEFASAEE L
APARBREMARHEFERERLT AR
b2 E T EORAR S MAZ RAE
RER - RRE R ATRENARFEE
BEBAABRRARTEFEEEE
feFt AR b2 AR EZ RARSME » &
‘EEI EEEBBEBEFAETRRER KE
BEENLERR - AEBEEESRR
Zﬁ*? EBERELR - AT R E E I+
R A e

AT BURE DT IR BEHRE RAR |
MIRAZEFEBREARET - RESTE
BARTFEAEARSCH ARG Z SR
BEMANTEFEAHEE (LT AR ME
EREZ ©REE - WARAFEFERR
ﬁé/ftnﬂ')\%a/\&Lj\ EF{EE-I_EHE ’ftu-l—
AHMEERRZ EREEME 2 HEAR
RIKE 2 BRIGI,RA10% - REFFAE
HihW S @~ EEAEE ZEN
™

2024 2023
—EB_ME —Eo=F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAL
Impact on loss/profit after tax ;ﬁﬂ{éﬁiﬂ@/ il =2 +10% 1 11
Financial assets at FVTPL NEEFEEHEZ(EA
TE S EREE -10% (1) (11)
Impact on FVTOCI reserve HUARFEFEAEEZ( LA A
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁz W L - +10% 3 4
Financial assets at FVTOCI NEEFEEEE(EA
ﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬁl i BB E -10% (3) (4)

“E=FI—NEFE RAEBRERREEEERAT 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EMREXEBFEER (8
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 55 3 B B ik (B AT 4

EERREASBEUFIRNEANETR
HEBYAEEEIPBIERNER - K&
BEHEERRTIEREARNE SRR -
Hip YRR N & - RWE - BEH
ERWFIR - BREERE - SRR
R RITEREARTFEFEBEEL
AAABEZERTA - AEBEYEFEIE
AR m M EE R R TAAEREA
TREEFMNEERR - HERE TR
ERERNEERRAEAYEREMME

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, loan receivables, finance
lease receivables, corporate note receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and debt instruments at FVTPL. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets except that the credit risks associated with certain
loan receivables are mitigated because they are secured over properties.

PIORES ©
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the AEBERNEEERR TR T HEIEATE
following categories: Bl :

Other financial

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items

HtiemEE
AEB(E H TR R BHEWKREA HfthRH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not  Lifetime ECL—not credit-  12m ECL
have any past-due amounts impaired
(EWEN HFREORRK - BWEEI@EARIE SHIFEEEEE 1EAEHREE
B-BEERE BB
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle  Lifetime ECL—not credit-  12m ECL
in full impaired
BRRE BEBAKERIHAARENR  BEFERE SHITEEEERE PREAEREE
wha B-BEERE BB
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL—not credit-  Lifetime ECL—not credit-
initial recognition through information developed impaired impaired
internally or external resources
AJ&¢ BYMATERIACK - BAABHINERFEE HEREERS HIFEEEERE
WERRAEERREEIEM B-EBEERE B-EBEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired ~ Lifetime ECL— credit-  Lifetime ECL— credit-
impaired impaired
E1a BERBETEELHREERE 2 HEEEEE SHIFEAEERE
B—EERE B—{EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
g EEBETESARREREV BN - A MESHE Gzl

S B30 S B R U Bl 69 RT RE1E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial

assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

34.

R REFRRER )

B R o R O {13 ()

TREFMI B AEBEAEETEMEREER
Az MEEMAR ZEERR

External Internal 12mor 2004 2023
Notes credit rating credit rating Lifetime ECL ~ Grossamount  Gross amount
+ZERE ZEME k- S}
Wi MBERAR  ADEENR  2NRNGRER #en eH
Hk$million Hk$ million
BEATL BEAT
Financial assets at amortised cost EREREIIR SREE
Trade eceivables BARNGE 21 WA Note Littime ECL 198 104
(simplified approach)
NER Wt 2EREEESE
(Blh2)
Loan receivables FEER 4 WA Doubifl Lifgime ECL ¥ 52
(nof creditimpaired)
R TR rHEHCEER
GHEERE)
Loss Lifgtime ECL % =
(credtt impaired)
BE fEERE
62 62
Corporale note receivables EULEER 19 A Lowrisk 1amECL 409 403
i [EEkR +ZfER
REBEEER
N/A Doubfful Lifetime ECL 16 =
ol & (notcredit impalred)
FHRHNEEEE
(GHEERE)
4% 03
Other receivables and deposts At RIGER TS 2 /A Lowrisk 1mECL % £
MR R +ZfiR
RHEEER
Bank balances and pledged benk deposts — FAOEBREEBEOER B i N 1mECL 104 639
R TNER +ZfER
REBEERR
Others A
Finance lease receivables MERERUTE /A Lowrisk Liftime ECL 1 2
(simplifiec approach)
iR ek 2HRECEER
(Bnt)
Note: The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure Mzt AEECERBSMBMREEEEIH

the loss allowance for trade receivables on lifetime ECL basis.

TR =F/ZNEFR

BT ERENENEEBEREE
AAERWE ZFIRZERREME -
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34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

168 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 22.7% (2023: 22.8%)
and 67.5% (2023: 48.4%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the rental income from construction machinery segment/securities
brokerage segment. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade receivables collectively. Trade receivables are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the Group’s internal credit
ratings and aging of outstanding balances. No impairment (2023: reversal
of impairment of HK$9 million) is recognised during the year. Details of
the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
in relation to rental income from construction machinery business because
these customers consist of a large number of customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using provision matrix within
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

For the trade receivables from securities brokerage, the credit risks are
mitigated by the security over equity securities. Yet, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers and used a collective basis within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

Trade receivables from securities brokerage with gross carrying amounts
of HK$150 million (2023: HK$48 million) with average loss rate of 1.0%
(2023: 2.9%) was applied.

34.

R REFREEE )

15 5 B3 % il (B A 435 (#9)
R AR HRIA

AR AREE2RT% (T -=F:28% K
67.5% (T = =4 : 48.4%) W E 5 FEU X
HBBEAD BB AEESGAE A RAK
P MzEREFBEREEEHMSEFHES
WAR, BEHELDE - At AEB MR
EhzERR - ARERVEERR &K
SEEEEELZR—(AEKEaEETEE
REREER -

AN - AEBEEAEMEEERELNE
ZRM IR G —EITRENE - EHRIK
RBEDRBREEERBRBHEL2EARE
BRI EEFR R KREEEHRZRED
B FARERRE(CZT =% #E
BOIFEBTT - EILEBEFBENAMN
At R o

AEBEREERMEL 2B WARBE
BARKFEEPHERBR  RESZE
EFRREAREAAARRARFEENETS -
ZEAFRRFHEBEARKREPRIESAR
RS 2 BRI HASRIAMEE D o TRIEH
BBAE SHEWHIEAZ ZEERBER -
DERATeE2HEREEBREEER
18) 2 R g — TR o

HREFELCEHRYANS - £EH
R E BBR AR FNEREGAERE - K
SEHEXFPRERANEE2HAREERR
(BEERE) 2ABERFTR - HEHER
RRIBEBATRRF AN BEBREM
BRAOXME - XHBANHBZRARK
LR EBATEEERHE LR

VAL 2 B 5 WG IAR R E 8 /150
BEAT(ZE_=F 48B8%ET) ¥
i’ﬂ)&ﬁé%ﬁ10%(:§:£$ : 2.9%) °
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FEMBEHRERME
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HZE_—_Z_PUF=FA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. &Rk BEFREEE )

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B B PR B iRk (B AT 4 (#0)

Trade receivables (Continued) 5 ERHIEE)
Past due
]

Curent  1t030days 31t 90days 91to180days  Over 180 days Total

ENE 1308 HENAR 91180 100RA5.E &t
Trade recsvables - retal income fromconstnction - E 5 EUFUA—REMRER L
machinery busingss EETUN
As at 31 March 2024 R-B-MEZA=+-H
Weighted average expected loss ate MELIESEER 46% 96% 196% 0% T13% AU2%
Receivable amount (HKSmilion) ThEEE(EERT) 13 18 3 3 11 I
Loss allowance (HKSmilion) FEREEESRT) i 2 - 1 8 1
As at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=%ZR=1-H
Weighted average expected loss ate MBI ESEER 2% 11.7% 25% 8% 61.5% 214%
Receivable amount (HKSmilon) hEEBEEET) 1 18 4 13 g 5
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) BREERSAT) - 2 1 3 6 1
Trade eceivables - Securiies brokerage BHRUTE— AL
As at 31 March 2024 RZB-MEZRA=+-H
Weighted average expected loss ate ML ESEER 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Receivable amount (HKSmilon) hEEE(EERT) - 11 5 2 69 130
Loss allowance (HKSmillon) FRREEESL) - - - - 1 1
As at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=%ZR=1+-H
Weighted average expected loss ate ML ESESER 29% 29% 29% 2% 29% 20%
Reoeivable amount (HKSrilon) hEEE(EEAT) 3 - 4 2 11 4
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) BREEESATL) i - - - - 1

el 1 B S
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34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. &Rk BEFREEE ()

170 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

15 5 B3 % il (B A 435 (#9)
5 % i R IR (#1)

Tﬁﬁlm‘\ﬁdfﬁ%{t/ﬁduﬁ%FH& RIE 3R
MEHRREEERE

HK$'million

BEBT
As at 1 April 2022 RZE__FA—H 22
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 4R A B KR PHER 9)
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 KRB =F=-A=+—BEK-_Z_=4WM"A—H 13
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ fE4R A BZHRPHER =
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-_NF=A=+—H 13
Loan receivables B E R
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since REHE VIR EREEERRETEEL

initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk perceived
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the loan
receivables from borrowers are assessed individually by the management
of the Group, based on the financial background, financial condition and
historical settlement records, including past due dates and probability of
default, of each borrower and reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Each borrower
is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration the estimates of expected cash shortfalls
which are driven by the estimates of probability of default and expected
loss given default, including taking into account the amount and timing
of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure on the collateral (if any)
less the costs of selling the collateral. At every reporting date, the financial
background, financial condition and historical settlement records of each
borrower are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

e AEEENSRES AR em T A
A B3R AR B B A IR TR R EHHW%DE'JE’JJ—L
BUETTILES o TR AR - AEEE
EBHERSERANTBEES E\M‘%ﬂﬁiﬁ

BEAENTER(BEaEAHERELNH
) DREMTHEBZHRALE HEE
MO EBNAIE B AR HERIEA AT
EHEER  HERRERANERD BIETT
i o BB AEBE AR RE S ERAETT
R m & - LAFITETRHEEEIE - 2T
KB LR R TEHRE 4V IB K 2R T8
RS RR 2 e - BEFT REFREUS
BoO#E(WBE)BHRELANRERZEER
B S H SR RAK A - REERE
B SHRERANTBES - BB
MBS RSETENTE  YEE
AIE BRI EL -
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. &Rk BEFREEE )

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

The Group considers various actions for recovery of the credit-impaired
loan including regular collateral review and communication with the
borrower in order to keep updated with the latest credit risk profile of
the borrower. In the event of occurrence of default with loans that have
collateral, the Group would take possession of the assets held as collateral
through court proceedings or accept voluntary delivery of possession of
the assets by the borrower. The credit quality review process enables the
Group to assess the potential loss in view of the credit risk it is exposed to
and to take appropriate corrective actions promptly.

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s loan receivables were
debtors with aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$62 million (2023:
HK$62 million), of which (i) HK$4 million (2023: HK$4 million) were
secured by the borrower's pledged properties, the market value of the
properties less the estimated costs to sell amounted to HK$3 million (2023:
HK$3 million). The market value of the pledged properties was determined
using direct comparison method and was categorised into Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy, the related cumulative ECL of HK$1 million (2023:
HK$1 million) was provided after considering the adjustment to reflect
loss given default based on the expected realisation value of the collateral;
and (ii) HK$33 million (2023: HK$33 million) were secured by a loan
assignment in the net carrying amount of HK$17 million (2023: HK$32
million), the related cumulative ECL of HK$16 million (2023: HK$1
million) was provided after considering the adjustment to reflect loss
given default based on the expected realisation value of the collateral.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence
of default by the borrowers.

15 55 8 B B i 4 (W)
I Mor 5 %% (%)

rEBeERERANAKREEREERNZ
E1TE) BT RS EE S KEERA
- LAT%H%?K}\ZE%MZ?THKM |E
Moo MEBERBRNERE LG
ZKEIT@iE/j&Bm%ifHX H{’E?fﬁfﬁuuz
BEMMAEXAEBRABRR 1‘1@?5’]
FiEH - CEEZRERFELAEES
HMERRETEEZ EERBMER 2 5%
FEk - WENRHREUEE 2 44 I HE -

RZZEZWF=A=+—H AEEHNE
WERBRERLERREEEL(ZE
Z=F  2B8B T MERARYGIE
EFNW4EEBT(CE-=F 46585
T AERABN B IR MEEER - ZF
MERTEBGTEEKRARIBEST
(ZZ2Z=F : 3@8EAL) - CEEMER
MEREELEEETE - UEAXTFER
BERNE2R - MEENZRFAEHREE
EEAIBEBT(ZE_=ZF - 18EE
JL)  ERZEEBREBEEALOEHEIRE
EHFARERURBBLAEIBRELRE - &
() 3B3EEBIL(ZE_=4F : 33EBT)
LR FERITEBATL(ZE =4 : 32
BEAT)NERERERKR - *ﬁfﬁﬁ']
RESEEBEREAEEAET(ZE =
F:188AT) Z‘“%ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuum
TEEI IR E R AR A RMB L EBSEEE
B -

RERALBEENNERT - AEENE
HESBE MBS o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. e REFEEEEE
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 55 PR B iRk (B AT 4% (1)
Loan receivables (Continued) U & ()
Th? r|1|10vement of impairment allowance on loan receivables for the year is AEERKEZRREREEZSOT -
as follows:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

RN RN

ERER ERER
(RERAE (fRREE) #it

HK$ million HK$'million HKS'million
HEET BEET HEET

At1 April 2022 W-Z-"EmA-H 46 - 46
Changes dug to loan receivables recognised at 1 Aprl 2022 R =T - —FMA—BRAERET N
= Transfer o credit impared -BESEERE (3) 3 -
~ mpairment loss reversed -BREREEE (26) - (26)
~Writg-0ff of impairment allowance MR ERE § (3) (3)
At31 March 2023 R -E-=F=R=1-H 17 - 11
Changes due to loan receivables recognised &t 1 Aprl 2023 W= Z - =FMA—BRARNET N
2E
~ Impairment allowance recognised -RRAERE 2 - %
~ Transferto creditimpaired -BESEERE (25) 25 -
AL 31 March 2024 S 1
ZR=1-H 17 25 42
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34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

34.

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Corporate note receivables

For corporate note receivables, the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

The movement of impairment allowance on corporate note receivables for
the year is as follows:

ek EFEEEE R

15 5% B2 5 i (B B 43 (#R)

PR f 3SR iR

REKECEREMNS  BEBERNBES
ek BEKBURESEZ TEREM
BRUAR A1 2 ATIE 1 B R E B E 5
AHE R EER B PO -

REERKREERBREBRGBESWT

Lifetime ECL

(not credit
12m ECL impaired) Total
1288 ZHRM
REER ERBIRGE
BiR (ERERE et
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BEE#ERT ©HEEST BEET
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-_ %M A—H 2 - 2
Changes due to corporate note receivables RZZE-—FPYH—BHER
recognised at 1 April 2022: FEU R FAEUEED
— Impairment allowance reversed -C BRI E R (1) - 1)
At 31 March 2023 R_E-_=F=A=+—H 1 - 1
Changes due to corporate note receivables RZZE-_=FH—B®ER
recognised at 1 April 2023: FEW SRR EE D) ¢
— Impairment allowance recognised TR E R 5 7 12
At 31 March 2024 R-E_ME
=B=+—H 6 7 13
Other receivables and deposits HtiEEHERTE
For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic REMERFRIELFTEME @ EEEER

individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management believes that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.

TR =F/ZNEFR

BEGNTEE  BEERUNAEZEE
FGEMBRAR A5 2 ATE £ B RHE
E {81 ) 5 17 L 0 P WAORR IR M R T 2 9 AT W ]
- BEERS  ZEeBENEERRE
VI HERIARIY BARE LI - BAKER
1218 A FREME E B RAH R E R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

174 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

(CONTINUED)
Pledged hank deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit agencies. There has been no history of default in
relation to these banks. The Group performs impairment assessment on
the pledged bank deposits/bank balances under 12m ECL model. The
management of the Group considers the risk of default is low based on the
average loss rate by reference to credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed that the ECL for bank balances
were insignificant.

Finance lease receivables

For finance lease receivables, the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of finance lease receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there is no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL and the ECL was insignificant.

34.

eREREFREEE )

BEMBRITER RITREER

AR 5 FHRBBREETRERET
EREEENRHNRT - WERSEIRR
TR BITEBOEERBRBER © #
BERZSRITHENLE - XEERE
12 AFE I E E B EER S B RRTF
RITHRARELRET G - K2ZEE
SEMABBETHNEETR  AEEE
BEEARFHYEEXRAEENRERARK -
AEBEFERITERNEREEEFERT
BKXe

R R IR

Tyt ﬁéﬁﬁ SEWFEME - EEEENE

B  BERBRUANRAEZEEN
EIE%SHLA&EJZ? 142 BT M E K E H
AR AR ERERKRE - EEER
5 ZEZBENEERR A VT HERBIAKR
WEREE FI - BARSERI2EAEME
EERHERERE  MARBEREES
BYAEK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going
concern hasis

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major lenders to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

34.

R REFRRER )

RBBEEERBRRGEEETEETHRR
EiE

REB MR /A TE B 88 2 AT AR HI R R
HESHFR - BREFRFATREFHEMN
REIBERANEREHNARESRE -
mEEERMERNRBESHK -

TRHNFEBEIFTESRBBENFGRE
WH - ZRTIREBESRMBERMARER
ERE - ZSeRABENREASERRE
ANRORFAMOE - RMIETE SR
BENIHASHENERBES -

TREFEFBRALASRE - WHER
ATEFIE - BRI S EEN RS
A -

On demand Between Total
and less than 1yearto Between Over undiscounted Carrying
1year 2years  21o5years Syears  cash flows amount
KSR
BEXR Reng
PME  1ERE 2ENE BiRsE #E FEE
HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$’million
BRET HBEET GRET BEET GORET B8R3N
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-_ME=RA=1—-A
Trade payables BHENTR b - - - b b
Other payables, deposits received and accruals  EfofENZRIE « EUGTE R JE
iHER 238 - - - 238 238
Bank and other borrowings and corresponding  SR1T R EABEE R
inferests TEREFIE 295 19 10 - 324 321
Lease liabilties HERE 1 5 5 - Al 19
550 I} 15 - 580 584

el 1 B S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EMREXEBFEER (8
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going RDESRBRSEEEEETRUE
concern hasis (Continued) 0 (i)
On demand Between Total
and less than 1year to Between Over  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2years 210 5years Syears  cash flows amount
AR
RERR BHeng

DIME ERMF 2ENE HRBSTF ek RHE
HKkSmillion ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK$ million
BEST BEET BE8AT BEET BAEET BBATL

As at 31 March 2023 R-EZ=F=A=1+-—
|
Trade payables B HENTE 13 - - - 13 13
Other payables, deposit received Hib R IE - 21
and accruals e RETER 661 - - - 661 661
Bank and other borrowings and BITREMEENR
corresponding interests T2 266 2% 19 - 309 304
Lease liabilities MHEEE 15 10 5 - 30 29
055 3 24 -0
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk and the basis for preparation on a going
concern basis (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis above. As at 31
March 2024, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to HK$258 million (2023: HK$224 million). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the management does not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The management believes that such
bank borrowings will be repaid after the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the table below:

Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments

34.

R REFRRER )

RBBREERBRGEEETEETHRR
H e (W)

P 5 1% B SRAE R IR MY IR TT B B AT AA
FRHBEONHIRERIRERA - R-F
TME=ZA=1t—H  ZFRITEENE
HEARERBSEEBTL(CT_=F : 224
BEAT) - KEEAKBHH BN
BEER/BRITIRAIEITERISEER
BN ERR - BIEER AR FRITEEMK
REREEESER A HNREHR
RIEE - FHIFEN TR

BB B O —RBERF 8 - HHRER
BEERNRITEER

Between Total
Less than 1yearto Between  undiscounted Carrying
1year 2 years 2105 years cash flows amount
AR
Beng
PIE 1EEUF 2555 Fak) FREE
HK$'million HK$'million HKS'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEBT BEET BEBTL BEET
31 March 2024 —E_MFE=A=1+—H 260 2 = 262 258
31 March 2023 —E_=f=fA=1+-H 17 217 12 246 224

el 1 B S
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e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(a)

178 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

35. AFMEEE

Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (@) 2FERIBEFHREE :
Description R
Fair value measurements using:
AFEEER:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$11R PR ] I\ 5t
HK$'million ~ HK§'million ~ HK§'million  HK$’million
As at 31 March 2024 R-Z_MF=A=1+—H BERET HEET BEET BEET
Assets gE
Recurring fair value measurements: LEMEATENE:
Financial assets at FVTPL NAFEFEAEBEA
BRa/eREE
— Listed securities - FWEH 13 - - 13
Financial assets at FVTOCI NAFEFEAEBEA
Hip2Ehs e $REE
— Listed securities - ImES 32 - - 32
— Unlisted equity securities - ETRERE - - 226 226
Total recurring fair value BERLTEAERE
measurements 45 - 226 211
Liabilities =1
Recurring fair value measurements: REUATERTE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WAFERFEREE A
Ba/eRaE
~ Corporate note payable -ERG5ER - - 539 539
Total recurring fair value BERLTEHARRE
measurements - - 539 539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (Continued) (a)

35. DF{EEE )

LTFERBEREE - (8

Description (Continued)

RS (48)

Fair value measurements using:

NHEFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
145 FUR ERE @at
HK$ million HK$'million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-=F=A=+—H BEBT BEETL BEAT BEBT
Assets gE
Recurring fair value measurements: LRUEATENE:
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEREE A
— Listed securities - mESH 134 = = 134
— Unlisted fund investment —FEmEERE - - 29 29
— Unlisted debt instruments —FEmEKIA - - 15 15
Financial assets at FVTOCI MAFEERE A
HErmlacemEE
— Listed securities - mESR 39 - - 39
— Unlisted equity securities - L TRERE - - 306 306
Total recurting fair value BERELOTEAERE
measurements 173 - 350 523
Liabilities =1
Recurring fair value measurements: REMATERTE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AL EEBEB A
BazemaR
~ Corporate note payable -ERG¥EE - - 578 578
Total recurring fair value EENLTEHESE
measurements - - 578 578

TR =F/ZNEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. 2FEHEGE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (h) ERBIBIRLOTEIABZHEEY
on level 3: R :

Financial assets at  Financial assets at Financial liabilities

FVTOCI FVTPL at FUTPL
DAFEHEAR LAFEHERE LAFEHERH
S ARM2E SLHARRZ: S{HARRZS

kRzenEE MEE AR
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
HEET HEET HEET
As at 1 April 2023 R-Z-=#mA—A 306 a4 (578)
Total gains or losses recognised 2 FERA U & 5 &5 18 4R 5R
—in profit o loss* —RiEx = (43) 39
—in other comprehensive -REMEEMlE
income (80) - -
Exchange alignment BN Az > (1) -
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-NF=A=+—H 226 - (539)
*Include gains or losses for *  BIERBEBAFHEEEZR
assets held at end of B
reporting period - (43) 39

Financial assets at Financial assets at ~ Financial liabilities at
FVIOCI FVTPL FVTPL
PAFEFEEE UAYEFNERE UATEIZEEE
Flat A HEtz2lE ZtiABace Bt AERce

Wiz emEE BMEE Y=Y
HK$'million HK$'million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT AEAT
Asat 1 April 2022 RZE-_FMA—H - 107 (629)
Acquisitions or additions Hﬁlﬁﬁ_kf‘ﬁ 317 - -
Total gains or losses recognised = FERUR 25 5 18 4258
—in profit or loss* -REE - (32) 51
—in other comprehensive —REMEEME
income (1 - -
Transfer to other receivable BB E E A EUGIR - (30) -
Fxchange alignment X A% > (1) -
As at 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=ZH=+—H 306 44 (578)
#Include gains or losses for #  BIERNREBRRIBEEELR
assets held at end of B
reporting period - (32) 51
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including RIEEPHERNIBERARE(BRENmEH
those for assets/liabilities held at end of reporting period are XFﬁTTEMﬁF/’E B) e Bm Rk H
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HEERERFET -

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements:

The Group's management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The management reports directly to the board of directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the board of directors

at least twice a year.

Level 3 fair value measurements

35. DF{EEE )

(c)

HESKEMERZEEEFLR
LFEIEMERZ (H{ER TR
ABE -

AEE Y B2 A A A
ERMAERBEATENE 8
EEMMATFIENE - EREHERN
EERRRYSATEILE - B2
BREFRGFELRTMAAM
EEBTE R SR -

EIMAFHEAE

As at 31 March 2024 R-FE-ZPWE=/A=+—H
Valuation Unobservable Sensitivity of
Description fechnique inputs Range Fairvalue fair value to the input
ATEHRARES
il fhERw AUEREARE &8 OFE  HEE
HKS million
BRET
Financial assets at FVTOC!
WATHE B BRI AR DR
Wi eREE
~Tonsin Asset-hased approach: determind by the far valug of Minority discount 1681% 3 The higher the minorty discount
Underlying assets and iabilites adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair valug of the
{heir fair values (25 appropriate), based on the latest unlisted equity securties
available financial statements, with acjustment of
minoriy discount
i AEL REWESORNUTEL HBE  JHBERE L2 DUSIE ESER
FEFRRERNBRLES SRR ¥ ETRAESATESE
EARHBAERABN DT ERE
- China Pearl Asset-tiased approach: determined by the fair value of Minority discount 19.00% 161 The higher the minority discount
Underlying assets and liabilitis adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair value of the
their far values (as appropriate) based on the [atest unlisted equity securties
available financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount
L £EL: REVESHRNUTEL AR JHBERR 0 Ui LS
FEBRERINE)RELE) HHER ¥ EiRAES D TEEE
EALHBAER AR DT ERE
~Empire Victory Asset-tiased approach: determined by the fair value of Minority discount 17.15% 9 The higher the minority discount
Underlying assets and liabiliies adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair value of the
their far values (as appropriate), based o the [atest Unlisted equity securites
availablg financil statements, with adjustment of
minority discount
-k BEL: REVERNRMIRES AEE  JURENER SRS

FEBARERNEBELE) HRER
BRENEBAERARNATERE

el 1 B S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE
35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

(c)

35. DF{EEE )

HEFREFERZMGEREFLR
DFERTRARERZ 4 ER R

(c)

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements: (Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024 (Continued)

A8 - ()

EIMAFEETE )

R-FE-mME=H=+—H#E

Valuation Unobservable Sensitivity of
Description fechnique inputs Range Fairvalue fair value to the input
ATEHEANEY
iR fhEHH FURREANE #E AFE  HRE
HKS'million
BEER
Financial liabiltes at FVTPL
WATEH B R AR G ARG
ERERE
- Gorporate note payable Discounted cash flow: determined by reference to the Discount rate 14.38%- 539 The higher the discount rate, the
consideration as stipulaed in the equity transfer 15.06% lower the fai valug of the corporate
agreement and the projected profttogether with note payable
expected dividend paid-out by the imvestee i3 HREES  ENCESE
AHEEE
Retun onnetassets — 10.09% The higher the retur on net asses
ralio 33.96% raflo, the higher the fair valug of the
corporate note payable
-Eft¥3E HRARERE  SRWEBRRZOTNUE  FAEDRE FREDREHR
WRBRE GBS ANAENR SHEE ENLEREATEES
During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation RZMEFEE - FrRGHERTTE
techniques used. BE)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. 2F{HFTE )

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

HEFREERZMGEREFLUR
LFERIBARERZGER GRS
A - ()

EIMAFEEHE (W)

As at 31 March 2023 R—FE—=F=H=+—H
Valuation Unobservable Sensitivityof
Description technique inputs Range Fairvalue ~ fairvalug to the input
AERGA ATEEBARES
R B Hig #E ATE  §EE
HkSmillion
BEET
Financial assets at FVTPL
KATETEERE
HABEERAE
~ Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach: determined by reference o Marketability 15.70% 29 The higher the marketabilly
underlying fund value discount discount, the lower the fair valug of
{he unlisted fund investment
- LmEERE AEr  SRABESBRRT [k ciEiE | ikai:iEiE N
FLEEREDTHEEE
Minority discount 30.00% The higher the minority discount
rate, the lower the fair value of the
unlisted equity securities
DEERE SERENEEES -
FIMRAESLTEBE
~ Unlisted debt instruments Discounted cash flow: based on the estimated fufure Discount rate 1150% 15 Thehigher the discount rate, the
economic benefitnflow, with discount rate lower the fair value of the unlisted
Gebt instruments
- EmRBIA BRRERE  NMAXREARGENGR ERE RSN

A

—T T NEFR

F BRI AATESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

35. DF{EEE )

HEFREFERZMGEREFLR
DFERTRARERZ 4 ER R

(c)

ARE - &)
EIMAFEETE )

R—FE-—=—F=H=1—H#E

Valuation Unobservable Sensitvty of
Description fechnique inputs Range Fairvalue ~ fairvalug o the input
AEEEA NHEHB RN
R fifEfn g LE e AR
HkSmillion
BEAT
Financialassets at FVTOC!
RATEEER A
A2 AN SRERE
- Tonsin Asset-based approach: determined by the far valug of Minority discount 16.81% 41 The higher the minority discount
underlying assets and liablites adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair valug of the
{heir fair values (2s appropriate) based on the latest Unlisted equity securties
available financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount
il BE REVBRNSMIRES SEE  JYRENE LLUUSE ESER
EEBRBEINT) BRLE) SRER ¥ TRAESATESE
ERENEBEERARNATERT
—Ching Pear Asset-based approach: determined by the fair valug of Minority discount 16.00% 255 The higher the minority discount
underlying assets and liabilites adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair valug of the
{heir fair values (2 appropriate) based on the latest Unlisted equity securities
available financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount
-RAHARK BEL RENEGRNRMI KGR SEE  JYRENE SERETEEYES -
EEBRBEINT)BRLE) SBER ¥ EiRAES D TEEE
ERENEBEERARNATERT
—Empire Victory Asset-based approach: determined by the fair valug of Minority discount 16.81% 10 The higher the minority discount
underlying assets and liablites adjusted by ECL and rate, the lower the fair valug of the
{heir fair values (2 appropriate) based on the latest Unlisted equity securties
available financial statements, with adjustment of
minority discount
=il BEr REUEGNEMERA S8  JURERE HERIENRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. DFEHEGR)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used hy the Group (c) HEFKREFMEBAZGHEEFLUR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value AFEHERERAZEERTRE
measurements: (Continued) ABRE: (@

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) EIMOFEHAEH)
As at 31 March 2023 (Continued) R—E—=ZF=H=+—HE
Valuation Unobservable Sensttviy of
Description technique inputs Range Fairvalug ~ fairvalug o the input
ABEHA ATEHBAZEN

R GIEU it L AE  BEE

HK$ million

BEAT

Financial liabiliies at FVTPL
NATErEEESR

HABREZERAR
- Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow: determined by reference fo the Discount rate 12.20%-
consideration as stipulated in the equity ransfer 12.44%
aqreement and the projected profittogether with
expected dividend paid-out by the investeg HRE
Retum onnetassets —— 10.17°%-
raflo 34.23%
-ENRERE HARERE  SRWEERRRORNYUE  FAEDRE

HERRAHGE X MNAENRS#E

578

The higher the discount ratg, the
lower the fair value of the corporate
nole payable

RSN

Rt 2REATEEE
The higher the retum on net assels
ratio, the higher the fair valug of the
cororate note payable
FREOHEYR
Eft5ZEATEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. 2FEHEGE)
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair values for RUMBWRERS  AEEHO SR IAR
financial reporting purposes. NEEFE ©
In estimating the fair values, the Group uses market-observable data to the REFTATER - AEESEATREH
extent it is available. For instruments with significant unobservable inputs MIZABREIE - st ESHEFIRERT
under Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform AR ASG s THE  AEERESF=
the valuation. FEEBMMEMETHE -
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured rEEBreREEREREBENSRE
at fair values at the end of each reporting period. HRIZ N FERE -
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and BERB - NRA B WRITE HK AR
financial liabilities at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated ReecHBEERsRABECRABERERES
financial statements approximate to their fair values. ZAYERE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. MBS XS
Key management compensation FTEEBARZHH
2024 2023
—E_MFE TEo=fF
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Short-term employee benefits PGl RN 9 6
Share-based payment LARRA 2 A RRIR - 2
Rental income AL N 4 S
13 8

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

BIREMIERREMIADFTHEEN - B
E-ET_NFER-_TE-_=F=HA=+—H
IHFE REBWTESKEH IS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transaction

For the year ended 31 March 2023

(1)

(i

On 28 October 2022, Novel Advice Limited (“Novel Advice”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and an independent third party (the “Seller”) entered into
a share transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Novel
Advice had conditionally agreed to acquire and the Seller
had conditionally agreed to sell 6% of the entire issued
capital of China Pearl Global Limited (“China Pearl”) at the
total consideration of HK$255,000,000 which was settled
upon completion as to (i) HK$50,000,000 by cash; and (ii)
HK$205,000,000 by the issue of the consideration note. The
transaction was completed on 7 November 2022.

During the year 31 March 2023, the Group’s other receivable
at HK$97 million and loan receivable at HK$45 million are
settled by note payable in the same amount.

TR =F/ZNEFR

37. RERKRERME

(a) EEFREXH
R-B-=F=A=+—B%E

iy RZTEZ=—F+HA=+N\8"
Novel Advice Limited 22 &) A& 52
FEFRAREBYE=ZF(E
FDEIT T —HRHEER
& BRI 0 Novel Advice
Limited B BRI EWE - B
FEBRHERELER A BPIK
RIKBBRARITRAAKD 2
BHEBEITRANGES BRER
255,000,00078 7T - RKEBERR H5E
M HP () UReZ
50,000,000/ 7T : M (i) SAZETTLX
B 3 151205,000,00078 7T ° 5%
RHPNZTEZ_F+—HtH
FERK ©

iy RZTEZ=F=A=+—H%F
€ - AEEMEMEKKITE
BETREEEFRISEEET
NEBEEREXA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—_NF=A=+—AHLLFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. FRERERERMEG)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (h) MEITDEEZAREE
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising TR AEBFAREZTHEE
from financing activities during the year: ZBaEE
Amount due to
Amount dugto  an intgrmediate Financial ~ Total lahilities
Amount due to fellow holding  Bankand other ~ Corporate Lease liahilities ~ from financing
adireclor  subsidiaries Company ~ honowings ~ note payatle liahilties atFTPL actviies
Bt WOTEIHE
Bft-2  RAWE  BR-NoN 8fiR Bt BRI BREDE:

ESRA  UARE HRAARE  RMER  OERE  EARR RRIEMRR  (RRWE
WiSmilon ~ WSmilon~— HéSmillon~— HSmllon— HSmilon ~ HKSlion HeSmillon~ HKSHlion
BEEL  REET  REAL  REET  REAL  RERT  RERT  RBAR

Asat 1 Apil 2022 N-2-"%MA-A l 1 9 3 - % 69 1126
Crangesncah fons Rengsy bl 1] - (&) ®) ) - ()
Nor-¢ash hanges b33 &
~Finenee gl -RERK - - - 18 - 1 - 19
- adnodfeaions ofease - FERBHIAE - - - - - ! - 1
~Ofetwith e ot ieles. BB NS - - - S (1) - - (1)
- Auistion of ool ssis P0G ~MAATERERER A

MitAENE £8

EE S S = S i - - i3
~Fairvaleadstment ~DTERE - - - S - - ] bl
fsad e B Al 03 A-FoZE

ZR=t-Bk

“2-TEMA-A S - ] K} - i Bt 1001
Changes incah s ReERy f l 0 ] - (14 - y
Nor-4ash chenges 3 ET )
~Finenes sl -RENA - - - 19 - W - 0
-l i modfeaions o ease. - FERGHAE - = = - - ] } 3
~Fair vl jsen LT - - - . 5 - & @
Rt 31 Mereh 2024 - mE=A=1-H 1 1 18 3N - 19 5% 101
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38.

Alcott Global Limited (the “Target Company”)

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the “Vendor”) and the Target
Company, both of which is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Glaring Sand Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase 15% of the entire issued share capital of the Target Company,
at a cash consideration of US$20 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$156 million). The disposal of 15% equity interest in the Target
Company was completed on 16 May 2022.

The effect of change in the ownership interests of the Target Company on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2023 were summarised as follows:

HERBELAT
Alcott Global Limited([ B #E2F)

RZZEZZFRA+—H  FHERAF]
(EAFDEBEAR(RESAERRNTRE
B IE2 AW B2 R)) EdGlaring Sand Holdings
Limited (B H DT EB WS @ B &
FERHERELSE  BEAEKGRERE
15% B2 A RIE BTG - REA0BE
%E(*EMEAZ’H%EF%/%TE) c HEBRE

NE5%RENR —_E-_—_FHA+/ B
B ©

BE—_T-_=F=-A=+—HIFE " §
ERREEEEEH AN ARIHE AR
EREENEEENT

HK$'million
BEBT
Consideration received R 1EE 156
Increase in non-controlling interest FEIE IR 23 N (169)

Movement in equity WX E

(13)

Z=F/IZNFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) FLFRMBRRAE

39. FLTFIMBARRA R G iw

2024 2023
—E_MmE =
HK$ million HK$'million
BHEET BEBT
Non-current assets FERENEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI&E 52 57
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B F0E - 650
52 707

Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBTB R RIFIE 1,541 1,198

IWAFEFEBEE L

Financial assets at FVTPL FFABR s EREE 13 134
Cash and cash equivalents RENMRNSEEY 19 4
1,573 1,336
Total assets BEEHRE 1,625 2,043

Current liabilities RENARE
Bank borrowings IRITER 40 -
Other payables and accruals HtEARIERETER 2 2
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B A R F0R 165 126
Amounts due to intermediate holding company FEfT AR IR A B IR 182 90
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R —ERZRWB R ERIE 10 -
399 218
Net current assets RENEEBE 1,174 1,118
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERTHAE 1,226 1,825
NET ASSETS TERE 1,226 1,825
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZE—Z—NF=A=+—AHILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. EATMHERATR i (18)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) FAFMBRRAEGE
(Continued)
2024 2023
ot Jo] 1 - T =HF
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRERT BEAT
Capital and reserves BE R R
Share capital %N 76 76
Reserves {1 1,150 1,749
TOTAL EQUITY ganaE 1,226 1,825
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved AATHERRER B - =4X
by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023. B+ \BEEESHE -
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) FLFZEM
(Accumulated
Share-hased losses)
Share Capital payment retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total

HRGER  (RiER)
BipRE EERE AREF GEERN EH)
HK$'million ~ HK§'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$’million
BERT ABEAT BEAT BEET  BEAR

Asat 1 April 2022 RZE-—&MA—H 1574 5 10 (82) 1557
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENALE - - - 189 189
Transaction with equity holder HERHEARS
Issue of award shares BTRBRG 6 - (6) - -
Share-based payment expenses DY LT o o 3 = 3
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZZ-=#=A=+-BEk
“E-=EMA-H 1580 5 li 107 1749
Total comprefensive loss for the year ERZABRLE - - S (599) (599)
Transaction with equity holder BERHEARS
Issue of award shares BTRBRG 6 - (6) - -
Transfer o retained eamings #\REBF = - (1) 1 -
As at 31 March 2024 RZZ-_RE=A=1-H 1,586 5 - (491) 1150
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

192 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

40. RBELTFRES
FEMBLFHR

(a)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as

RZE_WER_FT_=ZF=AH

follows: =t+—HMBRARZFBOT :
Issued and
Place of fully paid up
incorporation/  share capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
g/ EETRBER
MELFRRE 2 Aive it */BEREF BREBERAEEE TEXH
2024 2023
ZECmE —Z--F
Alcott Global Limited (*Alcott”) BVI US$100 85% 85%  Investment holding
Alcott Global Limited (“Alcott”) RERUHEE 10%T RERR
Big Wish Developments Limited BVI US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Big Wish")
Big Wish Developments Limited RERUHEE 10ET RERR
("Big Wish")
Chim Keg Business Limited BVI US$100 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRZES  100ET REZK
Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 99.9% 99.9% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business
SR BRAR B3 1,000,0003% 7 BERMAERHENREEY
HIEERK
Chim Kee Equipment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Construction machinery rental busingss
SRR EERAR B T RERAAEEK
Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 99.9% 99.9% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business
SR ERARAR B 18T BERMAE RIHE N LEEY
HIEERH
Chim Kee Transportation Company Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 99.9% 99.9% Provision of machinery transportation
Limited Services
HRERBRAR B 1,200,000/ 7 R ERER R
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. RE2TRYER ()

el 1 B S

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMMBLTFRGEE
Issued and
Place of fully paid up
incorporation/  share capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
gL/ CERITREER
MEAERE R Bk */itfmEx BRERGRAEER IEXH
2024 2023
—ECME —T-=F
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. (*Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 2 100% 100% Property development
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. (“Dasar”) BRAE QERALLE MERE
Glory Century Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Investment holding and provision of
group management and administration
Services
SEHAERAT] BB 100%7T REZRA LR EEEIR RIT
HRT
Hao Tian Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Provision of asset management services
RREEEEBRAT BB 5,000,000/ 7 REEEEERRS
KB Crane Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Construction machinery trading business
B E#ERAR R 10003 7T RERMHERK
Hao Tian International Financial Holdings - Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
ERERRERERAA 3 10,000,000/ 7T REZK
Hao Tian International Securities Limited  Hong Kong HK$310,000,000 100% 100%  Securities brokerage business
EREBESFERLA 5 310,000,000 7T BARIET
Hightion, Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada  Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Construction machinery rental busingss
YA - ABRAR R SRPT#25,0007T RERWAERK
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE_—ZT_PUF=A=+—HIEFE

40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. BB ATMRER (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMBLTFEGEE
Issued and
Place of fully paid up
incorporation/  share capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment  registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
B BRTRMER
i VNGRS BRI */gEREEx BRERERAEERE TERE
2024 2023
—ECNE —T-=F
KB Leasing Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Leasing
BLHBERAR 5 10,0008 7T HE
K B Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business
BLERAR AR BB 18T BRERMAE RHENLEZEYD
REEEK
Solution Pro Investments Limited BVI US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRZES  100ET REZK
ERFINBBIREERARF  PRC RMB3,600,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
g AR 3,600,0007T REERR
Notes: BI5E
(1) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best 1) BERETHEARTEERNRX

effort by the Group’s management to translate their Chinese
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official English
names.

(2)  Allthe above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited liability
companies.

(3)  The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #HE_—ZT_PUF=HA=+—HILFE

40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 40. R ATIER (B
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)) EXFREMELT
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have TR AEEHBRAREAERKN
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The JEIERR A RS ([T i 2SR B -
summarised financial information represents amounts before inter- MBERSERMEL AR HEEH
company eliminations. HIZ &FE °
(i)  Alcott Global Limited (i)  Alcott Global Limited
2024 2023
—S-|mE TEC—4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BE#ET BEBT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZA=+—BzEEKERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 798 1,127
Profit or loss for the year ended 31 March BEZA=T—RHLFEZ
B
Revenue A - S
Loss for the year FERNEE (325) )
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income FREMEZEES), W
for the year (4)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FA2MERALEE (329) -
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DB E IR 2 BB (49) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ST IERR R 2 AR B - =
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEEAR 120 169

No cash inflow and outflow during the years ended 31

RIEBE-_NER T -_=F=

March 2023 and 2024. A=+—HFEREREMRA
Ko e
41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 41. EE#F

Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated statement EMBRARKEERERERTFET
of financial position and consolidated statement of cash flows have EREBFEEFHE - UFEARFENT)
been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. These HwAH o ZRFBMDMEARRE & 75
reclassifications have no material effect on the comparative figures in MR KREERERERPHLLERE T
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of BBERTE -

cash flows of the Group.

TR =F/ZNEFR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS xR
Year ended 31 March
HE=A=+—-HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
TECEE —E-—F TE-CF —E-=F —E_mE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEATL BRET
Revenue WA 192 213 220 246 173
Profit/(loss) for the year TIATEIEFENR
attributable to: M,/ (E18) :
— owners of the Company -AREHEEA 72 100 (412) 108 (463)
— non-controlling interests - FE R - - > - (49)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BB 7 100 (412) 108 (512)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-EE —E-—F —E-—F —E--F —E-mE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$ million HK$ million HK$’million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT HEET
Total assets BERE 1497 2,894 2,931 3,489 2,388
Total liabilities aER® (509) (1,170) (1,298) (1,625) (1,152)
968 1,724 1,633 1,864 1,236
Equity attributable to owners of the
Company AARIHEE NELER 9688 1,724 1,633 1,695 1,116

196 Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Annual Report 2023/24



SR BIEE s B R A A

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	董事報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層履歷詳情
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底



